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JSAT Corporation is the Asia-Pacific region’s
largest satellite communications provider, currently
operating a fleet of eight satellites positioned in
seven geostationary orbits. Since its founding in
1985, JSAT has maintained steady growth by pro-
viding a range of services that exploit the unique
strengths of satellites in both telecommunications
and broadcasting. These include telecommunica-
tions business services, telecommunications carrier
services and satellite broadcasting services, the lat-
ter of which includes Japan’s first digital direct-to-
home (DTH) service—on the SKY PerfecTV!
platform—and new broadcasting services using
JCSAT-110.

Under the corporate slogan, “JSAT, Expanding
Horizons,” and with a new management team at
the helm, JSAT is entering the next stage of growth
as both a global operator and application service
provider, offering total satellite-based solutions to
an ever broader range of customers in the global

satellite market.

JSAT
Expanding Horizons
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JSAT at a Glance

Telecommumcatlons
Business S rvices

This service category includes the provi-
sion of full-time and occasional sarellite
transponder capacity to both domestic and
overseas companies, government agencies,
educational institutions and other
customers, primarily for their internal
telecommunications networks.

Satellite
Broadcasting Services

This service category mainly includes the
provision of multichannel digital broad-
casting services to broadcasters using the
SKY PerfecTV! and SKY PerfecTV/ 2
platforms.
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* Increase in revenue contribution made by
Satellite Network, Inc. (SNET), reflecting
its first full year of consolidation

*» Higher demand for system-based applica-
tions, which more than compensated for
bandwidth usage reductions by some
customers

* Increase in transponder bandwidth usage
by some customers, for example, for the
transmission of video data

+ Addition of new customers using
transponders on JCSAT-2A and JCSAT-3

for international services

Dedicated
services, etc.

Type ll
telecommunications
carriers?

Telecommunications
business services
and others

Corporate users

Other:

Dedicated
services, etc.

* Increase in revenues due to the
commencement of DTH services using
JCSAT-110

¢ Growth in revenues derived from broad-
casters on the SKY PerfecTV! platform,
reflecting the final increase in the four-
annual-step tariff for JCSAT-4A

* Addition of channels by some broadcasters

Digital satellite
multichannel
broadcasting
services

Broadcasters

revenues totaled ¥1,181 million, representmg 2 7% of total revenues.

ficlecommunications
Carier Sarizes
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This service category includes the
provision of transponder capacity to NTT
Group companies as part of, or as alterna-
tive routing for, their telecommunications
nerworks.

N,
S
¥9,360 million
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* Expansion of services provided to the
NTT Group from the second quarter,
following JSAT’s acquisition of additional
interests in the N-STARa and N-STARb
satellites, further reinforcing the
Company’s steady revenue stream in this

service area
* Growth in revenues of 7.2%

Provision

of satellite
transponder
capacity

Type | telecommunications carriers'
(NTT Group)

Other revenues are mainly derived from the provision of satellite control services and the sale of equipment. In fiscal 2002, other

Nores: 1. Tvpe ] relecommumcauons carriers provxde relecommunications services uuhzmg cireuts and of_her mfrastructurc, including sateﬂxtcs and telephon: systems, owned and operated by

the company itself.

2. Type I telecommunications carriers resell and provide relecommunications services utilizing circuits and other infrastructure owned by Type I telecommunications carriers.
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| Consolidated Financial Highlights

JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars,
Percentage Except Per
Millions of Yen, Except Per Share Amounts Change Share Amounts
2001 2002 2003 2003/2002 2003
For the year . T
Revenues: ¥ 38,160 ¥ 40,783 ¥ 45,121 +10.6% $ 382,383 :
Telecommunications business services 11,777 12,976 13,504 +4.1 114,445
Satellite broadcasting services 16,900 18,000 21,075 +17.1 178,600
Telecommunications carrier services 8,923 8,732 9,360 +7.2 79,326
Other 560 1,074 1,181 +10.0 10,012
Operating income 11,171 11,325 11,779 +4.0 99,819
Income before income taxes and minority interests 9,695 9,994 11,110 +11.2 94,151
Net income 5,125 5,609 6,182 +10.2 52,393
Net cash provided by operating activities 22,728 19,930 25,867 +29.8 219,213
Capital expenditures 15,791 12,428 18,891 +52.0 156,202
EBITDA:? 27,024 27,963 28,692 +2.6 243,152
Depreciation and amortization 15,420 16,476 16,698 +1.3 141,506
EBITDA margin® (%) 70.8% 68.6% 63.6% -5.0¢
Return on equity (ROE) (%) 6.8% 5.8% 6.5% +0.7¢
Per share data:
Earnings per share—basic? ¥13,936.64 ¥14,638.58 ¥16,248.95 +11.0% $ 137.70
—diluted 13,935.31 14,638.58  15,175.46 +3.7 128.61
At year-end
Total shareholders’ equity ¥ 95,884 ¥ 96907 ¥ 93,207 -3.8% $ 789,887
Total assets 169,640 163,432 169,230 +3.5 1,434,149
Number of employees* 174 251 262

Notes: 1. U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from Japanese yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥118=U.5.81, the approximare rate of exchange on March 31, 2003.

2. EBITDA (Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amorrization) represents the total of net incore, interest, tax, depreciation and amortization.

3. The EBITDA margin is the racio of EBITDA to revenues,

4. These figures are percencage point changes.

5. Basic earnings per share (EPS) are calculated based on the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during each year, which were 367,744, 383,154 and 380,476 shares for the years
ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

6. The number of employees includes staff seconded to other companies, but is exclusive of part-time staff. The number comprises 206 JSAT employees and 56 SNET employees at
March 31, 2003. For the year ended March 31, 2001, number of employees is given on a nonconsolidated basis.

Revenue Composition - ‘ Net income Total Assets

(Millions of yen) . ‘ {Miliions of yen) : (Millions of yen)
45,121 ;
‘ : ‘ 6,182 .
40,783 ‘ 5609 169,640, 1 1,169,230
38,160 ‘ o128 i
] 140,100
26,086 ‘ : 110,859
24,384 '
1 2,697
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W Telecommunications business services

W Satellite broadcasting services
Telecommunications carrier services
Other




etter from the utgoing EO

E o all JSAT’s shareholders, customers, partners and employees

First of all, I wish to express my sincere gfatitude to all JSATs shaveholders and customers, as well as the
many other people whom I have had the pleasure of meeting and working with over the last seven years. In
June 2003, I stepped down as CEO of JSAT. The new President & CEO, Mr. Kiyoshi Isozaks, brings «
wealth of experience in technical and sales areas—gained during his time with the NTT Group—and
outstanding personal qualities to the position. He certainly meets the high expectations beld for my successor,
allowing me to pass the baton with absolute confidence.

When I became President seven years ago, JSAT was still a relatively small regional satellite operator,
baving just placed an order to procure its third satellite. One of the Company’s most significant early
achievements was its success in securing an agreement with the former Japan Sky Broadcasting Co., Ltd.
(JSkyB). That service later evolved into SKY PerfecTVY, which has acted as an important springboard for
JSAT ever since. Three years later, I declared JSAT’s intention to develop its relationship with the NTT
Group—from being its biggest customer to being its best partner. Since that time, we have expanded our
relationship to encompass NTT's major operating companies. The tmplementation of these and other strategies
led to steady revenue growth and paved tbé way to ]SA T’s lém'ﬁg aﬁ ‘1“be ‘To‘/{y‘o‘ St;c/e Exc};aﬁgé mAugust H
2000. This marked a turning point in the Company’s history, emphasizing the level of autonomy JSAT bad
achieved. As indicated by the corporae slogan, “JSAT, Expanding Horizons,” JSAT is now aiming to become
a global service provider, while raising its technical capabilities and developing new business fields.

JSAT has consistently achieved increases in both revenues and income. This is the proud result of the
combined efforts of all the Company’s management and staff.

The operating environment faced by JSAT, together with all participants in the global satellite industry,
is uncertain. In my opinion, it will continue to be characterized by fierce competition and ongoing
consolidations and realignments. However, in an era of digital telecommunications and broadcasting, the role
played by satellites is becoming ever more vital. JSAT is well positioned to play a leading role. As the future
envisaged during my tenure as CEQ steadily begins to take shape, 1 believe JSAT will continue to grow and

become an even bigger and better company. I hope you will all continue to support its efforts.

July 2003

Takuya Yoshida

Senior Executive Advisor to President




e from the = anagement

yoshi Isozaki

President & CFO

Hvidend applicable to the period, approved by the General
klecype of Sharcholders held on June 26,2003, was |
MCTcased 1o ¥6.000 per share.
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Corporate Governance:

i

s an integral part of JSAT’s drive to continually

enhance its corporate value within a globally competi-
tive environment, management has made the strength-
ening of corporate governance structures one of its
highest priority tasks. In line with this objective, the
Company is developing and implementing a range of
policies on an ongoing basis.

During fiscal 2000, JSAT introduced an executive
officer system and established a Compensation Com-
mittee. During fiscal 2002, the Company set up a
Management Committee and established a Nomina-
tions Committee. These measures were part of a
comprehensive overhaul of management systems at
JSAT, designed with the twin aims of: clearly delineat-
ing the authority and responsibilities of executive
management vis-i-vis the supervisory functions of the
Board of Directors; and improving both the decision-
making process and the operation of the business.

In addition to these measures, JSAT plans to
continue with further enhancements to its system of
corporate governance. Following recent revisions to
the Commercial Code of Japan, one important
change JSAT is currently considering is the adoption
of a “committee system” to replace its current

system of “corporate anditors.”

Fundamental Policy and its implementation

- JSAT’s corporate governance system,

including management decision making,
executive and supervisory functions and

management organization

During fiscal 2002, the period under review, the Board of
Directors was convened on a monthly basis. It comprised nine
members, including four outside directors. As well as fulfilling
its legally required functions and making decisions regarding

major management issues, the Board of Directors oversaw the

.. activities of executive management.

The Management Committee met twice monthly. It com-
prised eight members with a position of senior executive offi-

cer or higher, including the five executive members of the

“Board of Directors. In addition to making preliminary delib-

erations on matters that require a decision by the Board of

Directors, the Management Committee made decisions on

important issues relating to operational matters, within the

sphereofauthont} delegated w0t by‘ the Board of Directors.

A Compensation Committee and a Nominations
Committee, which both comprised three members of the
Board of Directors, including one outside direcror, as well as
one outside corporate auditor, functioned as advisory bodies
to the Board of Directors. The Compensation Committee
considered matters relating to the compensation system for
directors and executive officers, while the Nominations
Committee considered potential candidates for director and
executive officer positions.

Theé Board of Corporate Auditors met on a monthly basis.
It comprised four members, including three outside corporate
auditors. The Board of Corporate Auditors assessed—in
accordance with the Audit Plan it formulated—the level of
legal compliance maintained by the Company’s directors in
the execution of their duties.

JSAT also established an Intérnal Audit Department,
which monitored not only legal compliance but also the

adequacy of internal procedures and control functions.




Measures to enhance JSAT’s system of
corporate governance implemented during
fiscal 2002 |

1. Establishment of the Management Committee in July

2002.

2. Increase in the number of corporate auditors from three to
four by a resolution passed at JSAT’s 18th Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 26, 2002.

Three of the four corporate auditors were outside corporate

auditors.

3. Reduction of the standard term of appointment of directars...

from two years to one year by a resolution passed at JSAT’s
18th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on
June 26, 2002. Accompanying this, the standard term of -

appointment for executive officers became ore year.

4. Establishment of the Nominations Committee in June
2002. In May 2003, this commirtee recommended to the

Board of Directors candidates for the position of director.

5. Introduction of a business results-based compensation sys-
tem, including the issuance of stock options. To further

enhance corporate value by drawing together the interests:

of management and shareholders, after deliberation by the
Compensation Committee, JSAT introduced a business

results-based compensation system for directors and execu- .

tive officers, beginning in fiscal 2002. The Board of :
Directors also decided to submirt a draft resolution to the
19th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders, held in
June 2003, regarding the introduction of a stock option
system for directors, executive officers and certain other

advisers and senior-level employees of the Company.

Management

(As of July 2003)

Bdard of Directers

Masahito Tani

Chairman, Director

Kiyoshi Isozaki
President & CEO

Representative Director

Yoshiro Aisaka

Director

Masanori Akiyama

Director

Yoichi lizuka

Director

Iwao Nakatani
Director

(President, Tama University;
Director of Research,

UF] Institute Limited)

Mamoru Ishida

Director

(Senior Executive Vice President of
NTT Communications Corporation)

Shingo Yoshii

Director

(Executive Officer, General Manager,
Media Division, Sumitomo Corporation)

Kohei Manabe

Director

(Representative Director,

Vice Chairman and

Group Executive Officer,

Nippon Television Newwork Corporation)

Bunji Shinoda
Director

(General Manager,
Media Business Div.,

Information Business Unit,
Mirsui & Co., Ltd.)

Executive Officers

Kiyoshi Isozaki
President & CEO

Yoshiro Aisaka
Senior Executive Officer,
Strategic Planning Group

Masanori Akiyama
Senior Executive Offscer,
Market Development Group

Yoichi lizuka
Senior Executive Officer,
Corporate Coordination Group

Yutaka Nagai
Senior Executive Officer,
Engineering & Planning Group

Masanao Tanase

- Sentor Executive Officer,

Corporate Planning &
Communications Group

Yasuo Okuyama
Executive Officer,
Corporate Planning &

Communications Group

Osamu Kato
Executive Officer,
Corporate Coordination Group

Yuichiro Nishio
Executive Officer,
Engineering ¢ Planning Group

Hiroo Sumitomo
Executive Officer,
Market Development Group

Corperate Auditors

Kiyoaki Fujimoto
Corporate Auditor

Shoichi Kameyama
Corporate Auditor

Tamotsu Iba
Corporare Auditor
(Corporate Adyisor,
Sony Corporation)

Nobuyuki Kaneko
Corporate Audiror
(Chief Operating Officer,
Media Business Division,
Aerospace, Electronics &
Multimedia Company,
ITOCHU Corporation)
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[ which uses the latest satellite news whereby NTT DoCoMo will lease part of the transponder capacity
 for such programming as TV news, live on JCSAT-9 for its entire design life. JCSAT-9 is due to be launched
FCati in 2005 as the replacement satellite for N-STARa pictured above.
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L) 2: The fact that satellite broadcasting services are an

Structure of the SKY PerfecTV! Business

HRpoTTant gencrator of revenues was mentioned as one of Broadcasting service
[SA'L"s business strepgths. What is the structure of the

usage fees

B e ST

Broadcasting service
usage contract

e e e

"
Uplink contract

<

% Subscription contract *

* Broadcasting service usage fees include transponder usage fees and uplink fees.

 Broadcasters refers to both licensed broadcasters, as defined by the
Telecommunications Business Law, and broadcasters, as defined by the Law
Concerning Broadcast on Telecommunications Services.
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)32 Please explain JSAT’s strategy of expanding

rnincant advanta;

gﬁS over terrestrial communi-

=

TPERSTETCC OD

restaurant chains.

S national convenience store chains an

sesaveTa

Usage fees for telecommunications circuits

Terrestrial networks

o
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Satellite networks . ,

For satellites, the cast does not increase in proportion with the increase in
network size, but may be set at a fixed level.




The YSCC carries out 24-hour monitoving of
the satellite fleet. Should this center become
nonoperational, control of the fleet auromari-
cally switches to the Gunma Satellite Control
Station, [SAT's backup facility. To kecp pace
with the expansion of our satellite fleet and
the diversification of our services, we have
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]SAT Corporaéion and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003

Millions of Yen

1999 2000

2001 2002

Operating results
Revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income
Net income

Financial position

Total assets

Current assets

Net property and equipment
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Total shareholders’ equity

Cash flows

Net cash provided by operating acrivities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities

Other data

EBITDA

Shareholders’ equity to total assets (%)
Number of shares outstanding
Number of satellites

¥ 24,384 ¥ 26,986
17,858 19,296
6,526 7,691
1,947 2,697

¥110,899  ¥140,100
11,971 9,320
93,602 121,218
12,595 20,635
79,052 64,454
19,252 55,012

¥ 10,756 ¥ 15,678
(12,533) (39,080)
3,657 20,333

¥ 16,693 ¥ 17,977

17.4% 39.3%
550,509  338,154.5
5 7

¥ 38,160 ¥ 40,783
26,990 29,458
11,171 11,325

5,125 5,609

¥169,640  ¥163.432
27,313 17,408
121,630 121,300
23,431 20,972
50,325 44,979
95,884 96,907

¥ 22,728 ¥ 19,930
(26,602) (16,140)
9,579 (9,590)

¥ 27,024 ¥ 27,963

56.5% 59.3%
383,154.5 383,154.5

8 8

¥ 45,121
33,343
11,779

5,182
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In the firsc half of fiscal 2002, ended March 31, 2003, spurred
by a weaker yen, the Japanese economy showed signs of a lim-
ited export-led recovery. However, the protracted problems of
nonperforming loans and deflation, as well as anxiety about
the strength of the U.S. economy and the impact of such
geopolitical risk factors as the Iraq and North Korea crises led
to further uncertainty in the second half of the fiscal year.
Even at the end of the fiscal period, signs of a full-fledged
recovery remained elusive.

1n this environment, consolidated revenues increased
10.6%, to ¥45,121 million, operating income climbed 4.0%,
to ¥11,779 million, and net income grew 10.2%, to ¥6,182
million.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortiza-
ton (EBITDA) rose 2.6%, to ¥28,692 million, while the
EBITDA margin fell 5.0 percentage points, to 63.6%. Return
on equity (ROE) gained 0.7 percentage point, to 6.5%.

N s = .
Significant Events Affecling Operating
Results and Financial Position

» Commencement of Operations by JCSAT-24

JCSAT-2A, which was launched in March 2002, successfully
completed in-orbit testing and commenced operations in May
2002. JCSAT-2A is the successor to JCSAT-2, which also oper-
ated in the 154 degree East orbital slot. In addition to a payload
of 16 high-powered Ku-band transponders, JCSAT-2A also

carries 16 C-band transponders char provide broad coverage
of the Asia-Pacific region. This capability allows JSAT to

expand sales in the area of international services.

» Commencement of CS110 Broadcasting Services

In July 2002, SKY Perfect Communications Inc. began digital
DTH broadcasts for its SKY PerfecTV/ 2 service, which uses
JSAT’s JCSAT-110 communications satellite. Unlike the
original SKY PerfecTV! platform, this new service may be
viewed using the same parabolic antenna as existing Japanese
digital direct broadcast satellite (DBS) services. This charac-
teristic is expected to help expand the CS110 subscriber base.

For further information, please refer to page 11 of this report.

* Transfer of Satellite Ownership Interests from NTT East and
NTT West

In June 2002, NTT East Corporation and NTT West
Corporation transferred their joint interest in N-STARa
and N-STARD to JSAT. JSAT also reached an agreement
with NTT East and NTT West to undertake certain intra-
prefectural telecommunications carrier services on behalf of
these two companies, using N-STARa and N-STARb. The
total price of the assets transferred, which were equivalent

to 10 C-band transponders, was approximately ¥3.6 billion.

« Establishmens of Japan CableCast Inc.

In October 2002, JSAT established 100%-owned subsidiary
Japan CableCast to commercialize a satellite-based digjtal conrent
distribution service for CATV operators. Japan CableCast

Operating Income and EBITDA and Return on Equity {(ROE)
Operating Margin EBITDA Margin (%) ’
wart s T orgen 28892
< .~ 27024 ; 6.8
— 98 oo
ey " iity] 3
ke g - .-%-..\63.6
Lo P 26.1 . o
[ i ’
: |
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. Operating income {Millions of yen)
= Operating margin (%)

— EBITDA margin (%)
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aims to provide optimal digital solutions to CATV operators.
This service, to be called “JC-HITS” is part of JSAT’s strategy

to expand its lineup of value added-services.

* Conclusion of Sales Agreement with PanAmSar Corporation
In October 2002, JSAT and PanAmSat Corporation of the
United States concluded a joint sales agreement covering the
Asia-Dacific region. This agreement further advances the
strategic alliance between JSAT and PanAmSar, which is
based around the Horizons Satellite LLC joint venture. JSAT
and PanAmSar are due to Jaunch Horizons-1 in the second
quarter of fiscal 2003, with the new satellite serving as a link
berween Japan and the United States and providing services
that cover the whole of North America. This alliance forms
part of JSAT’s strategy of expanding its global reach.

i

Results of Oneraiiens

Fiseal 2002 Compared with Fiscal 2001

Revenues
JSAT presents its financial statements based on a single
business segment, that is, the provision of satellite transpon-
der capacity on satellites owned by the Company to various
customers. However, to facilitate efficient and effective
management, revenue information is broken down into
three main services and analyzed according to customer and
type of service provided.

In fiscal 2002, owing to solid growth in all service areas,
JSAT recorded consolidated revenues of ¥45,121 million, up
10.6% compared with fiscal 2001, ended March 31, 2002.

* Telecommunications Business Services

Revenues in telecommunications business services are mainly
derived from the provision of full-time and occasional satellite
transponder capacity to companies, government agencies,
educational institutions and other customers, primarily for
their internal telecommunications networks.

Consolidated revenues rose 4.1%, to ¥13,504 million.
Despite the continuing harsh operating environment, which
saw some customers scale back transponder usage due to stag-
nant economic conditions, the Company achieved revenue
growth mainly owing to increased demand for efficient and
flexible system applications, as well as the first full period of
consolidation of SNET.

International services, between Japan and other countries,
are provided using JCSAT-3 and JCSAT-2A. In this category,

the Company won new contracts in such areas as video

16

transmission services in the Asia-Pacific region and the provi-
sion of corporate data network services among countries in
Southeast Asia. Owing to recent international events, demand
increased for transmission of video material. Some existing

customers also expanded their transponder usage.

* Satellite Broadcasting Services

Revenues in satellite broadcasting services are mainly derived
from multichannel digital broadcasting services provided to
broadcasters using the SKY PerfecTV/ and SKY PerfecTV! 2
platforms.

Consolidated revenues climbed 17.1%, to ¥21,075
million. Contributing significantly to this increase was the
commencement of the new digital DTH service that uses
JCSAT-110, and higher service fees earned from long-term
step-up type tariffs for broadcasters using the SKY PerfecTV/
digital DTH platform. Although the total number of licensed
broadcasters on the SKY PerfecTV/ platform declined
slightly, owing to industry consolidation and the withdrawal
of some operators, this did not have a major impact as some

broadcasters increased the number of channels they offer.

o Telecommunications Carrier Services
Revenues in telecommunications carrier services are mainly
derived from the provision of transponder capacity to the
NTT Group as part of their telecommunications networks.
Consolidated revenues gained 7.2%, to ¥9,360 million.
The most significant factor contributing to this increase was
addicional services provided to the NTT Group from the
second quarter, reinforcing the Company’s steady revenue

stream in this service area.

* Other
Other revenues, on a consolidated basis, increased 10.0%, to
¥1,181 million. This was thanks to steady revenues from the

provision of satellite control services to the NTT Group.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased 13.2%, to ¥33,343 million.
As a proportion of revenues, total operating expenses rose

1.7 percentage points, to 73.9%.

Cost of services climbed 30.0%, to ¥10,206 million. Cost
of services mainly consists of uplink costs for SKY PerfecTV!
broadcasts, in-orbit insurance and satellite operation costs.
Uplink costs rose 53.2%, to ¥4,673 million, mainly owing to
the commencement of CS110 broadcasts. In-orbit insurance
premiurms increased 22.0%, to ¥2,313 million, largely owing
to the launch of JCSAT-2A in March 2002, Cost of services



was also pushed up by the first full vear of consolidation of
SNET.

Sales and markerting expenses grew 17.2%, to ¥2,370 mil-
lion, mainly as a result of higher personnel costs.

Depreciation and amortization expenses edged up 1.3%,
to ¥16,698 million. The Company’s largest operating expense
is depreciation of its satellites, which is computed under the
straight-line method and uses operational lifetimes ranging
from 11 years to 17 years until the book value is reduced to
Zero.

General and administrative expenses increased 18.0%, to
¥3,418 million. As a result of the aforementioned factors,
operating income rose 4.0%, to ¥11,779 million.

At the end of the period, the number of employees, on a
consolidated basis, stood at 262, a 4.4% increase compared

with the previous year-end.

Other Income (Expenses)
Interest expenses fell 33.5%, to ¥923 million, owing to
scheduled repayments of long-term debr.

Equity in earnings of affiliated companies amounted to
¥77 million, compared with equity in losses of affiliated
companies of ¥244 million in the previous period. This was
largely owing to good results posted by Pay Per View Japan,
Inc. (PPV]), which is accounted for under the equity method.

Other—ner fell 41.2%, to ¥177 million, mainly owing to
loss on write-downs of investments.

As a result of these factors, other expenses—net declined

49.7%, to ¥669 million.

Total Operating Expenses
and Depreciation and
Amortization

Millions of yen
(vl ven 3,343

29,458

01/3 02/3 03/3 01/3

£ Total operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

General and Administrative
Expenses and
Number of Employees

i

02/3

7 General and administrative expenses
{Millions of yen)

Net Income and Comprehensive Income

Income before income taxes and minority interests rose
11.2%, to ¥11,110 million. Income taxes amounted to
¥4,899 million, a 12.3% increase compared with the previous
term. The effective tax rate edged up 0.5 percentage point, to
44.1%. Minority interests in income of subsidiaries grew
20.1%, to ¥28 million.

Net income increased 10.2%, to ¥6,182 million. The
weighted-average number of shares outstanding fell from
383,154 shares in the previous period to 380,476 shares
during the period under review. Basic net income per share
of common stock climbed 11.0%, to ¥16,249. Owing to the
issuance of ¥20,000 million in zero-coupon euro-yen convert-
ible bonds in April 2002, diluted net income per share of
common stock amounted to ¥15,175. For further explanation
of the method of calculation of net income per share of com-
mon stock, please refer to page 47 of this repott.

Unrealized holding losses arising during the period on
securities held by JSAT at March 31, 2003, increased
259.4%, to ¥5,379 million, primarily reflecting a large drop
in the market value of equity securities held by the Company
in SKY Perfect Communications. Within other comprehen-
sive income, foreign currency translation adjustments totaled
negative ¥295 million in the period under review, compared
with positive ¥184 million in the previous term. As a resulc of
the above factors, comprehensive income for fiscal 2002
declined 88.3%, to ¥506 million.

Interest Expenses and
Other Expenses—Net
(Millions of yen)

3418 1,788
1 r‘*
! 1475 agp
| 1,331
262 1,83
o
E 923
| 669
’ é
, i
| | 3
L | B
L . L . L
03/3 01/3 02/3 03/3

3 Interest expenses
Cther expenses—net

= Nurnber of employees (On a nonconsolidated
basis for the year ended March 31, 2001)
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Dividends

Providing an appropriate return to shareholders is seen as an
important issue by JSAT's management. The Company paid
an annual cash dividend of ¥6,000 per share applicable to fis-
cal 2002, which is ¥1,000 per share higher than the previous
period. With the overall aim of maximizing shareholder value,
JSAT will pursue a dividend policy with che aim of main-
taining long-term stability in the level of future dividend pay-
ments, while also closely linking dividends to operating

results.

Financial Position and Key Management Indicators
At the end of the period under review, total assets amounted
to ¥169,230 million, a 3.5% increase compared with the
previous fiscal year-end. Net property and equipment was
¥122,286 million, of which telecommunications satellites, net
of depreciation, accounted for ¥90,077 million. Total share-
holders’ equity declined 3.8%, to ¥93,207 million, primarily
owing to the purchase of treasury stock and a large reduction
in total accumulated other comprehensive income. As a result,
the equity ratio slipped 4.2 percentage points, to 55.1%.
Return on equity (ROE) for the period was 6.5%, a 0.7
percentage point improvement compared with the previous

period.

Stock Liquidity and Purchase of Treasury Stock
Raising the trading liquidity of JSAT’s stock and broadening
the Company’s shareholder base are important management
objectives.

Furthermore, to execute a flexible equity strategy that
responds to changing operating conditions, the Company is
carrying out a purchase of treasury stock. A summary of this

program is given in the table at the top of the page.

Net Property and Equipment
and Total Long-Term Liabilities

(Miliors of yen)
121,636 124,300 122,286 esgas 96,807
1215 213 leas
50825 %5406
""" 497 Py
|
01/3 023 03/3 018 02/3

[ Net property and eguipment

" Total long-term liabilities = Equity ratio (%)

Total Shareholders’ Equity
and Equity Ratio

93,207

03/3

< Totad sharehclders' squity (Miions of yen)
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Armount

Number of Shares (Millions of yen)

Treasury stock purchase .
gram approved at |

'the General Meeting of 6,000 ¥4,500
“Sharenolders held oh /| (maximum) (rmavdmum)
dung 26,2002 ¢

‘Cumilative purchases

icarried out as of 4,749 ¥2,301
;March; 31, 20‘03“ e

grrzzigg Zt;sg\?;dm;a ?rfé?(?rgum——equivalent ¥22,500
the General Meeting of - 113 749 of total (maximum)

"Shareholders held on

“Juine 26, 2 OOB outstanding shares)

On an ongoing basis, management will carefully
consider—in conjunction with a variety of factors, including
operating results and market conditions—the full range of
options available to help the Company meet its equity strategy

objectives.

Fiscal 2001 Compared with Fiscal 2000

Revenues

In fiscal 2001, ended March 31, 2002, owing to generally
solid results in each category, JSAT posted consolidated rev-
enues of ¥40,783 million, up 6.9% compared with fiscal
2000, ended March 31, 2001.

o Telecommunications Business Services

Consolidated revenues increased 10.2%, to ¥12,976 million.
Major factors contributing to the revenue increase were: (1)
the purchase of a majority stake in SNET; and (2) growth in
international services, including video transmission services
and the provision of Interner backbone capacity in the Asian
region. During fiscal 2001, some telecommunica-
tions business services were adversely affected by
the prolonged economic stlump, as well as by the
downward pressure on prices in terrestrial networks.
Certain major customers reduced usage volumes,
leading to declines in revenues in some categories.
However, several new applications were introduced,
including content distribution to multimedia termi-
nals installed at restaurant chains across Japan and

other locations.

» Satellite Broadcasting Services
Consolidated revenues rose 6.5%, to ¥18,000 mil-
lion. Contributing significantly to this increase was

the growth in the four-annual-step tariff (rising




annually for the first four years before leveling off) paid by
broadcasters under long-term contract. Another factor was the
commencement of services by some of the 14 newly licensed
broadcasters (12 companies providing 16 standard television
channels and two companies providing three data channels)
that were approved by the Ministry of Public Management,
Home Aftairs, Posts and Telecommunications in September
2001. However, the total number of licensed broadcasters
using the SKY PerfecTV/ platform declined slightly owing to

industry consolidation and the withdrawal of some operators.

» Telecommunications Carrier Services

Consolidated revenues decreased 2.1%, to ¥8,732 million.
Revenues based on long-term contracts with the NTT Group,
which was reorganized in March 2000, were steady, but a
decline was recorded this fiscal year owing to the termination

of some contracts that were entered into prior to March 2000.

* Other

Other revenues, on a consolidated basis, increased 91.7%, to
¥1,074 million. In addition to ongoing revenues from satellite
control services provided to the NTT Group, new revenue
sources—including joint research projects relating to “bridg-
ing the digital divide”—also helped boost revenues in other

services.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased 9.1%, to ¥29,458 million, As a
proportion of revenues, operating expenses rose 1.5 percent-
age points, o 72.2%.

Cost of services climbed 20.8%, to ¥7,850 million. Cost
of services mainly consists of uplink costs for SKY PerfecTV!
broadcasts and some telecommunications business services, in-
orbit insurance and satellite operation costs. Uplink costs rose
9.7%, to ¥3,049 million, mainly due to the growth in satellite
broadcasting services, while in-orbit insurance premiums
increased 6.2%, to ¥1,896 million. Cost of services was also
pushed up by the inclusion of newly consolidated subsidiary,
SNET.

Sales and marketing expenses, which mainly represent
advertising and promotional expenses, declined 5.9%, to
¥2,023 million.

Depreciation and amortization expenses grew 6.8%, to
¥16,476 million, mainly owing to the first full year of depre-
ciation incurred on JCSAT-110, which was launched in
October 2000; adjustments to the estimarted useful life of
certain other communications satellites; and the inclusion

of SNET in consolidation.
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General and administrative expenses rose 15.8%, to
¥2,897 million. This was mainly due to an increase in person-
nel expenses accompanying growth in the number of employ-
ees, as well as higher rent expenses following the relocation of
our headquarters in December 2001.

As a result of the above-mentioned changes in revenues
and operating expenses, operating income grew 1.4%, to
¥11,325 million.

Other Income (Expenses)
Interest expenses decreased 22.4%, to ¥1,388 million, owing
to repayments of long-term debt on and ahead of schedule.
Equity in losses of affiliated companies declined 72.6%, to
¥244 million, mainly due to reduced losses at the Group’s
affiliate NTT Satellite Communications Inc. (NTTSC).
Other—net fell 75.0%, to ¥301 million, mainly owing to
a ¥36 million loss on sale of investments—net, compared
with an ¥842 million gain in the previous year, and other fac-
tors. Other factors included ¥233 million in office relocation

cost and a ¥295 million loss on write-down of investments.

Income Taxes
The effective tax rate declined 3.5 percentage points, to
43.6%. This was mainly due to lower equity in losses of

affiliated companies.

Net Income and Comprehensive Income

From fiscal 2001, JSAT’s financial accounts include two
consolidated subsidiaries. Minority interests in income of
subsidiaries totaled ¥24 million.

Net income climbed 9.4%, to ¥5,609 million, and net
income per share of common stock rose 5.0%, to ¥14,639.
During the period under review, there was no dilution of net
income per share. In fiscal 2000, basic net income per share of
common stock was ¥13,937 and diluted net income per share
of common stock was ¥13,935,

The market value of equity securities held by JSAT in
SKY Perfect Communications, at March 31, 2002, was signif-
icantly lower than at March 31, 2001. This, and other factors,
led to unrealized holding losses arising during the period of
¥1,497 million. Other comprehensive income, net of tax,
included foreign currency translation adjustments of ¥184
million related to the newly established consolidated
subsidiary, JSAT International Inc.

As a result of the above factors, comprehensive income for
fiscal 2001 rotaled ¥4,314 million, compared with ¥10,971

million for the previous period.




Consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

Name of company Equity stake held by JSAT

 Sateliite Network, Inc. | 67.00%
JSAT International Inc. | 100.00%
Japan CableCast inc. ' | 100.00%
NTT Satellite Communications inc. | 35.94%
Pay Per View Japan, Inc. | 20.00%

{As of July 2003)

Caplital Reseurces

Basic Policy
Currently, JSAT operates eight satellites, and most of the
Company’s revenues are derived from these satellites in che
form of fees for the use of transponder capacity. To maintain
and expand these revenues, it is necessary to replace satellites
as they near the end of their operational lifetimes, which range
from approximately 11 years to approximately 17 years.
Depreciation of satellites, which are the Company’s main type
of fixed asser, is computed under the straight-line method,
using periods that are determined by the expected lifetime
of onboard fuel, until the book value is reduced to zero.
Therefore, if the Company was able to spread out the invest-
ments in its satellite fleet according to the average operational
lifetime of its satellites, the investment cycle would roughly
correspond with the depreciation schedule. That is to say,
it would be possible to meer property and equipment
investment requirements relating to the satellite fleet by allo-
cating an amount similar to the depreciation and amortization
expense. However, in practice, the satellite investment cycle
vaties according to the different operational lifetime of each
satellite, making it extremely difficult to
maintain a balanced investment cycle. The
ability to flexibly finance cash shortfalls is
crucial for the operation of our business
because in some fiscal years the amount of
investment required may exceed
depreciation and amortization expense or
net cash provided by operating activities.

It is also the Company’s policy to carry
out investment over and above that which is
necessary simply to maintain the existing

fleet. For example, when existing satellites

are replaced, additional functions or extra 01/3

capacity may be added to the new satellites.

In addition 1o augmenting effective free cash

Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities and
Capital Expenditures
(Millions of yen)

12,428

02/3

[ Net cash provided by operating activities
Caphtal expenditures
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flow, which excludes the cost of maintaining the existing
satellite fleet, the Company is commirtted ro making strategic
investments that will increase its revenue base through flexible
financing activities. At the same time, while uncertainty con-
tinues to hamper the domestic financial sector, it is JSAT’s

intention to maintain an enhanced level of liquidity.

Capital Expenditures

Based on the above policies, JSAT carried out several major
property and equipment investments and acquisition of other
assets, totaling approximately ¥18,891 million, during fiscal
2002. These included ¥10,920 million for the procurement of
satellite launch vehicles, ¥3,570 million for the transter of
satellite ownership from NTT Eastc and NTT West, ¥1,473
million as part of the procurement cost of Horizons-1, due

to be launched during fiscal 2003, and ¥904 million on
construction of a new facility at the Company’s Yokohama

Satellite Control Center.

Cash Flows
Cash flows during fiscal 2002 are summarized below.

Net cash provided by operating activities increased 29.8%,
to ¥25,867 million. This increase, reflecting a steady
expansion of operations, led to the Company’s highest-ever
operating cash flow. Notable items included net income of
¥6,182 million, up 10.2%, and depreciation and amortization
totaling ¥16,698 million, which was 1.3% higher than the
previous term.

Net cash used in investing activities grew 86.3%, to
¥30,065 million. Significant factors contributing to this rise
were payments for property and equipment, which rose
49.0%, to ¥18,432 million, and payments for purchases of
short-term investments and other investments of ¥34,953
million, compared with ¥23,620 million in
the previous period. In the period under
review, the Company carried out investments
in companies with future growth potential in
related business areas, including Link and
25867 Share K.X. Also included in payments for
purchases of short-term investments and other
investments was ¥11,020 million for short-
term and long-term investment securities
acquired for the purpose of fund
management.

Net cash provided by financing activities

S iy S

03/3 amounted to ¥4,870 million, compared with

net cash used in financing activities of ¥9,590

million in the previous period. Although a shift



to short-term borrowings has accompanied repayments of
long-term borrowings, proceeds from issuance of convertible
bonds (euro-yen maturing in 2007) amounted to ¥20,063
million. In addition to changing the ratio of long-term to
short-term debr, since the convertible bonds are zero-coupon,
the cost of fund procurement has been substantially reduced.
Other payments included ¥2,307 million in payments to
acquire treasury stock and payments for cash dividends
amounting o ¥1,894 million.

As a result of the aforementioned changes, cash and cash

equivalents at end of year increased 73.2%, to ¥1,500 million.
Corporate Governance

In line with the management objective of maximizing corpo-
rate value and as a company continuously working to bear

the scrutiny of all investors, JSAT aims to realize a system of
corporate governance emphasizing a high degree of manage-
ment transparency. For more details on JSAT’s corporate gov-

ernance systems, please refer to page 8 of this report.
Research and Development

JSAT is involved in next-generation research ro develop opti-
mal satellite-based communications systems, with a special
focus on the role of satellites in the convergence of broadcast-
ing and telecommunications and the shift to broadband and

mobile Internet.

* Next-generation Satellite Systems

To raise the level of value added delivered by JSAT’s satellite-
based services, several core areas of next-generation satellite
technology offer particularly promising focus for research.
These include applications for large anten-

nae, multibeam systems and satellite on-

board processors. The Company continues

Expenses

to evaluate the viability of services utilizing il ot ver)
illions of yen

such new technologies, including mobile
269

services. i
* Satellite Broadband (Internet Services) ;
In concert with the rapid penetration of

broadband in Japan, JSAT evaluated—

from a variety of perspectives—the

elements necessary for the provision of

broadband services that exploit the distinc- 01/3

tive features of satellite technology. These

included high-speed transmission

Research and Development

188

02/3
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technologies, techniques to compensate for rain attenuation,
technologies able to cope with a variety of service levels and
technologies facilitating the delivery of high-quality services at

low cost.

* Small VSAT:

As an evolutionary development from the small VSAT, the
Company is pursuing basic research and development into
systems that enhance operability and portability in mobile

applications. JSAT also pushed ahead with development of
technologies that can be used in conjunction with satellite

broadband, including the assessment of video transmission
technology that utilizes a compact, high-resolution video

encoder.

* Other

Overseas, in recent years much attention has been focused
on satellite usage for mobile applications. JSAT also aims
to provide services in this area and is preparing to run
demonstration tests.

In the area of lens antennae, the Company has developed
a range of different-diameter antennae to enhance markerabil-
ity. JSAT believes the availability of such antennae will
promote the adoprtion of satellite communications among
usets that have very restricted space in which to install anten-
nae, and among customers that wish to use multiple sartellites
simultaneously.

In addition, the Company is pursuing various other
research topics, including techniques to compensate for rain
attenuation, which is a crucial issue in Ku-band and Ka-band
communications, and protection of satellite antennae from
different kinds of microwave static and interference.

The Company’s research and development
expenses totaled ¥212 million in fiscal 2002.

Quitlonlk for Fiseal 2003

From fiscal 2003, JSAT will change its service
classifications, to use the following three classi-
212 fications: Nerwork-Related Services; Broadcast
and Video Discribution Services; and Orther
Services.
In the Company’s outlook for fiscal 2003,
building on its base of long-term service con-

tracts with customers, which provide some

03/3 degree of insulacion from the negative effects of
the economic cycle, JSAT anticipates revenue

growth through its ongoing efforts to develop



new business opportunities. Owing to the expansion of
telecommunications carrier services operated on behalf of the
NTT Group and nerwork-related services, including interna-
tional services, the Company forecasts revenues totaling
¥45,400 million.

However, owing to an increase in cost of services and
other factors, we forecast operating income of ¥11,300
million, net income of ¥6,000 million and basic net income
per share of ¥15,856.02.

Risk Facters

* Satellite Launch Risk and Operational Failure Risk

As JSAT’s business relies on the operation of a fleet of sat-
ellites, there is inherent risk involving possible launch failure
and in-orbit operational failure (breakdown, excessive fuel
consumption, collision with space debris, control problems).
To be prepared for such eventualities, JSAT takes out launch
and in-orbit insurance covering all of its satellites. Launch
insurance covers satellite manufacture costs, relaunch costs
and the cost of obraining new insurance. However, not all
costs that may result from satellite launch failure are covered
by such insurance.

In-orbit insurance is based on the satellite’s book value
and does not cover replacement cost. The Company
maintains one satellite in orbit exclusively for emergency
backup use. However, the backup satellite may not be able to
replace all of a failed satellite’s capacity and cannot replace

transponder capacity on certain JSAT satellites.

¢ Insurance Risk

Following the September 11 terrorist atracks in the United
States and the war in Iraq in March 2003, premiums in the
aerospace insurance market have risen.

JSAT maintains in-orbit insurance cover on all its
satellites, which generally must be renewed every one or
wwo years. In fiscal 2002, JSAT renewed in-orbit insurance
cover on all its satellites. By employing fleet insurance,
the Company is making efforts to negotiate reductions in

insurance premiums.

* Impact of Fiber-Optic and DSL-Based Communications
Services

In recent years, based on various technology advances, user
costs in Japan for such communications services as optical
fiber and digital subscriber lines (DSL) have fallen substan-
dally. JSAT is exposed to the impact of such market changes.

In addition, trends in broadcasting utilizing terrestrial
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broadband networks may have an impact on JSAT’s

broadcasting-related businesses.

* Foreign Exchange Risk

While the Company’s revenues are denominated almost
entirely in Japanese yen, two of its major expenses—the con-
struction and the launch of new satellites—must be paid in
U.S. dollars. JSAT has entered into foreign exchange forward
contracts and foreign currency option contracts to manage its

exposute to fluctuations in the yen-dollar exchange rate.
Envirenmental Policy

To facilitate a rapid response to environmental issues, pro-
actively reduce environmental risks and promote energy sav-
ings, in November 2002 the Company formulated the “JSAT
Environmental Policy.” The key points of the policy are: (1)
the development of an information- and communications-
based society premised on both environmental protection and
convenience; (2) the operation of environment-friendly satel-
lite control centers; (3) the operation of offices promoting
awareness of environmental protection issues and the impor-
tance of everyday, individual actions; and (4) the use of mea-
surable rargets for activities and communication.

In December 2002, JSAT received ISO14001 certification

for its environmental management activities.
Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements that are
based on JSAT’s own projections and estimates. The markets
in which JSAT is active are extremely volatile, subject to rapid
shifts in technology, customer demands, prices, changes in
economic conditions, potential satellite failures and many
other variables. Due to the risks and uncerrainties involved,
actual results may differ materially from the content of these
forward-looking statements. Therefore, these forward-looking
statements should not be interpreted as representations that

such objectives will be fulfilled.




- Quarterly Data

JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries

Years Ended March 31,
Millions of Yen, Except Per Share Amounts
First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2003
Operating results
Revenues ¥ 10,647 ¥ 11,423 ¥ 11,494 ¥ 11,557 ¥ 45,121
Operating income 2,438 3,203 3,558 2,581 11,779
Ner income 1,048 1,902 1,925 1,308 6,182
Financial position
Tortal assets ¥178,778 ¥174,593 ¥171,214 ¥169,230 ¥ 169,230
Total shareholders’ equity 96,130 94,856 93,932 93,207 93,207
Cash flows
Net cash provided by operating activities ¥ 8,681 ¥ 5,726 ¥ 6,238 ¥ 5,223 ¥ 25,867
Other data
EBITDA ¥ 6,563 ¥ 7,624 ¥ 7,693 ¥ 6,813 ¥ 28,692
EBITDA margin (%) 61.6% 66.7% 66.9% 59.0% 53.6%
Earnings per share—basic (EPS) 2,734.90 4,982.18 5,083.86 3,448.00 16,248.95
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding 383,154 381,737 378,592 378,405 380,476
Millions of Yen, Except Per Share Amounts
First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2002
Operating results
Revenues ¥ 9,758 ¥ 9,652 ¥ 10,618 ¥ 10,755 ¥ 40,783
Operating income 3,102 2,665 3,132 2,426 11,325
Net income 1,527 1,251 1,668 1,163 5,609
Financial position
Total assets ¥162,389 ¥167,421 ¥168,477 ¥163,432 ¥ 163,432
* Total shareholders’ equity 93,551 93,103 95,043 96,907 96,907
Cash flows
Net cash provided by operating activities ¥ 4,130 ¥ 5,841 ¥ 4,794 ¥ 5,165 ¥ 19,930
Other data
EBITDA ¥ 6,958 ¥ 6,591 ¥ 7,500 ¥ 6915 ¥ 27,963
EBITDA margin (%) 71.3% 68.3% 70.6% 64.3% 68.6%
Earnings per share—basic (EPS) 3,984.41 3,265.93 4,354.34 3,033.90 14,638.58
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding 383,154 383,154 383,154 383,154 383,154
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§7©onsolidated Balance Sheets

i JSAT Corparation and Subsidiaries

March 31, 2002 and 2003

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Thousands of Yen (Note I)
ASSETS 2002 2003 2003
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 865,863 1,499,717 $ 12,709
Time deposits 4,500 2,000,000 16,949
Short-term investments (Note 2) 9,414,782 14,138,585 119,819
Accounts receivable (Note 3):
Trade 1,873,601 2,088,028 17,695
Loans 1,100,000 7,300,000 61,864
Other 1,287,831 260,259 2,206
Inventories 89,828 91,699 777
Prepaid expenses 2,283,357 2,811,899 23,830
Deferred income taxes (Note 12) 409,096 538,199 4,561
Other current assets 79,141 76,114 644
Total current assets 17,407,999 30,804,500 261,054
Investments:
Investments in affiliated companies (Note 3) 454,929 499,007 4,229
Other investments (Notes 2, 3 and 5) 21,627,515 12,265,133 103,942
Total investments 22,082,444 12,764,140 108,171
Property and equipment (Notes 3, 4, 14 and 15):
Land ‘ 2415491 2,667,571 22,607
Telecommunications satellites 164,301,077 146,916,260 1,245,053
Telecommunications equipment 19,809,696 17,554,983 148,771
Buildings and structures 3,763,216 4,921,827 41,710
Equipment and furniture 742,920 838,320 7,104
Construction in progress 24,447,166 19,020,062 161,187
Total 215,479,566 191,919,023 1,626,432
Accumulated depreciation (94,179,807)  (69,633,008) (590,110)
Net property and equipment 121,299,759 122,286,015 1,036,322
Deferred income taxes (Note 12) 143,749 638,807 5,414
Other assets 2,498,114 2,736,157 23,188
Total ¥163,432,065 ¥169,229,619 $1,434,149

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Thousands of Yen (Note 1)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2002 2003 2003
Current liabilities: v
Short-term borrowings (Note 5) ¥ 3,350,000 ¥ 2,800,000 $ 23,729
Current portion of long-term debt (Notes 3, 5 and 14) 12,287,196 8,198,732 69,481
Trade accounts payable 730,868 812,357 6,884
Accrued liabilities:
Interest 456,579 66,025 560
Taxes on income (Note 12) 1,776,340 2,953,007 25,025
Other 993,454 921,020 7,805
Advances from customers 759,723 2,374,908 20,126
Orther current liabilities 617,962 1,888,899 16,007
Tortal current liabilities 20,972,122 20,014,948 169,617
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt (Notes 3, 5 and 14) 39,168,789 32,465,745 275,133
Convertible bonds (Notes 5 and 14) - 20,000,000 169,492
Liability for severance payments (Note 6) 772,639 1,054,407 8,936
Deferred income taxes (Note 12) 3,064,770 - -
Other liabilities (Note 3) 1,973,011 1,885,638 15,980
Tortal long-term liabilities 44,979,209 55,405,790 469,541
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 15)
Minority Interests 574,003 602,261 5,104
Shareholders’ equity (Note 7):
Common stock: 53,769,570 53,769,570 455,674
authorized, 450,000 shares
issued, 2002 and 2003-—383,154.5 shares
Additional paid-in capital 35,008,772 35,008,569 296,683
Retained earnings:
Appropriated for legal reserve 236,892 - -
Unappropriated 1,646,932 6,161,179 52,214
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains and losses on securities (Note 2) 6,061,544 723,603 6,132
Foreign currency translation adjustments 183,610 (111,105) (942)
Minimum pension liability adjustment - (43,843) (371)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income 6,245,154 568,655 4,819
' 96,907,320 95,507,973 809,390
Less treasury stock, at cost (2002—0.5 shares, 2003—4,749.5 shares) (589) (2,301,353) (19,503)
Total shareholders’ equity 96,906,731 93,206,620 789,887
Total ¥163,432,065 ¥169,229,619 $1,434,149
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Consolidated Statements of [hcome

JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Thousands of Yen (Note 1)
2001 2002 2003 2003
Revenues (Notes 3, 9 and 14) ¥38,160,433 ¥40,782,817  ¥45,121,140 $382,383
Operating expenses:
Cost of services (Note 3) 6,500,438 7,849,701 10,206,361 86,494
Sales and marketing (Note 10) 2,150,195 2,022,850 2,370,217 20,087
Depreciation and amortization (Note 4) 15,420,094 16,475,662 16,697,698 141,506
General and administrative expenses 2,500,717 2,896,662 3,418,327 28,969
Loss on property and equipment 418,374 212,943 649,946 5,508
Total operating expenses 26,989,818 29,457,818 33,342,549 282,564
Operating income 11,170,615 11,324,999 11,778,591 99,819
Other income (expenses):
Interest expenses (1,787,512) (1,387,680) (922,757) (7,820)
Equity in earnings (losses) of affiliated companies (Note 3) (889,071) (243,696) 77,318 655
Other—net (Notes 2, 3 and 11) 1,201,460 300,691 176,726 1,497
Other expenses—net (1,475,123) (1,330,685) (668,713) (5,668)
Income before income taxes and minority interests 9,695,492 9,994,314 11,109,878 94,151
Income taxes (Note 12):
Current 4,638,857 4,263,015 4,692,983 39,771
Deferred (68,474) 98,931 206,306 1,748
Total 4,570,383 4,361,946 4,899,289 41,519
Income before minority interests 5,125,109 5,632,368 6,210,589 52,632
Minority interests in income of subsidiaries - (23,537) (28,257) (239)
Net income ¥ 5,125,109 ¥ 5,608,831 ¥ 6,182,332 $ 52,393
Yen U.S. Dollars
2001 2002 2003 2003
Per share of common stock (Notes 8 and 13):
Earnings per share—basic ¥13,936.64 ¥14,638.58 ¥16,248.95 $137.70
Earnings per share—diluted 13,935.31 14,638.58 15,175.46 128.61

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive iIncome

JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Thousands of Yen (Note 1)
2001 2002 2003 2003
Net income ¥ 5,125,109 ¥5,608,831 ¥6,182,332 $52,393
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (Note 7):
Unrealized gains and losses on securities:
Unrealized holding gains and losses arising during the period 6,334,756 (1,496,510) (5,379,031) (45,585)
Less reclassification adjustment for gains and losses
included in net income (488,765) 18,442 41,090 348
Nert unrealized gains and losses on securities 5,845,991 {1,478,068) (5,337,941) (45,237)
Foreign currency translation adjustments - 183,610 (294,715) (2,497)
Minimum pension liability adjustment - - (43,843) (372)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 5,845,991 (1,294,458) (5,676,499) (48,106)
Comprehensive income ¥10,971,100 ¥4,314,373 ¥ 505,833 $ 4,287

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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 Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Thousands of Yen (Note 1)
2001 2002 2003 2003

Common stock (Note 7):

Balance, beginning of year ¥43,250,820 ¥53,769,570 ¥53,769,570 $455,674

Issuance of common stock 10,518,750 - - -

Balance, end of year ¥53,769,570 ¥53,769,570 ¥53,769,570 $455,674
Additional paid-in capital (Note 7):

Balance, beginning of year ¥15,660,708 ¥35,044,079  ¥35,008,772 $296,685

Issuance of common stock 19,345,431 - - -

Warrants issued related to stock options (Notes 5 and 8) 37,940 (35,307) (203) )

Balance, end of year ¥35.,044,079 ¥35,008,772  ¥35,008,569 $296,683
Retained earnings (Note 7):

Appropriated for legal reserve

Balance, beginning of year - - ¥ 236,892 $ 2,007

Transfer from (to) unappropriated retained earnings . - ¥ 236,892 (236,892) (2,007)

Balance, end of year - ¥ 236892 ¥ - $ -

Unappropriated

Balance, beginning of year ¥(5,593,306) ¥ (468,197) ¥ 1,646,932 § 13,957

Net income 5,125,109 5,608,831 6,182,332 52,393

Cash dividends paid (2002 —¥8,500 per share, 2003—¥6,000) - (3,256,810) (1,904,977) (16,143)

Transfer from (t0) retained earnings appropriated for legal reserve - (236,892) 236,892 2,007

Balance, end of year ¥ (468,197 ¥ 1,646,932 ¥ 6,161,179 $ 52,214
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 7):

Balance, beginning of year ¥ 1,693,621 ¥ 7,539,612 ¥ 6,245,154 $ 52,925

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax 5,845,991 (1,294,458) (5,676,499) (48,106)

Balance, end of year ¥ 7,539,612 ¥ 6,245,154 ¥ 568,655 $ 4,819

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Thousands of Yen (Note 1)
2001 2002 2003 2003
Operating activities: .
Klet income ¥ 5,125,109 ¥ 5,608,831 ¥ 6,182,332 $ 52,393
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 15,420,094 16,475,662 16,697,698 141,506
Provision for doubtful receivables 57,173 338,601 187,099 1,586
Accrual for severance payments, less payments 116,267 179,337 207,524 1,759
Foreign currency transaction (gain) loss (133,684) (352,680) 64,236 544
Equity in (earnings) losses of affiliated companies 889,071 243,696 (77,318) (655)
Loss on property and equipment 418,374 212,943 649,946 5,508
(Gain) loss on sales or write-downs of other investments
and other assets—net (841,218) 330,114 307,786 2,608
Deferred income taxes (68,474) 98,931 206,306 1,748
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in trade accounts receivable (496,800) (153,020) (299,710) (2,540)
Increase in prepaid expenses (204,500) (372,854) (528,691) (4,480)
Increase (decrease) in trade accounts payable (928,925) (151,313) 81,489 691
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities—interest and other 590,486 (105,539) (460,648) (3,904)
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities—rtaxes on income 2,177,480 (2,049,239) 1,176,667 9,972
Increase (decrease) in advances from customers (69,949) (55,331) 1,615,185 13,688
Other—net 677,938 (317,863) (142,781) (1,211)
Net cash provided by operating activities 22,728,442 19,930,276 25,867,120 219,213
Investing activities:
Ac?luisition of time deposits (799,400) (9,000) (3,319,650) (28,133)
Collection of time deposits 294,900 640,950 1,235,000 10,466
Payments for property and equipment (15,621,690) (12,369,092) (18,431,835) (156,202)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment - 16,380 759 6
Payments for investments in affiliated companies (1,329,000) (1,738) - -
Proceeds from liquidation of affiliated companies - - 5,140 44
Payments for purchases of short-term investments
and other investments (46,381,084) (23,620,075) (34,953,398) (296,215)
Proceeds from sales of short-term investments
and other investments 42,403,939 16,062,671 32,302,424 273,749
Acquisition of other assets (169,458) (58,896) (458,826) (3,888)
Proceeds from sales of other assets - 2,488 - -
(Increase) decrease in short-term loans receivable—net (5,000,000) 3,900,000 (6,200,000) (52,542)
Acquisition of long-term loans receivable - - (244,330) (2,071)
Payments for business acquisitions, net of cash acquired - (703,974) — -
Net cash used in investing activities (26,601,793) (16,140,286) (30,064,716) (254,786)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 2,000,000 10,000,000 3,625,000 30,720
Repayments of short-term borrowings (2,000,000) (8,600,000) (4,175,000) (35,381)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings - 13,500,000 1,500,000 12,712
Repayments of long-term borrowings (20,168,340) (20,950,822) (11,413,904) (96,728)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds — - 20,062,958 170,025
Proceeds from issuance of bonds with detachable warrants 169,576 - - -
Repayments of redemption and buyback of bonds (171,000) - (4,500) (38)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 29,820,140 - - -
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper - 10,000,000 - -
Repayments of commercial paper - (10,000,000) - -
Payments to acquire treasury stock - - (2,306,586) (19,547)
Payments for cash dividends - (3,238,098) (1,893,772) (16,049)
Other (71,255) (301,562) (524,667) (4,447)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 9,579,121 (9,590,482) 4,869,529 41,267
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 12,690 208,736 (38,079) (323)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,718,460 (5,591,756) 633,854 5,371
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 739,159 6,457,619 865,863 7,338
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥ 6,457,619 ¥ 865,863 ¥ 1,499,717 $ 12,709
Supplemental information:
(E,ash paid during the year for:
Interest, net ogamounts capitalized ¥ 1,370,364 ¥ 1,627,257 ¥ 1,316,087 $ 11,153
Income taxes 2,381,301 6,292,552 3,518,117 29,815

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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' Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

) JSAT Corporation and Subsidiaries

1. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

JSAT Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
{together, the “Companies”) are primarily engaged in the
satellite telecommunications and broadcasting business through
8 satellites providing state-of-the-art satellite-based services
mainly in Japan.

The Companies’ principal lines of business are
telecommunications business services, satellite broadcasting
services and telecommunications carrier services.

Telecommunications business services include the provision
of domestic and international full-time and occasional satellite
transponder capacity to various customers, primarily
corporations, for their internal telecommunications networks.

Satellite broadcasting services consist of multi-channel
digiral broadcasting services through SKY Perfect
Communications Inc. (“SKY Perfect”). These services also
include the provision of operational support services to SKY
Perfect.

Telecommunications carrier services include the provision
of transponder capacity to NTT and related entities as part of,
or as alternative routing for, their telecommunications
necworks.

The Companies, in providing their various services, are
subject to the Telecommunications Business Law, the Radio
Law, the Broadcast Law and other related laws and regulations
of Japan.

Telecommunications satellites are subject to significant
risks, including launch failure, destruction and damage which
may result in rotal or partial loss, or prevent commercial
operation, of a satellite. The Companies have insurance
coverage that generally reimburses the Companies for all or a
substantial portion of the carrying value of the net assets that
may be affected by such events. Additonally, the Companies
operate one satellite for back-up purposes, so that the
Companies can supply the services continuously in the case of
launch and in-orbic failure.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America ("U.S. GAAP”) requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilicies at the date of these statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual resules could differ from those

estimates.

30

I1. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are stated
in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the
Company is incorporated and operates. The translation of
Japanese yen amounts into United States dollar amounts with
respect to the year ended March 31, 2003 is included solely for
the convenience of readers outside Japan and has been made at
the rate of ¥118=U.5.$1, the approximate exchange rate on
March 31, 2003. Such translation should not be construed
as a representation that the Japanese yen amounts could be
converted into United States dollars at the above or any
other rate.

The Companies and their affiliated companies maintain
their records and prepare their statutory financial statements
principally in-accordance with the Commercial Code of Japan
(the “Code”) by applying accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”). The Company, as a
regulated entity, also follows the Telecommunications Business
Law and other related accounting regulations for preparing
such financial statements.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
incorporate certain adjustments, which have not been entered in
the Companies’ general books of account and additional
disclosures, to conform with U.S. GAAP. Major adjustments
and disclosures include those relating to (1) accounting for leases,
(2) capiralization of interest costs, {3) accounting for compensated
absences, (4) employees’ benefit plans, (53) impairment of long-
lived assets, (6) common stock issue costs, (7) derivative financial
instruments and (8) stock-based compensation.

I1I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of

the accompanying consolidated financial statements are

summarized below.

(1) Consolidation and investments in affiliated companies
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries. Significant
inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated
in consolidation. Investments in affiliated companies
(companies owned 20% to 50% and corporate joint ventures)
are accounted for under the equity method, after appropriate
adjustments for inter-company profits and dividends. The excess
cost of investments in subsidiaries and affiliated companies over




the equity in the net assets at the date of acquisition was
principally being amortized over periods of 5 years. In accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill
acquired after June 30, 2001 is not amortized.

(2) Revenue recognition

The Companies enter into transponder utilization contracts
with customers to provide satellite transponder capacity and
consignment contracts to transmit customers’ broadcasting
programs.

Full-time dedicated telecommunications business services
and telecommunications carrier services are accounted for as
operating leases. Operating lease revenues are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Revenues from satellite broadcasting services are recognized
based on the contract terms on a monthly billing cycle basis.

Occasional dedicated telecommunications business and other
services revenues are recorded when the services are rendered to

customers.

(3) Foreign currency translation
All asset and liability accounts of a foreign subsidiary are
translated into Japanese yen at appropriate year-end exchange
rates and all income and expense accounts are translated at rates
that approximate those rates prevailing at the time of the
transactions. The resulting translation adjustments are
accumulated and reported as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income.

Foreign currency receivables and payables are translated
into Japanese yen at year-end exchange rates and resulting
exchange gains or losses are recognized currently in income.

(4) Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
equivalents are defined as highly liquid investments which include
short-term time deposits, generally with original maturities of
three months or less, that are readily convertible into cash and
have no significant risk of change in value.

(5) Inventories

Inventories, which mainly consist of preparatory parts of
telecommunications equipment, are stated at the lower of cost,
on the specific identification basis, or market.

(6) Short-term investments and other investments

In accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” unrealized gains
and losses on marketable equity securities and debt securities
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designated as available-for-sale, whose fair values are readily
determinable, are included as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income in a separate component of
shareholders’ equity, net of applicable taxes and debt securities
designated as held-to-maturity are stated at amortized cost.

Short-term investments other than markerable equity
securities and debt securities are stated at cost plus credired
earnings which approximates fair value.

Other investments other than marketable equity securities
and debt securities are investments in non-traded and
unaffiliated companies, investments in partnerships and non-
current time deposits. Investments in non-traded and
unaffiliated companies are stated at cost. If an other-than-
temporary impairment of these investments is considered to
have occurred, the cost basis of the individual security is
written down to equity in net assets of the investee.
Investments in partnerships are stated at cost plus a share of
profit and loss which approximates fair value. Non-current
time deposits are stated at cost which approximates fair value.

The cost of securities sold is determined based on the

moving average-cost method.

(7) Allowance for doubtful receivables

An allowance for doubtful receivables is established in amounts
considered to be appropriate based on the Companies’ past
credit loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses in
the receivables outstanding. 1n addition, an impairmenc loss is
recognized if the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted ar the loan’s effective interest rate is less than the
recorded investment,

(8) Property and equipment and depreciation
Property and equipment are stated at cost. The capitalized cost
of telecommunications satellites includes all construction costs,
launch costs, launch insurance, direct development costs and
capitalized interest. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and
renewals of relatively minor items are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation of property and equipment is provided by the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
refated assets. Estimated useful lives for property and
equipment are as principally follows:
Telecommunications satellites 11 to 17 years
Telecommunications equipment 2 to 12 years
3 to 47 years
3 to 12 years

Buildings and structures
Equipment and furniture

As the telecommunications industry is subject to rapid
technological changes, the Company may be required to revise



the estimated useful livesiof their telecommunications satellites.
Accordingly, the estimated useful lives are periodically reviewed
using current telemetry, tracking and control data including
remaining propellant. If a significant change in the estimated
useful lives is identified, the Companies account for such
changes on a prospective 'basis.

The cost and accumulated depreciation for property and
equipment sold, retired, or otherwise disposed of are relieved
from the accounts, and any resulting gains or losses are

reflected in income.

(9) Long-lived assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” long-lived assets
to be held and used are reviewed, by using future cash flow
which is not discounted, for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. The measurement of an
impairment loss for long:lived assets and certain identifiable
intangibles to be disposed of is based on the fair value less cost
to sell.

(10) Employees’ benefit plans and directors’ severance
indemnities

The Companies have unfunded severance indemniry plans
covering substantially all of their employees other than directors
and executive officers. The costs of the unfunded plans are
accrued based on amounts determined using actuarial methods
in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 87, “Employers’
Accounting for Pensions.”

The Companies alsoparticipate in a contributory multi-
employer pension plan covering all of their employees. The costs
of the multi-employer plan are accrued based on the
contribution amounts.

The costs of the severance indemnity plans for directors
and executive officers are accrued based on the vested benefit
obligation, which is the amount required to be paid if all
directors and executive officers terminated their appointments
at each balance sheet date.

(11) Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with SFAS

No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under this statement,
the tax effect of temporary differences between the financial
statements and income tax basis of assers and liabilities is
recognized as deferred income taxes, using enacted tax rates
applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected
to affect raxable income. The effect on deferred rax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
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period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance
is provided for any portion of the deferred tax assets where it is
considered more likely than not that they will not be realized.

(12) Derivative financial instruments

On April 1, 2001, the Companies adopted SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging
Activities—an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133,”
which establishes accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments and for hedging activities. SFAS No.
133, as amended, requires that derivatives be reporred as assets
or liabilities at fair value and that changes in the fair value be
accounted for depending on the intended use of the derivative
and the resulting designation.

(13) Net income per share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing net
income by the weighted-average number of common stock
outstanding for the period and diluted EPS reflects the
potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock resulted in the issuance of
common stock.

(14) Stock-based compensation

The Companies measure compensation costs for stock-based
compensation plans using the intrinsic value method of
accounting as prescribed in Accounting Principles Board
Option (“APB”) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interpretations. The Companies have
adopted those provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” which require disclosures of the
pro forma effects on net income and EPS as if compensation
cost had been recognized based upon the estimated fair value at
the dare of grant for options award.

IV. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2001 and 2002
financial statements to conform to the classifications used in
2003.

V. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD

Business combinations and goodwill and other intangible assets
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the
“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS
No. 141 requires business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001 to be accounted for using the purchase method of




accounting. It also specifies the types of acquired intangible
assets that are required to be recognized and reported separately
from goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and
certain other intangibles no longer be amortized, but instead be
tested for impairment at least annually. The Companies
adopted SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142 on April 1, 2002.
The adoption of these statements did not have a material effect
on the Companies’ consolidated financial position and results
of operations.

Asset retirement obligations

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143 requires
entities to record the fair value of a liability for an asset
retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred and
requires that the amount recorded as a liability be capitalized by
increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset.
Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability is accreted to the
ultimate amount anticipated to be paid, and is also adjusted for
revisions to the timing or amount of estimated cash flows. The
capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related
asset. Upon settlement of the liability, an entity either settles
the obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss
on settlement. The Companies adopted SFAS No. 143 on
April 1, 2002. The adoption of this statement did not have a
material effect on the Companies’ consolidated financial
position and results of operations.

Impairment or disposal of long-lived assets

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets.” SFAS
No. 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121. SFAS No. 144 retains the
fundamental provisions of SFAS Ne. 121 for (1) recognition
and measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be
held and used; and (2) measurement of the impairment of
long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale. The Companies
adopted SFAS No. 144 on April 1, 2002. The adoption of
SEAS No. 144 did not have a material effect on the Companies’
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of
FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145
amended SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for leases,” to eliminate an
inconsistency between the required accounting for sale-leaseback
transactions and the required accounting for certain lease
modifications that have economic effects that are similar to
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sale-leaseback transactions. SFAS No. 145 also amends other
existing authoritative pronouncements to make various
technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their
applicability under change conditions. The adoption of SFAS
No. 145 did not have a material effect on the Companies’
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Costs associated with exit or disposal activities

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting
for Cost Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS

No. 146 addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs
associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging
Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for
Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to
Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal
activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of
SEAS No. 146 did not have a marerial effect on the Companies’

consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Acquisitions of certain financial institutions

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147,
“Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions.” SFAS No. 72,
“Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift
Institutions,” and FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 9,
“Applying APB Opinions No. 16 and 17 When a Savings and
Loan Association or a Similar Insticution Is Acquired in a
Business Combination Accounted for by the Purchase
Method,” provided interpretive guidance on the application of
the purchase method to acquisitions of financial institutions.
Except for transactions between two or more murtual
enterprises, SFAS No. 147 removes acquisitions of financial
institutions from the scope of both SFAS No. 72 and FIN No. 9
and requires that those transactions be accounted for in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The adoption
of SFAS No. 147 did not have a material effect on the
Companies’ consolidated financial position and results of
operations.

Stock-based compensation

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—T ransition and
Disclosure.” This statement provides additional alternative
transttion approaches under SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 148 is
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. The
adoption of SFAS No. 148 did not have a material effect on
the Companies’ consolidated financial position and results of
operations.




Guarantor’s accounting and disclosure requirements for
guarantees

In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN No. 45, “Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others.” The
initial recognition and measurement under provisions of FIN
No. 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002, and require that
the Companies record a liability, if any, for the fair value of
such guarantees in the balance sheet. The adoption of FIN

No. 45 did not have a material effect on the Companies’
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Consolidation of variable interest entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN No. 46 addresses
consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities
{(*VIE”) when certain characteristics are present. FIN No. 46
applies immediately to VIEs created after January 31, 2003,
and to VIEs in which an enterprise obtains an interest after that
date. FIN No. 46 is required to be adopted for fiscal years
beginning after June 135, 2003. Management has not yet
determined the impact, if any, the adoption of FIN No. 46 will
have on the Companies’consolidated financial position and
results of operations.

2. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

In accordance with SFAS No. 115, the Companies’ marketable
equity securities were classified as available-for-sale securities

and the Companies’ debt securities were classified as available-
for-sale securities or held-to-maturity securities.

At March 31, 2002 and 2003, the aggregate cost, fair value and gross unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale

securities and held-to-maturicy securities are as follows:

Thousands of Yen

2002

Cost Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥10,656,072 ¥10,563,226 ¥(100,572) ¥21,118,726
Debt securities 5,991,953 2,926 (11,191) 5,983,688
Held-to-maturity securities 92,577 - (1,074) 91,503
Thousands of Yen
2003
Cost Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥10,395,536 ¥ 1,218,971 ¥ (76,970) ¥11,537,537
Debrt securities 13,183,210 118,716 (9,676) 13,292,250
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2003
Cost Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities $ 88,098 $ 10,330 $ (652) % 97,776
Debrt securities 111,722 1,006 (82) 112,646
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The proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities and gross realized gains and losses on these sales for the years ended March 31,

2001, 2002 and 2003 are as follows:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2001 2002 2003 2003
Proceeds from sales ‘ ¥847,698 ¥186,539 ¥5,405,328 $45,808
Gross realized gains ¥842,698 ¥ 9,540 ¥ 38,274 $ 324
Gross realized losses - (41,337) (109,119) (924)
Net realized gains (losses) ¥842,698 ¥(31,797) ¥ (70,845) $ (600)
Debr securities classified as available-for-sale at March 31, 2003 mature as follows:
Thousands of Yen
Cost Fair value
Contracrual maturities:
Within 1 year ¥ 1,550,678 ¥ 1,552,327
After 1 year through 5 years 10,171,051 10,281,156
After 5 years through 10 years 201,060 201,480
After 10 years 101,441 102,580
Total ¥12,024,230 ¥12,137,543
Thousands of U.S. Dotlars
Cost Fair value
Contractual maturities:
Within 1 year $ 13,141 $ 13,155
. After 1 year through 5 years -86,195 87,128
After 5 years through 10 years 1,704 1,707
After 10 years 860 871
Tortal $101,900 $102,861
Investments other than marketable equity securities and approximate fair value and (2) other cost basis investments,
debt securities include (1) short-term investments in money non-traded equity securities, investments in partnerships and
management funds and trust of note receivable, etc., of non-current time deposits of ¥1,343,159 thousand and
¥2,504,147 thousand and ¥232,403 thousand ($1,970 ¥1,341,528 thousand ($11,369 thousand) at March 31, 2002
thousand) at March 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively, which and 2003, respectively.

35



3. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED COMPANIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NTTSC
The Company has a 35.94% ownership interest in NTT Satellice
Communications Inc. (“NTTSC”) which was established on April
1, 1998 and is engaged in the provision of internet access services
and intraner services in Japan. The Company made an additional
equity investment in NTTSC of ¥804,000 thousand on September
29, 2000. Losses of the Company’s equity investment by
proportional share of NTTSC’s net losses were ¥804,000
thousand for the year ended March 31, 2001. Additionally, based
on agreements between shareholders of NTTSC, the Company has
recorded losses of ¥75,580 thousand and ¥181,378 thousand in
excess of its equity investment at March 31, 2001 and 2002,
respectively, which have been included in other liabilities. On
March 31, 2003, the Company has recorded earnings of ¥33,240
thousand ($282 thousand) under these agreements.

NTTSC uses the Company's satellites for internet access
services and intranet services via satellite. Revenues for these

services for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

were ¥1,400,443 thousand, ¥1,434,843 thousand and
¥1,295,009 thousand ($10,975 thousand), respectively.

Additionally, the Company has an agency service agreement for
the uplink operation with NTTSC. Cost of services under the
agreement for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003
were ¥215,869 thousand, ¥525,756 thousand and ¥481,613
thousand ($4,081 thousand), respectively.

PPV]

The Company purchased 20% ownership of Pay Per View

Japan, Inc. (“PPV]”) from certain shareholders on September

29, 2000. PPV] is a provider of pay-per-view programming

and a licensed broadcaster over SKY PerfecTV/ using the

Companies’ satellites. Revenues for satellite broadcasting

services for the six-month period ended March 31, 2002 and
the year ended March 31, 2003 were ¥790,571 thousand and
¥934,012 thousand ($7,915 thousand), respectively.

Summarized combined financial information for primarily NTTSC and PPV] as of March 31, 2002 and 2003 and for the years ended

March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 is presented below:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2003 2003
Current assets ¥2,014,382 ¥1,525,543 $12,928
Property and equipment—net of accumulated depreciation 889,735 991,419 8,402
Other assets 694,870 675,375 5,724
Total assets ¥3,598,987 ¥3,192,337 $27,054
Current liabilities ¥4,376,644 ¥2,991,519 $25,352
Non-current liabilities 150,715 852,187 7,222
Shareholders’ equity (928,372) (651,369) (5,520)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ¥3,598,987 ¥3,192,337 $27,054
Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2001 2002 2003 2003
Revenues ¥10,054,251 ¥13,870,815 ¥17,118,307 $145,070
Net income (loss) (1,523,972) (101,487) 311,282 2,638
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The carrying amount of investments in affiliated companies
at March 31, 2003 includes ¥387,248 thousand ($3,282
thousand), representing the unamortized balance of the excess
cost of investments over the affiliated companies’ equity in the
net assets, at the date of acquisition. No dividends from
affiliated companies were received for the years ended March
31, 2001, 2002 and 2003.

SKY Perfect ‘
The Company has a 7.01% equity investment in SKY Perfect,
which are available-for-sale equity securities, at March 31, 2003.
The Company purchased additional shares of SKY Perfect for
¥5,748,045 thousand from a certain shareholder of the
Company on June 29, 2001. The carrying amount of this
investment, which has been included in other investments, was
¥19,754,280 thousand and ¥10,739,430 thousand ($91,012
thousand) at March 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively. This
investment was pledged as collateral for certain long-term debt
of the Company at March 31, 2002 and 2003 (See Note 5).

The Company provides SKY Perfect with satellite
broadcasting services. Revenues from these services were
¥3,134,851 thousand, ¥3,985.678 thousand and ¥4,481,992
thousand ($37,983 thousand) for the years ended March 31,
2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

Additionally, the Company has entered into agreements for
agency services with SKY Perfect related to uplink operations.
Cost of services under these agreements was ¥2,073,951 thousand,
¥2,161,905 thousand and ¥3,017,262 thousand ($25,570 thousand)
for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

NTT and related entities

On March 31, 2000, NTT Communications Corporation
(“NTTC”) became an 18.60% shareholder (currently 16.64%
as of March 31, 2003) as a result of the Company’s issuance of
62,900 shares of common stock. In connection with the equity
transaction, the Company purchased their ownership interest
(60.33%) in two satellites, the related telecommunications
equipment and the related equipment and furniture for
¥32,648,400 thousand. On July 1, 2002, the Company made
an additional ownership interest (19.34%) in these two satellites
for ¥3,570,000 thousand ($30,254 thousand).

The Company provides telecommunications business
services and relecommunications carrier services to NTT and
related entities. Revenues from these services were ¥9,085,777
thousand, ¥9,454,343 thousand and ¥10,300,073 thousand
($87,289 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002
and 2003, respectively.

The Company sold, based on marker price, available-for-sale
investment securities for ¥1,267,320 thousand and ¥845,496
thousand to NTTC on March 31, 2000 and on April 28, 2000,
respectively. Realized securities gains on these sales were
¥1,264,320 thousand and ¥842,496 thousand, respectively.

Other shareholders

The Company had short-term loans receivable from
subsidiaries of certain shareholders totaling ¥1,100,000
thousand as of March 31, 2002.

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Depreciation expense of property and equipment, including
assets recorded under capital leases which are described in
Note 14, for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003
was ¥15,103,776 thousand, ¥16,193,974 thousand and
¥16,387,903 thousand ($138,881 thousand), respectively.
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Capitalized interest in connection with construction of
major facilities, mainly telecommunications satellites, for the
years ended March 31, 2001 and 2002 was ¥129,974 thousand
and ¥85,706 thousand.



5. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS, LONG-TERM DEBT AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2002 and 2003 consist of the following:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2003 2003
Interest rate™ Interest rate™
Bank borrowings ¥3,350,000 0.401%  ¥2,800,000 0.204% $23,729

*The interest rates represent weighted-average rates of outstanding balances at March 31, 2002 and 2003. All shore-term borrowings at March
31, 2002 and 2003 are denominated in Yen.

Long-term debt at March 31, 2002 and 2003 consists of the following:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2003 2003

Long-term debt with collateral:
Government-owned bank, maturing serially through 2008—
annual interest rates of 2.10%—3.18% ¥16,984,360  ¥12,750,580 $108,056
Long-term debt without collateral:
Banks and insurance companies, maturing serially through 2008—

annual interest rates of 0.292%-5.20% (2002) and 0.27%-5.20% (2003) 29,442,394 23,993,070 203,331
Government-owned bank, maturing serially through 2008—
annual interest rate of 1.30% 2,093,200 1,862,400 15,783
Non-trade accounts payable due through 2006—non-interest bearing 1,340,800 1,605,600 8,522
Unsecured bonds with detachable warrants, due 2006
redeemable before due date—annual interest rate of 1.90077% (2002) 4,500 R ' -
Capital lease obligations (See Note 14) 1,590,731 1,052,827 8,922
Total 51,455,985 40,664,477 344,614
Less current maturities 12,287,196 8,198,732 69,481
Long-term debt, less current maturities ¥39,168,789  ¥32,465,745 $275,133
On April 3, 2002, the Company issued ¥20,000,000 The Company entered into interest rate swap agreements
thousand ($169,492 thousand) principal amount of zero coupon to manage interest rate exposures related to certain debt
convertible bonds due 2007. The bonds are convertible into shares agreements. The floating interest rates for interest rate swap
of common stock until March 16, 2007 with a conversion price agreements are generally based on the six-month LIBOR
of ¥739,000 ($6,263), subject to adjustment in certain events. {London Interbank Offered Rate) (See Note 16).
The Company may redeem all the bonds at their principal At March 31, 2003, the Companies had unused lines of
amount before due date in certain limited circumstances (See credit that totaled ¥6,789,000 thousand ($57,534 thousand).
Note 13). Under these programs, the Companies are authorized to obtain
Other investments, which were available-for-sale equity short-term financing at prevailing interest rates.
securities, with a carrying value of ¥10,739,430 thousand ($91,012 Certain short-term and long-term bank borrowings are
thousand) were pledged as collateral for certain long-term debt made under agreements which, as is customary in Japan,
of the Company at March 31, 2003 (See Note 3). provide that the bank may, under certain conditions, require
On June 14, 2000, the Company issued floating interest rate the borrower to provide collateral or guarantors with respect to
bonds with 39 detachable warrants related to stock options. Unuil the borrowings, and that the bank may treat any collateral,
March 31, 2003, all bonds had been redeemed (See Notes 8 and 13). whether furnished as security for short-term or long-term
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borrowings or otherwise, as collateral for all indebtedness to
such banks.

Certain agreements require the borrower, upon the request
of the lender, to reduce ourstanding loans before scheduled
macurity dates when the lender concludes that the borrower
is able to reduce such loans through increased earnings or

through the proceeds from the sale of common stock or bonds
and notes. During the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2003,
the Companies did not receive any requests of the kind
described above, and there is no expectation that any such
requests will be made.

Maturities of long-term debt subsequent to March 31, 2003 are as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31: Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2004 (included in current liabilities) ¥ 8,198,732 $ 69,481
2005 12,041,964 102,051
2006 8,401,429 71,199
2007 9,091,291 77,045
2008 2,529,506 21,436
2009 and thereafter 401,555 3,402
Total ¥40,664,477 $344,614

6. EMPLOYEES’ BENEFIT PLANS AND DIRECTORS’ SEVERANCE INDEMNITIES

The Companies have unfunded defined benefit severance
indemnity plans under which all of their employees, other than
directors and executive officers, are entitled, under most
circumstances, upon mandatory retirement at normal
retirement age or earlier termination of employment, to lump-
sum severance payment based on the level of compensation at
retirement or earlier termination of employment, length of
service and other factors.

The Company also participates in a contributory muld-
employer pension plan covering ali of their employees. The

benefits for the multi-employer pension plan are based on a
standard remuneration schedule under the Welfare Pension
Insurance Law, the length of participation and other factors.
However, assets contributed by an employer are not segregated
in a separate account or restricted to provide benefits only to
employees of that employer, including the Company. Contributions
to the multi-employer plan, which are recognized as paid, were
¥33,228 thousand, ¥39,095 thousand and ¥64,313 thousand
($545 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and
2003, respectively.

Net periodic pension cost of the unfunded plans for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 consisted of the following components:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2001 2002 2003 2003

Service cost—benefits earned during the period ¥57,978 ¥ 76,033 ¥ 99,308 $ 842
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 12,438 13,968 15,587 132
Amortization of unrecognized obligation at transition 6,533 6,533 6,533 55
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost - - (3,591) (30)
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial loss 2,071 4431 5,563 47
Net periodic pension cost ¥79,020 ¥100,965 ¥123,400 $1,046
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The changes in benefit obligation and composition of amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets are as follows:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2003 2003
Changes in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at December 31, 2000 and 2001 ¥524,911 ¥784,708 $6,650
Service cost 76,033 99,308 842
Interest cost 13,968 15,587 132
Plan amendment - (81,406) (690)
Acruarial loss 34,576 36,499 309
Acquisition 135,220 - -
Settlement - (17,212) (146)
Benefit obligation at December 31, 2001 and 2002 784,708 837,484 7,097
Direct benefit payments during the three-month periods ended
March 31, 2002 and 2003 (196) (96) 1
Unrecognized net obligation at transition being recognized over 18 years (84,918) (78,385) (664)
Unrecognized prior service cost - 77,815 659
Unrecognized actuarial loss (162,398) (193,334) (1,638)
Net amount recognized ¥537,196 ¥643,484 $5,453
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Liability for severance payments ¥337,196 ¥717,727 $6,082
Other assets - (570) (5)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (before income tax effect) - (73,673) (624)
Net amount recognized ¥537,196 ¥643,484 $5,453
Assumptions used for 2001, 2002 and 2003 in determining costs for the plans shown above are as follows:
2001 2002 2003
Weighted-average discount rate 2.50% 2.10% 1.70%-2.00%
Average rate of increase in future compensation levels 4.32% 2.81%-4.32% 2.81%-3.75%

The Companies also have directors’ unfunded severance
indemnity plans. Benefits under the directors’ plans are based
on the level of compensation at retirement, length of service
and other factors. Liabilities for severance payments under the
directors’ plans at March 31, 2002 and 2003, amounting to
¥235,443 thousand and ¥336,680 thousand ($2,853 thousand),
respectively, were stated on the vested benefic obligation basis,
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which was required to be paid if all directors and executive
officers terminated their appointments as of the balance
sheet date.

Charges to operations for the years ended March 31, 2001,
2002 and 2003 with respect to the directors’ plans were
¥93,590 thousand, ¥78,567 thousand and ¥129,738 thousand
($1,099 thousand), respectively.



7. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The changes in the number of shares of common stock issued during the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 are as follows:

Number of shares

2001 2002 2003
Balance, beginning of year 338,154.5 383,154.5 383,154.5
Issuance of common stock 45,000.0 - -
Balance, end of year 383,154.5 383,154.5 383,154.5

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to the
Code to which certain amendments became effective from
- October 1, 2001.

Prior to October 1, 2001, the Code required at least 50%
of the issue price of new shares, with a minimum of the par
value thereof, to be designated as stated capital as determined
by resolution of the Board of Directors. Proceeds in excess of
amounts designated as stated capital were credited to additional
paid-in capital. Effective October 1, 2001, the Code was
revised and common stock par values were eliminated resulting
in all shares being recorded with no par value.

Prior to October 1, 2001, the Code provided that an
amount at least equal to 10% of the aggregate amount of cash
dividends and certain other cash payments which are made as
an appropriation of retained earnings applicable to each fiscal
period shall be appropriated and set aside as a legal reserve undil
such reserve equals 25% of stated capital. Effective October 1,
2001, the revised Code allows for such appropriations to be
determined based on total additional paid-in capital and legal
reserve. The amount of total additional paid-in capital and
legal reserve which exceeds 25% of stated capital can be
transferred to retained earnings by resolution of the
shareholders, which may be available for dividends. Under the
Code, companies may issue new common shares to existing
shareholders without consideration as a stock split pursuant to
resolution of the Board of Directors. Prior to October 1, 2001,
the amount calculated by dividing the total amount of
shareholders’ equity by the number of outstanding shares after
the stock split could not be less than ¥50,000. The revised
Code eliminated this restriction.

Prior to October 1, 2001, the Code imposed certain
restrictions on the repurchase and use of treasury stock. Effective
October 1, 2001, the Code eliminated these restrictions
allowing companies to repurchase treasury stock by resolution
of the shareholders at the general sharcholders’ meeting and

dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of
Directors after March 31, 2002. The repurchased amount of
treasury stock cannot exceed the amount available for future
dividends plus amount of stated capital, additional paid-in
capital or legal reserve to be reduced in the case where such
reduction was resolved at the general shareholders’” meeting.

The Code permits companies to transfer a portion of
additional paid-in capital and legal reserve to stated capital by
resolution of the Board of Directors. The Code also permits
companies to transfer a portion of unappropriated retained
earnings, available for dividends, to stated capital by resolution
of the shareholders.

Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting
held subsequent to the fiscal year to which the dividends are
applicable. Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid
upon resolution of the Board of Directors, subject to certain
limirations imposed by the Code. The amount of retained
earnings available for dividends under the Code is based on the
amount recorded in the Company’s general books of account
maintained in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan. The adjusements included in the
accompanying financial statements but not recorded in the
books have no effect on the determination of retained earnings
available for dividends under the Code. Retained earnings
available for dividends of the Company at March 31, 2002 and
2003 were ¥6,897,538 thousand and ¥27,256,412 thousand
($230,987 thousand), respectively.

On March 31, 2000, the Company issued 62,900 shares of
common stock at the issue price of ¥500,000 per share to
NTTC (See Note 3).

On August 4, 2000, the Company’s initial public offering
resulted in the sale of 45,000 newly issued shares of common
stock. Net proceeds of the common stock issued was

¥29,820,140 thousand.




Accumulated other comprehensive income represents cumulative gains or losses on iterns that are not reflected in net income. Other
comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, is as follows:

Thousands of Yen
Pre-tax Tax (expense) Net-of-tax
amount or benefit amount
For the year ended March 31, 2001
Unrealized gains and losses on securities:
Unrealized holding gains and losses arising during the period ¥10,921,992 ¥ (4,587,236) ¥ 6,334,756
Less reclassification adjustment for gains and losses included in net income (842,698) 353,933 (488,765)
Net unrealized gains and losses on securities 10,079,294 (4,233,303) 5,845,991
Other comprehensive income ¥10,079,294 ¥ (4,233,303) ¥ 5,845,991
Thousands of Yen
Pre-tax Tax (expense) Net-of-tax
amount or benefit amount
For the year ended March 31, 2002
Unrealized gains and losses on securities:
Unrealized holding gains and losses arising during the period ¥(2,580,190) ¥ 1,083,680 ¥(1,496,510)
Less reclassification adjustment for gains and losses included in net income 31,797 (13,355) 18,442
Net unrealized gains and losses on securities (2,548,393) 1,070,325 (1,478,068)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 183,610 - 183,610
Other comprehensive loss ¥(2,364,783) ¥ 1,070,325 ¥(1,294,458)

Thousands of Yen

Pre-rax Tax (expense) Net-of-tax
amount or benefit amount
For the year ended March 31, 2003
Unrealized gains and losses on securities:
Unrealized holding gains and losses arising during the period ¥(9,274,192) ¥3,895,161 ¥(5,379,031)
Less reclassification adjustment for gains and losses included in net income 70,845 (29,755) 41,090
Net unrealized gains and losses on securities (9,203,347) 3,865,406 (5,337,941)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (294,715) - (294,715)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (73,673) 29,830 (43,843)
Other comprehensive loss ¥(9,571,735) ¥3,895,236 ¥(5,676,499)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Pre-tax Tax (expense) Net-of-tax
amount or benefit amount
For the year ended March 31, 2003
- Unrealized gains and losses on securities:
Unrealized holding gains and losses arising during the period $  (78,595) $ 33,010 $  (45,585)
Less reclassification adjustment for gains and losses included in net income 600 (252) 348
Net unrealized gains and losses on securities (77,995) 32,758 (45,237)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (2,497) - (2,497)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (624) 252 (372)
Other comprehensive loss $ (81,116) $ 33,010 $ (48,106)
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8. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Company has a stock-based compensation plan as an
incentive plan for directors and selected employees. The plan
uses unsecured bonds with detachable warrants which are
described in Note 3.

Upon issuance of the bonds with detachable warrants, the
Company has purchased all of the detachable warrants and
distributed them to the directors and the selected employees of
the Company.

By exercising a warrant, the directors and the selected
employees can purchase the common stock of the Company,
the number of shares of which is calculated as ¥4,500 thousand
($38 thousand) divided by the exercise price. The warrants
become exercisable 2 years after the date of grant for the
directors and che selected employees based on agreements with
the Company regardless of the exercisable term of the
underlying warrants and expire 3 years from the date of grant.

A summary of the plan activity for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2003 is as follows:

2002 2003
Weighted-average Weighted-average
exercise price exercise price
Number of Shares Yen Number of Shares Yen U.S. Dollars
Outstanding, beginning of year 237 ¥740,017 237 ¥740,017 $6,271
Granted - -
Exercised - -
Forfeited - 18 739,950 6,271
Ourstanding, end of year 237 740,017 219 739,950 6,271
Exercisable, end of year ¥ - 219 ¥739,950 $6,271
A summary of warrants outstanding and exercisable at March 31, 2003 is as follows:
_ Yen
Exercise price range ¥739,950
Outstanding;
Number of shares 219
Weighted-average remaining life (years) 2.21
Weighted-average exercise price:
Yen ¥739,950
U.S. Dollars $ 6,271
Exercisable:
Number of shares 219
Weighted-average exercise price:
Yen ¥739,950
U.S. Dollars $ 6,271

As the exercise price was determined based on the fair value
per share of the Company near the date of grant, compensation

expense for the plan was not material for the years ended

March 31, 2002 and 2003.
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In accordance with SFAS No. 123, the Companies have the grant date under the methodology prescribed by SFAS

elected to account for stock-based compensation under the No. 123, the Companies’ pro forma net income and EPS for
provisions of APB No. 25. Had compensation for the the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2003 would have been
Companies’ plan been recognized based on the fair value at impacted as follows:
Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2003 2003
Net income:
As reported ¥5,608,831 ¥6,182,332 $52,393
Deduct:
Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value
based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (35,307) - -
Pro forma 5,573,524 6,182,332 52,393
Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2003 2003
Basic EPS:
As reported ¥14,638.58 ¥16,248.95 $137.70
Pro forma 14,546.43 16,248.95 137.70
Diluted EPS:
As reported 14,638.58 15,175.46 128.61
Pro forma 14,546.43 15,175.46 128.61

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

As indicated in Note 1, the Companies operate in a single operating segment which is to provide satellite telecommunications and
broadcasting services to customers.
Revenues from external customers for each service for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 are as follows:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2001 2002 2003 2003
Revenues from;
Telecommunications business services ¥11,777,489 ¥12,976,426 ¥13,504,479 $114,445
Satellite broadcasting services
(primarily related to SKY PerfecTV/) 16,899,757 17,999,918 21,074,851 178,600
Telecommunications carrier services (NTT and related entities) 8,922,714 8,732,277 9,360,432 79,326
Other 560,473 1,074,196 1,181,378 10,012
Total revenues ¥38,160,433 ¥40,782,817 ¥45,121,140 $382,383
The Companies’ revenues from external customers are ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, were ¥9,085,777
mainly derived from customers in Japan and their long-lived thousand, ¥9,454,343 thousand and ¥10,300,073 thousand
assets are located mainly in Japan. ($87,289 thousand), respectively. Revenues from such
Revenues from NTT and related entities, which accounted customers are included in Telecommunications business
for 10% or more of the Companies’ revenues for the years services and Telecommunications carrier services.
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10. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES AND ADVERTISING COSTS

Research and development expenses:

Research and development expenses, which are charged to income
as incurred, were ¥269,336 thousand, ¥188,409 thousand and
¥211,641 thousand ($1,794 thousand) for the years ended March
31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

Advertising costs:

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs
included in sales and marketing were ¥233,486 thousand,
¥181,226 thousand and ¥318,291 thousand ($2,697 thousand)
for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

11. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

Other—net as shown in other income (expenses) for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 consists of the following:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2001 2002 2003 2003

Cancellation fee income related to business service agreements ¥ 20,741 ¥157,012 ¥ 40,790 $ 346
Office relocation cost - (232,9006) - -
Interest and dividend income 120,495 98,861 225,088 1,907
Gain (loss) on sales of investments—net 842,496 (35,549) (67,885) (575)
Loss on write-downs of investments (1,278) (294,565) (193,800) (1,642)
Foreign currency transaction gain 253,700 557,768 93,921 796
Other—net (34,694) 50,070 78,612 665
¥1,201,460 ¥300,691 ¥176,726 $1,497

12, INCOME TAXES

Income taxes in Japan applicable to the Company and its
domestic subsidiaries, imposed by the national, prefecture and
municipal governments, in the aggregate resulted in a normal
effective statutory tax rate of approximately 42%. A foreign
subsidiary is subject to income taxes of the country in which it

the statutory rate was reduced from 42% to 40% effective April
1, 2004. The respective newly enacted rates were used in
calculating the future expected tax effect of temporary differences
as of March 31, 2003. The effect of the change in tax rate

increased income tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2003.

operates. Due to the changes in Japanese income tax regulations,

A reconciliation between taxes calculared at the normal statutory rate in Japan and the Companies’ provision for income taxes in the

accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 is as follows:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2001 2002 2003 2003
Taxes calculated at the normal rate in Japan
applied to pretax income ¥4,072,107 ¥4,197,612 ¥4,666,149 $39,544
Increases (decreases) in taxes resulting from:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
and income not taxable—nert 94,569 78,561 93,079 789
Effect of enacted changes in tax laws and rates - - 35,919 304
Tax effects on equity in losses (earnings) of affiliated companies 373,410 91,122 (32,473) (275)
Increase in valuation allowance - 2,452 72,424 614
Other—net 30,297 (7,801) 64,191 543
Total provision for income taxes ¥4,570,383 ¥4,361,946 ¥4,899,289 $41,519
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Total income taxes recognized for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 are allocated as follows:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2001 2002 2003 2003
Provision for income taxes ¥4,570,383 ¥4,361,946 ¥4,899,289 $41,519
Shareholders’ equity—accumulated other
comprehensive income (See Note 7) 4,233,303 (1,070,325) (3,895,236) (33,010)
Total income taxes ¥8,803,686 ¥3,291,621 ¥1,004,053 $ 8,509

The tax effects of significant temporary differences which result in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2002 and 2003 are

as follows:
Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2003 2003
Deferred tax assets:
Other investments ¥ 84,987 ¥ 133,073 $ 1,128
Investments in affiliated companies 830,130 800,285 6,782
Long-lived assets 1,000,716 712,106 6,035
Doubtful receivables 310,679 156,772 1,329
Liability for severanceipayments 282,895 398,632 3,378
Accrued enterprise tax 161,889 274,276 2,324
Accrued bonus 100,674 103,831 880
Orther 272,689 298,986 2,534
Total deferred tax assets 3,044,659 2,877,961 24,390
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property—interest capirtalization 285,544 253,376 2,147
Marketable equity securities and debt securities 4,390,610 525,438 4,453
Orther 26,047 26,046 221
Total deferred tax liabilities 4,702,201 804,860 6,821
Valuation allowance 854,383 896,095 7,594
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥(2,511,925) ¥1,177,006 $ 9,975

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets,
management considers whether it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The ultimarte realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods
in which those temporary differences become deductible.
Management considered the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
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liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning
strategies in making this assessment.

Although realization is not assured, based upon the level of
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable
income over the periods which the deferred rax assets are
deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that all
of the deferred tax assets, less valuation allowance will be realized.



13. RECONCILIATION OF THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN BASIC AND DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted EPS for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 is as follows:

Thousands of Yen Number of Shares Yen
Weighted-
Net income average shares EPS
For the year ended March 31, 2001:
Basic EPS:
Net income available to common sharcholders ¥5,125,109 367,744 ¥13,936.64
Effect of dilutive securities:
Warrants - 35 -
Diluted EPS:
Net income for computation ¥5,125,109 367,779 ¥13,935.31
For the year ended March 31, 2002:
Basic EPS:
Nert income available to common shareholders ¥5,608,831 383,154 ¥14,638.58
Effect of dilutive securities:
Warrants - - -
Diluted EPS:
Net income for computation ¥5,608,831 383,154 ¥14,638.58
Thousands of Yen Number of Shares Yen U.S. Dollars
Weighted-
Net income average shares EPS EPS
For the year ended March 31, 2003:
Basic EPS:
Net income available to common shareholders ¥6,182,332 380,476 ¥16,248.95 $137.70
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible bonds - 26,915 - -
Diluted EPS:
Net income for computation ¥6,182,332 407,391 ¥15,175.46 $128.61

14. LEASES

Lessee

The Companies have capital lease obligations principally for telecommunications equipment.

An analysis of the leased assets under capital leases as of March 31, 2002 and 2003 is as follows:

Thousands of

Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2003 2003
Telecommunications equipment ¥2,995,962 ¥2.666,300 $22,596
Other 168,741 255,566 2,165
Less accumulated depreciation (1,667,138) (1,930,765) (16,362)
Net book value ¥1,497,565 ¥ 991,101 $ 8,399
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Future minimum lease payments at March 31, 2003 and thereafter are as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31: Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2004 ¥ 497,906 $ 4,220
2005 . 327,753 2,778
2006 178,422 1,512
2007 64,482 546
2008 47,560 403
2009 and thereafter 3,750 31

Total 1,119,873 9,490
Less amount representing interest 67,046 568
Present value of net minimum lease payments (See Note 5) 1,052,827 8,922
Less current maturities 465,710 3,946

Long-term capital lease obligations ¥ 587,117 $ 4,976

Rental expenses under operating leases for the years ended ¥384,897 thousand and ¥528,647 thousand ($4,480 thousand),
March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were ¥364,235 thousand, respectively.

The minimum rental payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year at

March 31, 2003 are as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31: Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2004 ¥ 489,501 $ 4,148
2005 472,426 ' 4,004
2006 464,743 3,939
2007 348,557 2,954
2008 - -
2009 and thereafter - -

Total ¥1,775,227 315,045
Lessor Revenues from operating leases included in revenues were
The Companies lease satellite transponders under full-time dedicated ¥16,833,035 thousand, ¥15,235,382 thousand, and ¥15,223,527
telecommunications business services and telecommunications carrier thousand ($129,013 thousand) for the years ended March 31,
services and these leases are classified as cancelable operating 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

leases under SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.”

The following schedule provides an analysis of the Companies’ investments in property on operating leases as of March 31, 2002 and 2003:

Thousands of
Thousands of Yen U.S. Dollars
2002 2003 2003
Telecommunications satellites on operating leases ¥62,828,162  ¥50,975,715 $431,998
Less accurnulated depreciation (33,625,142)  (21,329,968) (180,763)
Net book value ¥29,203,020  ¥29,645,747 $251,235
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Commitments:

The commitments outstanding by the Companies at March 31,

2003 are for a launch contract for future replacement satellites, a
joint procurement of a satellite for Horizons Satellite LLC and a

procurement of uplink systems for JC-HITS services of
¥901,500 thousand ($7,640 thousand), ¥1,942,378 thousand
($16,461 thousand) and ¥4,665,500 thousand ($39,538

thousand), respectively.

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

1. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Companies are exposed to a variety of market risks
including the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates and
interest rates. These exposures are managed, in part, with the use
of derivative instruments.

Fair value hedges

For derivative instruments designated as hedges of the exposure
to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or a
firm commitment, the gain or loss is recognized in income in the
period of change together with the offsetting loss or gain on the
hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged.

The Companies’ purchases of telecommunications satellites
from overseas companies generate foreign currency exposures
related to buying in currencies other than the functional
currency. The Companies have entered into foreign exchange
forward contracts and currency swap agreements to hedge market
risks from the changes in foreign exchange rates associated with
firm commitments for a launch contract of telecommunications
satellites denominated in foreign currencies.

The Companies enter into these transactions in accordance
with internal policies which regulate the authorization and assess

 foreign exchange rate risk by continually monitoring changes in
its exposures.

Undesignated derivative instruments

For derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments
under SFAS No. 133, the gain and loss is recognized currently in
income.

These derivative instruments include foreign exchange
forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts, interest rate
swap agreements and interest rate cap agreements. The intent of
these derivative instruments is to economically hedge foreign
currency exposures, created by commitments for a launch
contract of telecommunications satellites and investments in
securities denominated in foreign currencies, and interest rate
exposures associated with long-term debt.

2. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
A certain concentration of the Companies’ business services is
found in multi-channel digital broadcasting services through
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SKY Perfect. However, due to the large number and diversity of
the Companies’ customer base, concentration of credit risk with
respect to trade accounts receivable is limited. The Companies
perform ongoing credit evaluation of their customers’ financial
condition.

All of the Companies’ telecommunications carrier services
are provided to N'TT and related entities and to this extent there
is a concentration of credit risk with respect to trade accounts
receivable in this area. The Companies believe, however, that
they are not exposed to significant credit risk in this business in
light of the high credit ratings of NTT and related entities.

The Companies are also exposed to the risk of credit-related
losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to
derivative financial instruments. The Companies transact with
selected international financial institutions to minimize the
credit risk exposures. Credit risk is managed through the credit
line that is approved by management.

3. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair value of each category of financial instruments for which
it is practicable to estimate that value. However, considerable
judgment is required in interpreting markert dara to develop the
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be
realized in a current market exchange. The effect of using
different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies
may be material to the estimated fair value amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, accounts receivable,
trade accounts payable and short-term borrowings

The carrying amounts approximate fair values because of the
short maturity of these instruments.

Short-term investments and other investments

The fair values of marketable securities included in short-term
investments and other investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair value information for each category of securities
is set forth in Note 2. It is not practicable to estimate fair values
of the investments in non-traded and unaffiliated companies.




Non-current accounts receivable (included in other assets)
The fair values were estimated by discounted future cash flows

using currently available market rates.

Long-term debt

The fair values were estimated by discounted future cash flows

using currently available market rates.

values quoted by brokers.

Foreign exc/umge Jforward contracts, foreign currency option
contracts and currency swap agreements
The fair values of these inscruments were estimated based on

Interest rate swap agreements and interest rate cap

The fair values of these instruments were estimated based on

Convertible bonds values quoted by brokers.
The fair values were estimated based on quoted market prices.
Thousands of Yen
2002
Notional amount Carrying amount Estimated fair
value

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 865,863 ¥ 865,863

Time deposits 4,500 4,500

Accounts receivable 4,261,432 4,261,432

Non-current accounts receivable 404,085 379,271

Financial liabilities:
Short-term borrowings

¥ (3,350,000)

¥ (3,350,000)

Trade accounts payable (730,868) (730,868)
Long-term debt (49,865,254) (50,908,043)
Derivatives:
Foreign exchange forward contracts ¥ 824,100 ¥ 98,585 ¥ 98,585
Foreign currency option contracts 5,502,938 189,699 189,699
Currency swap agreements 3,683,813 318,550 318,550
Interest rate swaps 7,500,000 12,799 12,799
Interest rate caps 1,100,000 0 0

Thousands of Yen

2003

Notional amount

Carrying amount

Estimated fair
value

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Time deposits
Accounts receivable
Non-current accounts receivable

¥ 1,499,717
2,000,000
9,648,287

269,390

¥ 1,499,717
2,000,000
9,648,287

259,763

Financial liabilities:
Short-term borrowings

¥ (2,800,000)

¥ (2,800,000)

Trade accounts payable (812,357) (812,357)

Long-term debrt (39,611,650) (40,301,792)

Convertible bonds (20,000,000) (19,776,000)
Derivatives:

Foreign exchange forward contracts ¥ 2,633,938 ¥ 8,260 ¥ 8,260

Interest rate swaps 1,000,000 (7,356) (7,356)
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Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2003
Notional amount Carrying amount Estimated fair
value

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,709 $ 12,709

Time deposits 16,949 16,949

Accounts receivable 81,765 81,765

Non-current accounts receivable 2,283 2,201
Financial liabilities:

Short-term borrowings '$ (23,729) $ (23,729)

Trade accounts payable (6,884) (6,884)

Long-term debt (335,692) (341,541)

Convertible bonds (169,492) (167,593)
Derivatives:

Foreign exchange forward contracts $ 22,322 $ 70 $ 70

Interest rate swaps 8,475 (62) (62)

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On April 22, 2003, a stock-based compensation plan was
approved by the Company’s Board of Directors, which provides
option to purchase up to 1,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock by directors and selected employees of the
Company. The exercise price is equal to the higher of either

1.05 times the average closing market price of the Company’s
common stock traded on the Tokyo Stock Exchange of the
month preceding the date of gran, or the closing market price of
that on the date of grant. The exercise period of this stock-based
compensation plan is from July 1, 2005 to June 30, 2008.
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On April 30, 2003, the Company entered into a
Procurement Agreement for JCSAT-9 satellite. In connection
with the agreement, commitments for future payments
amounted to ¥15,421,660 thousand ($130,692 thousand).

On May 15, 2003, a resolution was made by the Company’s
Board of Directors for the payment of a cash dividend to
shareholders of record on March 31, 2003 of ¥3,500 ($30) per
share or a total of ¥1,324,418 thousand ($11,224 thousand),
subject to shareholders’ approval at the general shareholders’
meeting to be held on June 26, 2003 (See Note 7).




i
é independent Auditors’ Report

Tohmatsu & Co.

MS Shibaura Building,

13-23, Shibaura 4-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo 108-8530, Japan

Tel: +81-3-3457-7321
Fax: +81-3-3457-1694

www.tohmatsu.co.jp

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
JSAT Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of JSAT Corporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002 and 2003,
and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended March 31, 2003 (all expressed in Japanese yen). These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all marerial respects, the financial position of JSAT Corporation
and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended March 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into United States dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such
translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1. Such United States dollar amounts are presented solely for the

convenience of readers outside Japan.

May 30, 2003
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Corporate Data

(As of March 31, 2003)

Company name:
JSAT Corporation

Established:
February 1985
Capital:
¥53,769,570,000

Number of employees:
206 (262 on a consolidated basis)

JSAT Corporation:

Headgquarters:

Pacific Century Place Marunouchi 18F

1-11-1 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-6218, Japan
Tel: +81-3-5219-7778

Fax: +81-3-5219-7878

Yokohama Satellite Control Center (main control center):
229-1, Miho-cho, Midori-ku, Yokohama, Kanagawa
226-0015, Japan

Tel: +81-45-922-7111

Fax: +81-45-922-7005

Gunma Satellite Control Station (backup control station):
3590-1, Aza-Momoizumi, Qaza-Arai, Shinto-mura,
Kira-Gunma-gun, Gunma 370-3503, Japan

Osaka Branch Office:

Hong Kong Representative Office:
¢/o NTT Com Asia Limited, 15F, Tower 2, Ever Gain Plaza,

88 Container Port Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: +852-2110-3812
Fax: +852-2110-0440

JSAT International Inc.:
5230 Pacific Concourse Drive 2F, Los Angeles, CA 90045, U.S.A.
Tel: +1-310-643-4484
Fax: +1-310-643-4485

Japan CableCast Inc.:

Yaesu Mitsui Bldg. 9F,

2-7-2 Yaesu, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 104-0028, Japan
Tel: +81-3-5299-2500

Fax: +81-3-5299-2510

Satellite Network, Inc.:

GF, Toranomon Daiichi Bldg,,

2-3, Toranomon 1-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-0001, Japan
Tel: +81-3-3597-6031

Fax: +81-3-3597-6030

Information
If you bave any questions, please contact:

JSAT Corporation

Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Division

Sumitomo Bldg. No. 2 6F

4-7-28, Kitahama, Chuo-ku, Osaka 541-0041, Japan
Tel: +81-6-6223-0513

Fax: +81-6-6221-4558

Pacific Century Place Marunouchi 18F,

1-11-1 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-6218, Japan
Tel: +81-3-5219-7778

Fax: +81-3-5219-7878

URL: hup://www.jsat.net/

E-mail: investors@jsat.net

Corporate History  Feb. 1985 O Japan Communications Satellite, Inc. (JCSAT), established
Apr. 1985 O Satellite Japan Corporation (SAJAC) established
Mar. 1989 0O JCSAT-1 satellite launched
Jan. 1990 O JCSAT-2 sarellite launched
Aug. 1993 O Name changed to Japan Satellite Systems Inc. (JSAT) upon the merger of JCSAT and SAJAC
Aug. 1995 O JCSAT-3 satellite launched :
Feb. 1997 O JCSAT-R sarellite launched
Dec. 1997 00 JCSAT-1B satellite launched
Feb. 1999 O JCSAT-4A satellite launched
Mar. 2000 O Majority interest in N-STARa and N-STARD satellites acquired from NTT Communications
Apr. 2000 O Name changed to JSAT Corporation
Aug. 2000 O Shares listed on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange
Qct. 2000 O JCSAT-110 satellite launched
Jul. 2001 O Satellite Network, Inc. (SNET), became a subsidiary
Jul. 2001 O JSAT International Inc. (JII) established
Mar. 2002 O JCSAT-2A satellite launched
Jul. 2002 O Additional interest in N-STARa and N-STARD satellites acquired from NTT East and NTT West
Oct. 2002 O Japan CableCast Inc. established
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Stock Unformatio_»n

(As of March 31, 2003)

Shares

Authorized number of shares 450,000
Number of shares issued 383,154.5
Total number of sharehaolders 23,700

Ten Major Shareholders

Percentage of

Number of shares voting rights

Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

(Pension trust account for ITOCHU Corporation) 65,593 17.35%
NTT Communications Corporation 62,900 16.64%
Mitsui Asset Trust and Banking Company, Ltd.

(Trust account for Mitsui & Co., Ltd.) 41,113 10.87%
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.

(Pension trust account for Sumitomo Corporation) 33,696 8.91%
UFJ Trust Bank Ltd. (Trust account A) 27,291 7.22%
Nippon Television Network Corporation 22,501 5.95%
Sumitomo Corporation 18,111 4.79%
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Led. (Trust account) 7,057 1.86%
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account) 4,512 1.19%
Nippon Telegraph and Telephone West Corporation 3,912 1.03%

Notes: (1} JSAT does not hold shares in any of the above compantes.
(2) The above excludes 4,749.5 treasury shares held by JSAT.

(3) The percentage of voting shares held represents percentage figures relative to the toral number of voting shares of 377,980 shares.
This figure is determined by subtracting 4,749.5 JSAT-held treasury shares, 3 odd-lot shares and 422 shares registered under the
Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc. (JASDEC), from the total number of shares issued of 383,154.5 shares.

Breakdown of

Shareholders by Type
Financial
insticutions

[JForeign 0.33%
81.‘;:22“—\ | ] Sccuricie_s
companies,
Dapanese \ other

corporations/// ] —0.14%
1.380% < !

7 .
i } "

{

Individual !
investors /

Breakdown of Shares Held
by Shareholder Type

UjForeign
investors

4.13%

M Securities
companies,
other

7 1.09%

\:
Financial \
instirutions‘ﬂﬂ\‘ﬂtm i

ZIndividual
investors /}

. ]

i

., 91.81% 12.38% <
\\ _____ /,/ d h \“\5.::.;7"// ’
Percentage of shareholders Percentage of shares
Shareholder Information
Fiscal year-end: March 31

Annual general meeting of shareholders:

June

Payment of dividends (dividend record date):

March 31 (September 30 when interim dividends are paid)

Publication for official announcements:

Nibon Keizai Shimbun

Transfer agent and handling office:

Chuo Mitsui Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

33-1, Shiba 3-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo
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This corporate slogan represents our fundamental
management policy: continuously improve corporate
value by expanding our horizons. By pushing back
the boundaries of the traditional satellite business
model, JSAT is developing and expanding new
satellite-based businesses and extending its
geographic reach.




October 2003
JSAT Corporation

JSAT Adopts New Corporate Slogan

JSAT Corporation would like to inform you that it has adopted a new corporate
slogan: JSAT, Creating Satellite Solutions. This replaces our existing slogan:
JSAT, Expanding Horizons. The decision to update our slogan was taken to
coincide with the appointment of new President & CEQ Kiyoshi Isozaki in June

2003, and the start of a new phase in the Company’s development.

* The new corporate slogan was unveiled at the Octaber 2003 announcement of JSAT's new Medium-Term
Management Plan, which covers the fiscal 2004 1o fiscal 2008 period.

New Corporate Slogan and Logo

JSAT
Creating Satellite Solutions

The 21st century will bring profound changes to telecommunications and video
transmission, underscored by the growth of broadband and mobile/ubiquitous
services. Going forward, JSAT will continue to maximize its core competencies in
“satellite + video image” solutions and “broadcasting/telecommunications
convergence” solutions, thereby “creating satellite solutions” that respond to
customer needs and contribute to the development of their businesses. By
building on its satellite operation capabilities, JSAT will continue to explore new
possibilities and seek cut new value as an effective business partner and an

internationally respected company.
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The Way Forward for J SAT
/

//
The/s’atellite communications business has
unlimited growth potential due to the constant ‘

)

adv/ances in communications technologies. |
JSAT aims to strengthen group-wide capabili- //{M " /
ties based on three themes: design total ’ v /
proposal-driven solutions, promote value- / Design Total Proposal- /
added businesses, and expand businesses / Drlven Solutlon Serwces /
globally. At the same time, the JSAT Group ; :

will continue to provide outstanding satellite - JSAT will supply proposal -driven

communications services. As of March 31 solutions ranging from the provi-
sion of satellite communications

2003, JSAT had three subsidiaries, mcludmg

one U.S. subsidiary, and two affiliated compa- + links to meeting customers
nies. The JSAT Group will continue }o work ‘ specific needs.
together to contribute to the development of

the satellite communications business.

P %AT

Promote Value-added Expand Businesses

/ Bus:nesses Globally
i
/.
| JSAT will create value-added JSAT will expand business
.satelllte commumcahons domains and its satellite coverage
infrastructure by supplying through alliances with overseas
diverse forms of content. This satellite communications
will enable the provision of a operators. This will make our
broad range of enhanced services more attractive.
services. -

A Growing Revenue Stream

{millions of yen)

783 45,121

%24384 26,986 38,160

1999 2000 2001 2002* 2003
JSAT invests in JSAT invests in Pay JSAT invests in Satellite JSAT invests in Japan
NTT Satellite Per View Japan, Inc. Network, Inc. CableCast Inc.
Communication/s,lnc. (ownership: 20%) (ownership: 67%) and (wholly owned)
{ownership-35.94%]) JSAT International Inc.

(wholly owned)
* JSAT began preparing consolidated finané:ial statements in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002.

The equity ownership figures were as of March 31, 2003.
CORPORATE PROFILE 1
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Introducing the J SAT Group

The JSAT Group draws on an extensive breadth of

resources at subsidiaries and affiliated

companies to satisfy customer needs, from network const\ruction to content distribution and

international telecommunications services.

\ |
\\
/;
/

/

Satellite Network, Inc.

Ownership: 6 7%

' \

Establisheld in 1985, JSAT Corporation is a satellite
operator p:roviding services via satellite transponders. |
Services began in 1989 following the launch of the\
JCSAT-1 satellite. !
URL: htt;/a.-//www. jsat.net/ Ij

/
/

Satellite Network, Inc. provides satellite communi-
cations and broadcasting services. These serviges and
solutions include two-way satellite commupiications
using VSAT*L; live coverage of sports and other events
using a fleet of eight SNV*2; uplink services for SKY
PerfecTV/; and many more services.

URL: http.//www.snet.co.jp/

*WYSAT: Very Small Aperture Terminal <compact transceiving equip-
ment for two-way communications.
*2SNV: Satellite News Vehicle.

e

7
_

/
_Established in April 1998 as a joint venture by main

NTT'E~ atellite

NTT Satellite
Communications Inc.

Cwnership: 3 5 5 94’%

} Designing Total Proposal-driven Solution Services
\\

Expand Businesses Globally

2 JSAT CORPORATION™

N

partners Nippon Telegraph and Telephone Corporation
and JSAT, NTT Satellite Communications Inc. operates
a satellite-based intranet service called Mega Wave
Pro. This service accurately transmits information of any
type — video, voice or data — to multiple locations in
Japan simultaneously. Ubiquitous solutions, includ-
ing those for ships at sea and other mobile applications,
are another specialty of NTT Satellite Communications.
URL: http:.//www.nttsc.co.jp/

{
{ | Promoting Value-added Businesses ~~——
/
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A
P In October 2002, Japan CableCast Inc. wa\s‘\established
| e, _ as a wholly owned subsidiary of JSAT to operate the
f o0 satell] - ST
| S 0 ‘ ellite-based JC-HITS digital content distribution

, .
D= 1

! service for cable TV operators. JC-HITS représents an

JC-HITS ‘ optimal solution for the digitization of cable TV,'making
Japan CableCast Inc. J‘;i possible at a low cost high value-added servidgs like
/ Japan’s first-ever pay-per-view service. !
1 / URL:http://www.cablecast.co.jp/
. Wholly owned / |

See page 12 for further detail.

Pay Per View Japan, Inc. airs pay-per-view programs
spanning numerous genres via the digital broadcast-
ing service SKY PerfecTV!. The company offers 25
channels of pay-per-view programs that include block-
. } buster Hollywood films, Japanese movies, sports and
Pay Per View Japan, Inc. /

j other events.

/ URL: http.//iwww.ppvy.co.jp/ w'
ﬁ\

Ownership: &\U%

A
\\_

JSAT International Inc. (JI1) is responsible for ,éales
and marketing activities in North America using the
Horizons-1 satellite, scheduled for launch in the ;fecond
quarter of 2003.

JI1is also working to create new avenues fg’? growth
in the U.S. market, which is critical to e/)'kpanding
JSAT’s businesses worldwide. /

JSAT International Inc.

Wholly owned

Horizons Satellite LLC, a Type I telecommunications
carrier, was established as a joirt venture between
JIt and PanAmSat Corporation, a major satellite

Horizons Satellite LLC operator in the U.S.

JSAT International’s @
ownership: 5 %

The equity ownership figures were as of March 31, 2003.

CORPORATE PROFILE 3
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Principal J SAT Services \

| 2\
Services offered using JSAT communications satellites are mission critical in business operations,
academic programs, entertainment programs, and many other applications. Principal business
models that underplryour services are presented as follows.
| |

International Treansmission Semwices

—

JSAT provides international transmission services via JCSAT-1B, JCSAT-2A, and JCSAT-3 satellites.

JSAT plays a pivotal role in global communication services in various businesses including Internet
back bones in the Asia-Pacific region and providing trans-oceanic service for transmission of content
including news, sports events and video entertainment . These services are provided by making the
most of our assets in Hawaii, such as the Sunset Beach Earth Station and Kapolei Earth Station in

Oahu Island.
+ See the Coverage maps on pages 16-18 for details.

/
/

/
Kapolei Earth'Station

Horizons-1 satellite
.S. domestic satellites

asoooo Submarine
cables

Sunset’éeach Erth Station
/l
B SNG (Satellite News Cathering) ene Live News Coverage

JSAT's trans-oceanic service covers the Asia-Pacific region and the U.S. mainland.

SNG : This service distributes video footage and other information from the reporting

e scene to broadcasting stations via satellite news vehicles.

| Service IR |ive Coverage: This service delivers video footage of live performances and other events to house-
— > hold such as televisions and PCs. SNET’s satellite news vehicles are equipped to
transmit HDTV.

—~
e O\ L3 .
““&
Events

Reporting scenes,

SNET satellite
news vehicle

Broadcasting stations, etc.

TV Asahi satellite
news vehicle

News is gathered from all over Japan by leveraging the ability of satellites to
offer wide coverage and disaster readiness.

N
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{500?
=0

AC-HITS

1 JE-HITS: dighe) confient istribution servise for Calble TV eperators

tion efforts and is provided by Japan CableCast, Inc.

Service profile

operating expenses.

subscribers, including pay-per-view (PPV) programs.

JC-HITS is a digital content distribution service for cable TV operators that supports their digitiza-

(® The adoption of transmodulation and content distribution with C-CAS will enable cable TV
operators to provide digitai broadcasting services without costly capital expenditures and

@® For the first time in Japan, cable TV operators will be able to provide value-added services to

& \
““8?‘

Transmits programs
with C-CAS Subscription
Control System

Cable ﬁ operator

® JC-HITS Digital Content
Distribution Center

Head-end Unit
(Uses transmodulation method)

@ C-CAS IP-VPN Lines

<Jeoosccoamosascooncnnesaazos  C.CAS Unit
Reports aggregated
PPV program viewing records Subscriber
Management
= Unit

JIL]

—

Subscribers

1

® |

—— ¢

!
|
f -
‘: o g
: . TR CCAS

S+é"¥ ... card

<<]unun=n>
i

w

® Periodic collection of PPV pro/gram viewing records

l Programs

@ Individual viewers’ subscription contract information is sent from the C-CAS (subscrip-
tion controf) Unit via fixed lines to the JC-HITS Digital Content Distribution Center.

® The JC-HITS Digital Content Distribution Cente{er receives programs from program
providers; after multiplexing programs and adding the C-CAS signals described in step
one, programs are sent via satellite to cable TV operators.

® Cable TV operators convert transmission signals using a head-end unit that is compat-
ible with the transmodulation method and/re-transmit the converted signals to viewers
via cable. /

@ The JC-HITS Digital Content Distribution Center regularly collects individual PPV program
viewing record information gathered by the cable TV operator's subscriber management
unit via public telephone lines and sénds aggregated data to the cable TV operator.

Public telephone lines

The JC-HITS Digital Content Distribution
Center was established on the premises of
the JSAT Yokohama Satellite Control Center.

— [Glossary]

Conditional Access System (CAS)

CAS restricts viewer access to pay-per-
view broadcasting services on cable TV,
and CS and BS digital broadcasting. The
system ensures that viewers have access
only to channels stipulated by the indi-
vidual subscription contracts, and also
monitars program viewing information. C-
CAS is the general term for CAS standards
used by cable TV operators, and is com-
patible with three standardized formats.

Head-end Unit

This unit adjusts multiple signals for re-
transmission via coaxial cable and other
means to viewers' homes, and is owned
by cable TV operators.

Set-Top Box (STB)

Set-top boxes refer to digital broadcast
reception terminals installed in viewers'
homes, and are needed to view fee-based
broadcasting services such as cable TV,
and CS and BS digital broadcasting.

Transmodulation Method

The transmodulation method is one way
of re-transmitting digital BS or CS broad-
casting signals via co-axial cable. Under
this method cable TV operators merely
modify the modulation of signals coded
with multiple programs from a single
satellite transponder (satellite relay) for
retransmission to viewers.

CORPORATE PROFILE 5




Dightal Multichannel DTH Sewice: SKY PerieeV/

all age brackets.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. provides an extensive lineup of programs comprising
approximately 300 channels all day via its SKY PerfecTV/! and SKY PerfecTV/2 services. Programs
include domestic and overseas movies, sports, dramas, and anime. To access these services,
viewers select channels of their choice in subscriber contracts and install a satellite dish and
tuner in their homes. The total number of subscribers to both services reached over 3.4 million as
of June 30, 2003 thanks to an outstanding program lineup that can be enjoyed by subscribers in

- -

- i a .

i E X
Master Control Room at SKY

Perfect Communications Inc.

Uplink sites
Meguro, Tennozu -
(Tokyo), etc. N

JCSAT-3

~ ea®® O

Sl

-

JCSAT-4A JCSAT-110
e L oee®
@@“@g«@\

Households

|

The CS digital broadcasting busi-
ness rests on a platform made up
of three types of businesses: broad-
casters, satellite operators and
service platform providers. As a
e ' satellite operator, JSAT's role in this
business model is to broadcast pro-
grams that are supplied by broad-
casters to households via satellite.
JSAT receives fees for broadcasting
services from broadcasters. The
SKY PerfecTV!service platform
operated by SKY Perfect Communi-
cations Inc. manages a portfolio of
programs obtained from more than
100 broadcasters. Other roles of
the service platform provider
include conducting marketing
activities that lead to increasing the
subscriber base and collecting fees
from viewers on behalf of the indi-
vidual broadcasters.

N

|
!

6 ISAT CORPORATION

Operational Flow of SKY PerfecTV!

Content svse>
Fees ==>
Contract <==>

4SAT

°6
. A B %
Broadcas:;r;g Uplink e Uplink %%
contract | = | fees e,

Broadcasting
agreement

SKY PerfecTV!
subscribers

§

Broadcasters ssesasso>

<=
Viewing fees

Viewing fees

Subscription contracts

*Broadcasting fees include transponder fees and uplink fees.

*Broadcasters refers to “licensed broadcasters” pursuant to Japan’'s Broadcast Law and
“broadcasters on telecommunications services” pursuant to Japan’s Law Concerning Broadcast
on Telecommunications Services.




(SAQ SR Service: cconemical twe-way services

The SAO service offers always-on, two-way satellite-based communications that are ideal for many
applications. SAQ can be used in a wide variety of ways, including communications networks,
observation posts for disaster readiness, links to remote areas, plant monitoring and security
systems. Offered at a competitive fixed monthly rate, this service also helps companies reduce
communications costs.

@The SAO service provides two-way communications services that
do not rely on terrestrial networks.

@ The service is available at competitive, fixed monthly rates.

@ Companies can construct highly secure and reliable private
networks for a small investment.

@ SAO provides communications links where and when the
customer requires them.

@ Customers do not need to place wireless communications experts
in charge of network operations.

@The service supports a multiplicity of TCP/IP, SDLC and asynchro-
nous protocols at speeds ranging from around 20kbps to 100
kbps on a best-effort basis.

BOD Sewice: high-ene twe-way semwices |

The BOD service offers two-way communications services for the transmission of teleconference-
level video content, voice and data without relying on terrestrial networks. This service satisfies a
broad range of needs, with applications ranging from emergency communications lines to inter-LAN
communications links and backup lines for backbone networks.

Qg“‘
- - @%@mu/
C | I _od Vid d
@The BOD service prowdes ontro j‘f{,‘a on / 7 b e e smission
two-way communications net- \B % 4’
works via satellite. ‘ \] Q
DDDW’“DE Outdoor

@ Customer networks are con- R, DE}
trolled by SNET's Satellite S
Operation Center in Gunma, a  Gunma X

. - Satellite Operation Center
secure and reliable facility '
. ; Head Offlce (Fixed station)
due to its 24-hour operations. T
.. Indoor Umt

@ Data transmission speeds can oz (10U} | K——
be set between 9.6kbps and [ \:.___] ] = - ..,.,!
1.5Mbps, according to the 5 o i 5

¢ Data port Dﬁ: L e
B e Data port | ;éjéﬁ
Telephone PC g

volume of transmissions.
Telephone

CORPORATE PROFILE 7
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( W “SKY” VIDEQ SERVICE " " “SKY” DATA SERVICE

| A videe pregam distributien seriee e £ A dete e distribuilen sarvies

S

I

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. not only offers subscribers the digital muitichannel DTH service
SKY PerfecTV/, but also a video program distribution service — “SKY"” Video — and a data file
distribution service — “SKY"” Data. These two services use the same nationwide distribution service
as SKY PerfecTV/ — including the STB. “SKY” Video and “SKY” Data users need only prepare
content (video, CD-ROM etc.) and then the “SKY” Stream, which uses an IPv6 network, allows the
distribution of both terrestrial multicast and video content throughout Japan at a reasonable cost to

laptops, PCs, and TV monitors.

Service profile

| Advantages of using a satellite
@ The “SKY" Video and the “SKY” Data services can be accessed by the

same tuner used to receive SKY PerfecTV/ programs.
@ The services allow customers to construct a large network at a low cost.

& ‘
s bt SKY PerfecTV! tuners
Y MIFHMHHMN Dedicated video {sold in stores)
[JL ‘ A RNELE! transmission line = —

or videotape
Visual content v ————===>

L

USB device
(sold in stores)

Terrestrial line . -
(P-VPN) P \

1 “SKY” STREAM SERVICE

[

! i [ ‘
File data sscoososoad> _—“_’:‘: $
) Internet o I
L : other medium -
: e
——»’ NN

& SKY PerfecTV! R
Uplink site T
|

]
[ ‘ Terrestrial line .
i l

(IP-VPN)

Visual content weesheseml —
~

Content suppliers

Companies Using These Services

s
95820 DUSKIN Co., LTD. CXi7) AvIVA JAPAN Co, Ltd.

m [ o8 13 D
! - N I3 RBORM

LB NS <Basic
FEUISRE “APL

*COBOL Visuat ¥,

«Fortran (-, Perl

<€ ~Java
o~

Ll )
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Content Distribution for Tfébﬂ@ Terminals: “Plus-e” Serviee ef JCM ine.

JCM Inc. places touchscreen LCD terminals on the table of restaurants and other food outlets to
supply diners with music, movies, games and other forms of entertainment. Called “Plus-e”, this
user-oriented information and entertainment service takes conventional multimedia terminals one
step further, giving people an opportunity to enjoy various programs at their table.

Service profile _

\

@ The “Plus-e\"\service reduces communications costs to customers by
simultaneously, distributing content to all access points.

@ “Plus-e” information and entertainment are expected to attract more
customers to foodservice outlets, helping to increase sales.

& o
é( ' : Content is sent f
Stores with Plus-e systems ontent IS sent from

Satellite the head office

Transmission receiver ; L server to the uplink
eg'uipment s e R et centgr for multi-
| | Pluse | casting via a com-

+ Terrestrial ~ &—
line TRy
Database (VPN)

_ servers

| Puse | munications

o o satellite to the serv-
[ oy ers of more than
1,000 outlets:

| Dightel Clnems Complex Conflent Distyibution: T-J0Y Co., Lid.

T-JOY Co., Ltd. uses a satellite-based digital distribution system to deliver digital movies to many

Service profile 8 R . . . . A
protfe cinemas at once, reducing the cost of supplying cinemas with movies as film is no longer needed.

Advantages of using a satellite "

“Rnyy
S ‘L!,\‘(.“I

“~@The simultaneous delivery of digital Transmission

m0vie_s.\£o many cinemas reduces
communications costs and allows for
real-time access.

=
encapsulator =

-
' "/-l Routers /

S ; v e/ ] Digitized
@& T-JOY Co., Ltd. can also distribute—______ . SR W e NG Cinemas served
. | Satellite TS =; N by T-JOY
customized content, such as coverage of | Transmission — maEEL’ T T B B S84
i i equipment Multicast Routers [ |
special events, to cinemas. | distribution server Multicast
) I - feceiver
T-JOY Transmission -
management center
Routers =™ =% &
— — L o =~
T - Detive s
= [ Rorire lacknowllgdgrrynem o &
L SN Terestriat;  OWEr H
Content Content line N A
management distribution terminal ] Local content

server

j server
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Content Distribulion (o7 |

Satellite communications makes it easy to disseminate useful information from a head office to
every store in Japan. Content ranges from standard communications and reports to the use of
pictures to provide information on new products, effective merchandise displays and sales
promotion activities. This service can be linked to an existing Point of Sales (POS) system to
create a multi-faceted network combining video, voice and data communications.

© The simultaneous release of data and information to many locations reduces communications costs.

sales upwards.

©Real time relays of new products and special offers, etc. are expested to attract more customers and drive

—]

k fransmission
Station

» Merchandise information

(moving and still images)
® Special events schedules
o Weather forecasts, others

Terrestrial
line

Ordering
PC terminal

!
Linked to POS to make possible
an efficient assumption-order-
verification purchasing cycle
that can lead to higher sales.

© Game promotions

* MMK terminals* {music, financial
services, efc.)

® Plasma displays
(advertisements, etc.)

B
/ oz

[@ =

product pictures and
commercials, weather
forecasts and many
other types of useful
information for
viewing by customers.

Lo EE
o asln
—.
Multimedia POS Plasma
terminal display
4
Distribution of new Distribution of

streaming videos,
still images, text
messages and
other forms of
content for viewing
by customers.

MMK terminal

Makes p%)ssible
sales of music
and other digital
content through
MMK terminals.

Information for
passers-hy

* Advertisements
and other content

0

“Glass vision” images on
the front window
This servicelallows
stores to attract more
customers by turning
storefront windows into
advertisements.

Companies Using These Services

*MMK terminal: Multi-Media Kiosk terminal

Seven-Eleven Japan
Co., Ltd.

SUNKUS &
ASSOCIATES INC.

CIRCLE K JAPAN

co., LTD.

10 JSAT CORPORATION
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FamilyMart Co., Ltd.




_Servic

A number of companies in Japan use satellite communications to offer used-car auction services
that add vitality to the entire used-car market. Satellite-based auctions eliminate the need for
participants to be physically present at an auction site. The satellite link provides all necessary
visual and factual data for members to participate in auctions. Bidding information is sent by
terrestrial lines to a host computer for compilation and transmission via satellite. This permits
updated bidding information to be sent to members at all times.

e profiler b

® The simultaneous release of auction information to many locations reduces communications costs.
@ Customers can take part in auctions without having to be physically present at the venue.

@ By opening the auction to a potentially larger customer base, it will increase the number of members that
want to take part.

@ The added interest in auctions via satellite is expected to lead to an expansion in the volume of used-car sales.

N E Ty
R

Transmission Station S} \
! Content .

distribution 22 Auction members

server ~Transmissions

[ equipment. . _
U ) Satellite receiver ~ .=
LT3
SiFEy YOO

e —— ¥1 million
i I je—

]

, I | L. PCfor —p

& % Terrestrial line submitting bids 5=
mmmm
Auction site

" Participating Auction Companies

¥ Japan Automobile JAPAN USED CAR cc Iy
COAIGVET hucnet inc. @ JAA 2pan Auton o eneees IRy ) uss co. L.
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Corperate Networlks

A communications satellite network can be used to conduct a multicast streaming service within
a company, providing on a real-time basis programs for employee training, the latest news and
other important subjects. Or multicast files can be distributed to make training materials readily
available to employees anywhere in Japan. Furthermore, the ability to distribute programs to
many locations at once greatly reduces a company’s communications costs.

Setvice

Multicast Streaming > (Real-time)
EREga
O /7 \ A
. Network operation &% ) é\
Head office ‘ center [T P Bﬁrglrcrh offlces B
__ Studio Video and [ J !
. - Voice Trangmissi(;n o
e ot Vid equipmen! 1 -
L ,, R trans:-n?:sion T
Lz g oo line, etc. - Satellite
Monitor receiver
Sound, pictures Programs and other con-
= and data tent from a satellite can
1SDN/dedicated ] .
- line, etc. | . be viewed at the same
Host computer Delivery Data Terrestrial line time .at Every company
acknowledgment reception board location with a reception
server server system.
Multicast file distribution > (Stored/On-demand)
“‘ [
N
*D e “(, _)K‘“I \ -
Eg_search center o C\ Sales offices and
= other company facilities
Transmissioﬁ S )
: Satellite = . Programs and other content
e t " ~rmmr Monit X .
P recelver - —L;J onttor sent as files are stored in ter!

e - | LAN I * minals provided. This system
I——-— . !I:[——® PCs of allows the material to be {
RN = employees Sz viewed a_t any time to match

— the requirements of each user.

PC Terrestrial line

Companies Using JSAT Networking Services \

Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.  Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd. Mitsui Sumitomo Sompo Japan Insurance I‘pc.
Insurance Co., Ltd.

12 JSAT CORPORATION




The Spaece Collakeration System

The National Institute of Multimedia Education of the Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports,
Science and Technology uses a VSAT network to distribute information about classes, academic
meetings and other events among 150 universities, technical schools, research facilities and
other institutions. Operation is easy, even for individuals with no technical skills. The networks
are controlled at a central facility.

Service profile

Advantages of using a satellite -2

OTh{Space Collaboration System provides interactive communica-
tions via satellite that do not rely on terrestrial networks.

@ A satellite network facilitates reliable two-way transmissions of
video and audio data.

Video, voice and
other signals

SCS participants

Total of 123 institutions and 150 sites
National universities: 81 with 103 sites
Junior colleges: 1 with 1 site
Private universities: 13 with 14 sites

Technical colleges: 14 with 14 sites
// Inter-university

research institutes: 11 with 13 sites

Public companies: 3 with 5 sites
Control center - Participatingb institutions
' AN
Seteliite Distance Learning for Preparatery Scheols \

Preparatory schools can establish their own satellite learning systems, allowing teachers in one
location to make their lessons available nationally distribution cost. —~—_

Advantages of using a satellite -2 \

@ The simu|taneous/'jistribution of programs to many locations ;educes communications costs.
@ Students nationvyide can participate in classes of popular tsachers even if they do not live nearby.
@ This service helps preparatory schools attract more students by offering them access to the very best teachers in Japan.

Preparatory Sct}ools Using the Satellite Distant Lez}rning System
! = 56 = B

Nagase Brothers Inc. Yoyogi Seminar Kawaijuku Educational Instittation

I ¥ B
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JSAT Satellite Fleet /// \\\

JSAT has eight satellites in seven, orbital slots. Covering an area stretching from Pakistan and India through
Australia, Oceania and to Hawaii, JSAT is the leading satellite operator in the Asia-Pacific region.

/,«"//’ \\\\

Ry
/ o~ Horizons-1 D \
[127°W]
: o u

v (scheduled for launch in
= the second quarter of-fiscal 2003)

,//

There are eight JSAT/sateIIites, includ- /
ing one held in reserve for use exclu-

sively in the event of a malfunction in

one of the other seven. JSAT plans to /
launch another;’satellite that will be

positioned over North America.
|
I

JCSAT-1B }
JCSAT-110 [150°E]
[110°E)} Broad Ku-band cov-

erage makes this sat-

Located in the same - . . .
orbital slot as Japa- J:IISZA‘::é]A l J.CSAT'R N-STQRE TIZLAE][) Z!Irt'f?essltliga:slenglrl as
nese BS satellites, this ( in-orbit [132°E] international commu-
e DT eS| W JOSAT-3, this sat- backup The two N-STAR satelltes are used nications services.
SKY PerfecTV!2. digital multi-channel This satellite is for telecommunications services of-

braadcasts of SKY used solely as fered by th_e NTT Group and for

PerfecTV/. This satel- backup unit for corporate intranets.

other JCSAT sat-
ellites.

lite alsa handles cor-
porate internal
networks and satellite
intranet services.

This satellite’s Ku-band transponders are used

along with those of JCSAT-4A primarily for the * JCSAT is the standard prefix for JSAT communica-

digital multi-channel satellite broadcasts of tions satellites.
SKY PerfecTV/ and corporate internal net- * The Horizons-1 satellite is jointly owned by JSAT and
works. Its C-band transponders, covering the PanAmSat Corporation.
area from Pakistan to Hawaii, are mainly used * JCSAT-R may not be able to replace all of a failed

- for international telecommunications within the satellite’s capacity and cannot replace transponder
Asia-Pacific region. capacity on certain satellites in the JSAT fleet.

14 ISAT CORPORATION /
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To be launched late in the second quarter of fiscal 2003,
this satellite will make JSAT the first Asian sateilite operator

with a satellite placed over North America. Its Ku-band

transponder’s payload will cover North America and Hawaii.

Together with the C-band transponders of JCSAT-2A, it will
create a seamless network from the U.S. East Coast to Asia

and Oceania. Plans call for using these transponders to de-

liver content and services between the U.S. and Asia.

JCSAT-2A
[154°E)

Launched in March
2002, this satellite is
the successor to
JCSAT-2. In addition
to Ku-band transpon-
ders, it is equipped
with C-band tran-
sponders to provide
communications ser-
vices covering Ha-
waii, Asia and
Oceania. lts Ku-band
transponders are em-
ployed mainly for
communications car-
riers, corporate and
public-sector net-
works and pulse-code
medulation (PCM)
audio broadcasts.

Satellite
JCSARIE ICSAR2A JCSATS YESATER JEEATAR  MCSATRING  N-STARe M-STARD  Herzemsel !
Iltem L
| — ~ !
Orbital 150°E | 154°F | 128°F ('"'°'b‘t) 1246 | 110°E | 132°E | 136°E | 127°w |
position backup ‘
i !
Launch date December 3,1 March 29, j August 29, | February 17, }February 16, October 7, | August 29, ; February 5,1 Planned |
(Japan time) 1997 2002 1995 1997 1999 2000 1995 1996 ! 2Q FY03 ]
VL:;"ZIC: Ariane 4 | Ariane 4 Atlas 2AS Atlas 2AS | Ariane 4 Ariane 4 { Sea Launch
) Boeing Boeing : Boeing AS2100 Boeing .
Satelitebus g0 601 Boeing 601 601 AX Fo1300 601HP |
] 1
Mass (BOL) 1.8t 1.6t 1.8t 1.8t 2.1t 2t 2.6t [‘
Solar Array [
(init ulput 5.2kW 3.5kW 5.2kW 5.2kW 7.2kW Bkw 8.6kW |
initial maximum
in orbit) ;
Design life 12 years 11 years 12 years 14.5years| 15 years 10 years | 15 years {
i |
F Ku band Ku band |§a gang i |
requency u ban u ban u ban
band Ku band C band C band Ku band Ku band ¢ band Ku band [
S band
Ka: '
100 MHz x 5 |
Ku: Kus 200 MHzx 6 j
Transponders 57MHz x 16 27MHz x 16 Ku: i
(Bar&dwudfth X ggMHz X %g 36MHz x 12 54 MHz x 8
oy MHzx 161c, 27MHzx 32 | 36MHz x 12| C: 36MHz 24[
transponders) BMHzx11] © 72 MHz x 6 | ’ !
54MHz x 5 36MHz x 12 S, \ ;
15 MHz x 2 beams ;
12 MHz x 2 beams |
each satellite each satellite ‘
Ka:14.7W J
) Ku:60W 30w 1
Heaoutout  SoN | NI | o oW | 75w 120W | Ku:55W 108W |
' ' C:34W C:17W
S: 141W per beam
Body Body Body Body Body
stabilized stabilized: . stabilized stabilized o stabilized
Satellite type  South-North:| South-North;| S0 stabilized South-North: | South-North:| Cody stabilized South-North: |
‘ South-North: 26.1m South-North: 27.3m
and size  26.1m 21m Fast-West: 7.6 26.1m 26.4m East-West: 11m 26.2m
East-West: | East-West: ast-West: 7.6m East-West: | East-West: ’ East-West:
7.6m 7.6m 7.6m 8.3m m |
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J SAT Coverage Map 1 ? |
|

|
|
|
™~ / [’
\ / |
\\\\\\ i }
O 46dBW Japan Beam / /
JESAT-13 (O 44dBW Asia Zone Beam / /
! Ku-bane EIRE=! O 38dBW Asia Zone Beam /
1 O 54d8W Hawaii Beam /

4 (O 2dB/K Japan Beam
(© -1dB/K Asia Zone Beam
o -7dB/K Asia Zone Beam
- O -14dB/K Hawaii Beam

AN

]

| JCSAT-
]

I (O 46dBW Japan Beam
| O 44dBW Asia Zone Beam
i

©

- (O 38dBW Asia Zone Beam

JCSAT-3 (O 2dB/K Japan Beam

w O -1dB/K Asia Zone Beam
Ru-band &7 (O -7dB/K Asia Zone Beam

*1EIRP (Equivalent Isotropically Radiated Power): the strength of signals
transmitted by satellites.

*2G/T: measures a satellite's signal reception performance.
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ﬂ@@éﬁc@ o 36dBW
C-lband EIRP O 28dBw
t
JCSAT-8 O _5dB/K
Cband &7 O -adBiK

- I O s70BW
JCSAT-24 O sadaw
Ruy-bemd EIREP O 4848w

. O 10d8B/K

JCSAT-2A O 8Bk

Ru-bend &/ O 208K
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J SAT Coverage Map 2

r — ]
ICSAT-20 | O 34cBwW
C-bame BIRE"! | O 304BW
, | B —
e T "\‘\\\
JCSAT-2 O -sdvik
C-band &/T*2 ~O -10dB/K
S~
.
» \ i
y AR
//
Ve
s
\\\
\\
~
o O 48dBW
s | Horzons-1+3
p | }f@?‘@t JJ;D O 44cBw
Ru-band EIRP | O 408w N
\\

- 2dB/K
Rorizons-1 8 _2dB/K
Ru-bamnd @&/ O -6dB/K

\
A
\

i

!

\ ]

*1EIRP (Equivalent Isotropically Radiated Power): the strength of signais /
transmitted by satellites. \

*2G/T: measures a satellite’s signal reception performance. /

*3Horizons-1: Launch Scheduled for se¢ond quarter of fiscal 2003.
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J SAT Corporate Profile

Name

JSAT Corporation

Established

February 18, 1885

Location

Headquarters

Pacific Century Place Marunouchi 17-18F, 1-11-1 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-6218, Japan
TEL: +81-3-5219-7777 FAX: +81-3-5219-7877

Osaka Branch Office

Sumitomo Bldg. No. 2, 6F 4-7-28 Kitahama, Chuo-ku, Osaka-shi, Osaka 541-0041, Japan
TEL: +81-6-6223-0513 FAX: +81-6-6221-4558

Yokohama Satellite Control Center (main control center)
229-1 Miho-cho, Midori-ku, Yokohama-shi, Kanagawa 226-0015, Japan
TEL: +81-45-922-7111 FAX: +81-45-922-7005

Gunma Satellite Control Station (backup control station)
3590-1 Aza-Momoizumi, Oaza-Arai, Shinto-mura, Kita-Gunma-gun, Gunma 370-3503, Japan

Hong Kong Representative Office

¢/o NTT Com Asia Limited

15F Tower 2, Ever Gain Plaza, 88 Container Port Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
TEL: +852-2110-3812 FAX: +852-2110-0440

Capital

¥53,769,570,000

Consolidated revenues

¥45,121 million {for the year ended March 31, 2003)

Management

Board of Directores

Masahito Tani
Chairman, Director

Kiyoshi Isozaki
President & CEO
Representative Director

Yoshiro Aisaka
Director

Masanori Akiyama
Director

Yoichi lizuka
Director

Ilwao Nakatani

Director (President, Tama
University; Director of Research,
UFJ Institute Limited)

Mamoru Ishida

Director (Senior Executive Vice
President of NTT Communications
Corporation)

Shingo Yoshii

Director (Executive Officer,
General Manager, Media Division,
Sumitomo Corporation)

Kohei Manabe

Director (Representative Director,
Vice Chairman and Group Executive
Officer, Nippon Television Network
Corporation)

Bunji Shinoda

Director (General Manager, Media
Business Division, Information
Business Unit, Mitsui & Co., Ltd.)

Executive Officers

Kiyoshi Isozaki
President & CEO

Yoshiro Aisaka
Senior Executive Officer,
Strategic Planning Group

Masanori Akiyama
Senior Executive Officer,
Market Development Group

Yoichi lizuka
Senior Executive Officer,
Corporate Coordination Group

Yutaka Nagai
Senior Executive Officer, Engineering
& Planning Group

Masanao Tanase
Senior Executive Officer, Corporate
Planning & Communications Group

Yasuo Gkuyama
Executive Officer, Corporate Planning
& Communications Group

Osamu Kato
Executive Officer, Corporate
Coordination Group

Yuichiro Nishio
Executive Officer, Engineering &
Planning Group

Hiroo Sumitomo
Executive Officer, Market
Development Group

Corporate Auditors

Kiyoaki Fujimoto
Corporate Auditor

Shoichi Kameyama
Corporate Auditor

Tamotsu lba
Corporate Auditor (Corporate Advisor,
Sony Corporation)

Nobuyuki Kaneko

Corporate Auditor (Chief Operating
Officer, Media Business Division,
Aerospace, Electronics & Multimedia
Company, ITOCHU Corporation)

(As of June 26, 2003)

Number of employees

206

As of March 31, 2003, except management.
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JSAT and Progress in Satellite lr\dustry

\ \
JSAT was formed in 1985 as Japan’s first private-sector satellite operator. The actual provision\of satellite
communications services began in 1989 following the “;Iaunch of JCSAT-1. Since then, JSAT has\grown and
evolved in step with advances in the global satellite communications and broadcasting services.

17

| Evenfs &t JSAT

Everts 1n Sefelie Communications |
and Eroadsasting K

<CS analog television broadcasting services>

June: Contracted satellite broadcasting services
begin.
<CS-PCM audio broadcasting>

20 JSAT CORPORATION

1957 Launch of Sputnik 1 takes the world into the space age.
1958 Satellite named SCORE transmits first voice
communication.
1962 Telstar I, the first self-powered satellite, relays TV
signal across the Atlantic Ocean.
1963 Relay I transmits first satellite message between
U.S. and Japan, carrying news of President
Kennedy's assassination.
1964 Syncom II relays broadcasts of the Tokyo Olympic
Games to the U.S.
1965 Intelsat 1, the first commercial communications
satellite, is launched.
1968 Japan establishes a Space
Development Committee.
1969 Apollo 11 lands on the moon. National Space Development
Agency of Japan is established.
1970 Japan launches Osumi, its first satellite.
1977 The experimental communications satellite (CS) is
launched.
1978 The first broadcasting satellite (BS) is launched.
1983 CS-2a communications satellite is faunched.
1984 Launch of BS-2a broadcasting satellite.
1985  Feb: Japan Communications Satellite Planning April: Enforcetment of Japan’s
Company Inc. is established. Telecommunications Business
April: Company is renamed Japan Law ushers in the era of
Communications Satellite Company, Inc. and deregulation.
Satellite Japan Corparation is established.
June: Japan Communications Satellite is certified
™ as a Type I telecommunications carrier.
1986 Feb: Launch of BS-2b broadcasting satellite.
Dec: NHK begins trial BS broadcasts.
1987  May: lapan Communications Satellite completes  july: NHK begins a BS broadcasts Japan's first true
the Yokchama Satellite Control Genter. BS service,
June: Japan Communications Satellite completes
the Gunma Satellite Control Station.
1988 Feb: Launch of CS-3a communications satellite.
Sept: Launch of CS-3b communications satellite.
1989  March: Launch of JCSAT-1, Japan’s first private-
sector communications satellite.
April: Start of dedicated satellite
communications services using JCSAT-1.
1990 Jan: Launch of JCSAT-2. Aug: Launch of BS-3a.
1991  Feb: Satellite Japan Inc. is certified as a Type I April: WOWOW enters service as Japan's first pay TV
telecommunications carrier. channel.
. Aug: Launch of BS-3b.
) 1992  May: Contracted satellite broadcasting services begin.  April: CS broadcasting services begin.

<Japan's first CS television broadcast>

June: CS-PCM broadcasting services begin.
<Japan's first CS audio broadcast>



Events et ISAT

Events fn Selliie Communisaticns
Breadeasiing

Events in Japan's
Pulslie Seeier

1993  Aug: Name changed to Japan Satellite Systems  April: NHK's BS broadcasting reaches five million
Inc. (JSAT) upon the merger of Japan subscribers.
Communications Satellite Company, Inc. and
Satellite Japan Corporation.

1994 Nov: DMC Planning Inc. was established. June: The Telecommunications Business
Nov: Broadcasting trials for BS Hi-Vision Law amended fo eliminate restrictions on
broadcasting (MOSE) begin foreign ownership in international

’ sateltite communications businesses.

1995  Feb: JSAT becomes the first private-sector July: DMC Planning Inc. incorporated as DMC

company to ahtain an internatinal Inc., later renamed PerfecTV Corporation,
telecommunications business license. service called “PerfecTV!". it's Japan's first CS
Aug: Launch of JCSAT-3 and N-STARa. digital broadcasfing.
1996  Feb: Launch of N-STARb. Oct: "PerfecTV!", Japan's first CS digital
June: JCSAT-3 begins digital broadcasting services, Droadcasting service, begins its services.
1997  Feb: Launch of JCSAT-4 (currently JCSAT-R). April: Launch of BSAT-1a. June: Enactment of Law for Partial
Dec: Launch of JCSAT-1B. Dec: DirecTV Japan begins broadcasting services, ~ Amendment to the :
Telecommunications Business Law
and the Radio Law, which eliminated

1998  March: JSAT and NTT Corporation establish March: CS BAAN services end. restrictions on foreign ownership in

NTT Satellite Communications Inc. as a joint April: Launch of BSAT-1b. Japan’s Type I telecommunications
venture. May: PerfecTV Corporation and Japan Sk carriers.

April: ICSAT-4 begins digital broadcasting Bm’g‘dcastmg Co., l?td‘, merge on e%ual teyrms, glecr; “Quidelzalfnes Conccemmg the
services. establishing SKY Perfect Communications Inc. and arlwscglgigggcaimegeirr]\ C%::;#’g?;w?&%w

1999  Feb: Launch of JCSAT-4A. rsenatm;rl:g th:r semce S;(Y PerfecTV. Serviqes that Utilize Communications

June: JCSAT-4A begins digital broadcast EpL: Skyporuservices end. Satellites” formulated.
services.
(JCSAT-4 ends digital broadcasting services)
2000  JSAT receives NTT Communications Sept: DirecTV Japan terminates services. Dec: Additional clauses included in
Corporation's ownership interest in . - : : : Guidelines Concerning the
N-STARa and N-STARb. Dec: BS digital broadcasting services begin. Distinction Between
April: Company changes name to Communications and Broadcasting
ISAT Corporation. in Converging New Services.
Aug: JSAT lists on the First Section
of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.
Oct: Launch of JCSAT-110.
2001  July: JSAT invests in Satellite Network, Inc. March: Launch of BSAT-2a.
(SNET)
Aug: JSAT forms alliance with PanAmSat
Corporation of the U.S. and establishes
Horizons Satellite LLC in the U.S.
2002  March: Launch of JCSAT-2A. Feb: Total number of subscribers to SKY PerfecTV!  Jan: Enforcement of the Law
June: ISAT receives NTT East Corporation and reach the three million mark. Concerning B‘roa‘dcast on
NTT West Corporation's awnership interest in March: The PlatOne platform begins broadcasting  '&/€communications Services.
N-STARa and N-STARb. services. Aug: Telecommunications Council
Oct; Established Japan CableCast Inc. April: Interactive broadcasting and storage-type submits final report, calling for the
i | o datacasting service “ep Services” begin. elimination of distinctions between
Dec: JSAT obtains ISO 14001 Certification. Type I and Type 11
July: SKY PerfecTV!2 begins broadcasting services.  glecommunications carriers set by
Nov: Planning company for businesses using the Telecommunications Business
quasi-zenith satellites is established. Law and other reforms.
Dec: NHK and 16 private-sector broadcasters
apply for licenses to conduct terrestrial digital
broadcasting.
2003 April: NHK and 16 private-sector broadcasters April: Third Action Plan for the

obtain preparatory licenses for terrestrial digital
broadcasting.

June: Launch of BSAT-2c.

Promotion of Digital Broadcasting
formulated.
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» Service Categories

Network-Related Services

Telecommunication Type Services

Network Services for Governmental Organizations, Intranet for Corporate Users
(including Star Stream Service and Telecommunication Service utilizing SKY
PerfecTV's platform),Services for Type 2 Carriers, SAQ, International Data
Transmissions, Telecom Carrier Services for NTTGroup, Mobife Services, etc.

Broadcast & Video Distribution Services

Broadcasting Type Services
Broadcasting Services via 124/128/110, Video Transmission Services for both Japan
and Foreign Countries, Digital Contents Delivery Service for CATV Operators

Other Services

Satellite Control Services, Experiment, etc.

p

i

il

¢ i

6}

» Summary of the Semi-Annual Results

. Higher_Performance than Initial Forecast

For six months ended

Sep 2003 Sep 2002 Ch Sep 2002

(Millions of Yen, except Oividond pas share, EPS and EBITDA margin) (Results) (OuthO k) ange (Resulis)
Revenues 21,964 21,800 ©0.8% 22,069
Operating expenses 16,104 ) ) 16,050
(Depreciation) (8,143) (8,265)
Operating income 5,859 5,200 12.7% 6,018
Ordinary profit 5,453 5,300 2.9% 5,572
Net income 3,114 3,100 0.5% 2,954
Net operating cash flow 12,785 - - 14,142
Earnings per share 8,212.30 8,192.28 0.2% 7,726.33
EBITDA 14,018 14,000 0.1% 13,994
EBITDA margin 63.8% 64.2% -0.4 63.4%

* These Financial results and data, which are unaudited, ars based on Japanese GAAP.
* EBITDA represents the total of net income, interest, tax, depreciation and amortization.
* The EBITDA margin is the ratio of EBITDA to revenues.




> Overview of Results

For sixmonths ended T

N (eute,  (Owiolg _ Change  eh S Change
Revenues 21,964 21,80C 0.8% 22,089 99.5%
Cost of services 13,392 - - 13,186 101.6%
Gross profit 8,572 - - 8,883 96.5%
Sales & Marketing 2,712 - - - 2,864 94.7%
Operating income 5,859 5,200 12.7% 6,018 97.4%
Ordinary profit 5,453 5,300 2.9% 5,572 97.9%
Net income 3,114 3,100 0.5% 2,854 105.4%

Overview of Results
Total revenuss ware strong due to coitributions from i icas for

1he NTT.Group and CS110 digitat broadeasting services from the outset of the fiscal
year. Meanwhils, SKY Perfect Cémmunications inc.'s consulting service contract with
Gross Profit JSAT éxpired al the previous fiscal year-end. Depreciation expenses and higher in-
orbit insurance costs related to the transfer of the N-STARe/b satelliles to JSAT drove
up the cost of sarvicas. Consequently JSAT posted gross profit of 8,572 million yen, a
decrease of 311 million yen from the same period of the pravious fiscal year.

SGaA expensas mos1|y tracked JSAT s nitial plan. Operafing income edged down to

0pera""g Income mitlion yen 6 5,859 million yen, but was still 12.7% higher than our initial foracasts, -

in the first half of the pravious fiscal year, JSAT recorded financial income and
sxpenses relatad to the issuancs of convertible bonds.” Other expenses improved in
" . thefirst haif of the currert fiscal year. The main con\ribming factors were a.continuing
Ordmary Profit dacline in Interest expanses in line with the d of 4 4 ‘
bortowings. As a result, JSAT recorded ordmary profit of &, 453 million yen 2.9%
higher than nitial forecasts.

*These Financial results and data, which are unaudited, are based on Japanese GAAF’

» Revenues for Each Service

For the six months ended

(Milions of Yan) Sep 2003 Sep 2002 Change
Network-Related Services 8,610 8,386 102.7%
Broadcast & Video Distribution Services 12,984 13,264 97.9%
Other Services 369 418 88.3%
Total 21,964 22,069 99.5%

Current situation of each service

L JSAT won new service orders trom NTT East and NTT West in the previous 2 guaiter,

and also’began offering these services to NTT DoCoMo in the 2™ quarter ended
Network-.FleIaled September-2003. The Campany acquiréd new contracts for its new VSAT service -
Services “SAQ" ard had andncreass in the number of oceasional uses for video transmission
services.

Broadcast & Video [T aagcr It digitat broadcasting services ware recorded from the beglnning
Distribution of the fiscal year 2003. ‘Msanwhile, SKY Perfect Communications’ consulting contract
Services with JSAT expirad at the previous fiscal year-snd.

* Thess Financial resuits and data, which are unaudited, are based on Japanese GAAP 6




» Cash Flow Data

‘F;)r the Semi-Annual ended

(Mitlions of Yen) Sep 2003 Sep 2002
Operating actjvities {net cash) 12,785 14,142 "
Operating Cagh Flow:
Income before income taxes 5,462 5,213 i o
. - ~Decrease in depreciation ¥ 121M
Depreciation and amortization 8,143 8,265 "+ Increase in paymants for
Payments for income taxes (2,831) (1,549) income taxes + 12828
Other 2,011 . 2,213
Investing activities {net h (8,957) (19,032)
i Major Investments
Pro;.aerty a'nd equipment (7,655) (4,739) for Pro and Equipment:
Business investments (532) (151) N-STARAD %3266
Financial investments (769)  (14,140) CSATS ¥ 2.000M
Fipancing activities (net cash) (3,275) 8,706 Transmission facii ’
Proceeds form short-term borrowings 325 500 [?::Jclf:?]—s eciies ¥a7dM
Repayments of short-term barrowings (2,800) (2,050) -Horizons-1 ¥ 860M
Proceeds form long-term borrowings 3,400 500
Repayments of long-term borrowings (3,198) (7,214) -
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds - 20,062 Lﬁ':‘f"o?s" ¥ 125m
L *Short-Term Borrovings
Payments for dividends (1,317) (951) -Long-Term Borrowings ¥ 38,807M
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock 1,719 - -Convertible ¥ 20,0000
Total - ¥59,1328
Payments for purchase of treasury stock (1,402) (2,139)
Cash and cash equivalents at beqinning of year 1,499 865
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,046 4,685
* These Financial results and data, which are unaudited, are based on Japanese GAAP. 7

> Operating Results for Major
Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Satellite Network, Inc. (67.00% ownership)

Revenues: ¥ 2,335M
Operating Income: ¥101 M
Ordinary Profit: ¥101 M
Net income: ¥53 M

NTT Satellite Communications Inc. (35.94% ownership)

Revenues : ¥1,482M
Operating Income : ¥39M
Ordinary Profit: ¥22M
Net Income : ¥21 M

Pay Per View Japan, Inc. (20.00% ownership)

Revenues : ¥6,746 M
Operating Income : ¥9M
Ordinary Profit: ¥5 M
Net Income : ¥5M

* Thesa Financial rasults and data, which are unauditad, are based on Japanase GAAP
* Operating results for Japan CabisCast nc. and JSAT International fnc., which are
before commencement of sarvices, are not described. 8




» Summary of the 2nd Quarter Operating Results

For three months ended

2 Miions o Yo, ot O par s, EPS and EBITOA mrgny P 2003 Sep 2002 Change Sep 2002
;"‘-'. Revenues 11,082 11,422 97.0% 10,881
. 3 _ Operating expenses 8,158 7,994 102.1% 7,946
‘ Operating income 2,924 3,428 85.3% 2,934
Ordinary profit 2,557 3,576 71.5% 2,896
Net income 1,511 1,843 82.0% A 1,603
Net operating cash flow 4,637 5,593 82.9% 8,148
Earnings per share 3,976.49 4,828.30 82.4%  4,236.42
EBITDA 6,951 7,470 93.1% 7,066
EBITDA margin 62.7% 65.4% 2.7 64.9%

* These Financial rasults and data, which are unaudited, are based on Japanese GAAFP.
* EBITDA rapresants the total of net income, interast, tax, depraciation and amortization.
* The EBITDA margin is the ratio of EBITDA to revenues.

» Overview of Results

For three months ended

(Millions of Yen) Sep 2003 Sep 2002 Change Sep 2002

" Revenues - 11,082 11,422 97.0% 10,881

L Cost of services 6,812 6,639 102.6% 6,580
Gross profit 4,270 4,782 89.3% 4,301
Sales & Marketing 1,345 1,354 99.3% 1,366
Operating income 2,924 3,428 85.3% = 2,934
Ordinary income 2,557 3,576 71.5% 2,896
Net income 1,511 1,843 82.0% 1,603

Overview of Results

Total ravenyes deciined slightly from the same period of the previous fiscal year. This

reflected bandwidih reductions, shifts to highly efficient system-based applications and
Revenues the expiry of tha.consuiting contract with SKY Perfect Communications. Meanwhile,

the servicés for NTT DoCoMo Iaunched i the second quarier began conlnbutmg to

revenugs growth., -

Operating ircome decreased yaar on year mainly due to higher operating expenses,

Operating Income HEELES deprecsallon expenses on N STAHa/b satelliles, which were recantly
transterred to JSAT,
~

There was a marginal decling In ordinary profit as compared to the same pariod of the .
previous fiscal year and the first quarter of this fiscal year. However, financial
| expenses improved due to a decreass in mterss& expenses tohowmg lhe scheduted
’repayrnenr of tong-term debt. . X 10

Ordinary Profit

* These Financial results and data, which are unaudited, are based on Japanase GAAP.




» Revenues for Each Service

_ {Millions of Yen) FY032Q | FY022Q Change FY031Q FY021Q FY023Q FY024Q
' Network-Related Services 4,402} 4,288 2.7% 4,207 4,098 4,276 4,237
) Broadcast & Video Distribution Servicel 6,515| 6,945 -6.2% 6,468 6,318 7,023 7,060

i Other Services 163| 188 -13.3% 205 229 194 259
Total 11,082|11,422  -3.0% 10,881 10,647 11,494 11,557

Current situation of each service

Second-quarter revenues increased 2.7% 10 4,402 million yen on the back of strong
NSO S TEIEY Il | rovenues from the service for NTT DoCoMo launched in the second quarter of fiscal

Services 2003 and won new orders for the SAD service using compact VSATs and occasional
use of video transmission and other services.

Broadcast & Video Seécnd-quaner revanues dsclined 6.2% ysar on year ta 6,515 million yen due to tha
Distribution expiry of SKY Parfect Communications’ consulting contract with JSAT related to CS
Services digital broadcasting services. . .

* Thesa Financial resuits and data, which are unaudited, are based on Japanese GAAP. 11

» Cash Flow Data

For three months ended

(Millions of Yen) Sep 2003 Sep 2002 June 2003
Operating activities (net cagh) 4,637 5,593 8,148
Income before income taxes 2,566 3,217 2,896
Depreciation and amortization 4,179 3,993 3,964
Payments for income taxes 8 1] (2,840)
Other (2,117) (1.617) 4,128
Investing activities (net cash) (6,406) 262 (2,550)
Property and equipment (5,641) (4,044) (2,014)
Business investments (527) (90} (5)
Financial investments (238) 4,397 (531)
Financing activities (net cagh) 896 {4,346) (4,171)
Praceeds form short-term barrowings 325 - -
Repayments of short-term borrowings (800) (550) (2,000)
Proceeds form long-term barrowings 3,400 500 -
Repayments of long-term borrowings (2,116) {2,116) (1,082)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds - 62 -
Payments for dividends (228) (103) (1,088)
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock 1,718 - -
Payments for purchase of treasury stock (1,402) (2,139) -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,932 3,153 1,499
Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear 2,046 4,685 2,932
* Thase Financial resuits and data, which are unaudited, are based on Japanese GAAP. 12




» Trend of Quarterly Resulits

1(1] Revenues-¢-Operating income . Ordinary profit —g— Net income’

{Mitlions of Yan) {Millions of Yen)

L 12,000 - o 1 4,000
L

¥ 10,000 - 8,500
3,000
8,000 - 2,500
6,000 - 2,000
4,000 + 1,500
1,000

2,000 - 500

0 0

FY02_1Q FY02_2Q FY02_3Q FY02_4Q FY03_1Q FY03_2Q

* These Financial resuits and data, which are unaudited, are based on Japanase GAAP,

» Outlook for the Year Ending Mar. 2004

" Outlook for FY03 rernains unchanged

]Revenues+0perating income .. . Ordinary profit —g- Net income‘

ST ’ (Millions of Yan) (Millions of Yen)
Ry 50,000 [ 45,400 1 15,000
i (expected
- ALY

=
By 40,000 © 412,000
[
FE) 30,000 } ‘ 1 9,000
RS ) )

Uk 21,964
s 20,000 ' - [ L* | {600
= 10,000 =B - 1 3,000
=

0 ‘ 0
i )
(\MD 1Q Semi=Annual Annuat

* Thesa Financial results and data are based on Japanese GAAP, 1 4




» Contribution to Shareholders

- <FY2002 >
Dividend Increase Ordinary Annual Dividend per Share
<FY2001 > £.000 Yen
(Payout Ratic:36.2%)

Ordinary Annual Dividend per Share

< FY2003 >

. 5,000 Yen ] Semiannual Dividend per Share

(Payout Ratio:33.8%) 3,000 Yen

Ordinary Annua! Dividend per Share
6.000 Yen (Forecast)

M Further Acquisition of Treasury Stock

» Acquisition Plan for Year Ending Mar. 2004

Resolution at Annual Totai No. of Shares Up to 45,000 Shares
Shareholder’s meeting,
June 2003 Aggregate Value Up to 22.5 Billion Yen

»As of January 5, 2004

Shares repurchased from  Total No. of Shares 7,235 Shares
June 26, 2003 to December 15
26, 2003 Aggregate Value Approx. 3.2 Billion Yen

» Operating Revenues & Net Income

Operating Revenues Operating Income, Ordinary Profit & Net Income

{Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen)
L 50,000 4500 14,000

12,587

45,121

40,783
40,000 === s8:160~ 12,000
5 10,000
30,000 srga b
26,986 8,000
) 20,000 - 6,000
- 4,000
10,000 —§:
2,000
0 ; 0
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Year ended March, (Qutlook) Year ended March, {Qutiack)
t1 Operating Income {3 Ordinary Profit @ Net Income
16

* These Financial results and data, which are unaudited, ars based on Japanese GAAP.




» Revenues for Each Service

Telecom Business Satellite Broadcasting Telecom Carrier
; (Miltions of Yen) (Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen)
k 14,000 24,000 10,000 i
y 12,618 o
i = 12,062 21074 8922 5'3_32 .
Ll 12,000 S N0
=3 8,000 -+~ 5 S SN N W
B 16000 M ——
14,151
1 N N 6,000 ——----1 o B B
12,000
H H 4,000 - -4 b
) 8.000 2578
- 4‘000 N FERREEN WA 2’000 KT N B -
[ it ey 0 T e e e 0
2000 2001 2002 2003 2000 2001 2002 2003 2000 2001 2002 2003
Year ended March, Year ended March, Year ended March,
= These Financial rasults and data, which are unauditad, are based on Japanese GAAP, . 17

» EBITDA / Cash Flow

{Miltions of Yen) {Millions of Yen)
35,0001 45,000
(%)
29,000(%) 40,000 1 »
30,000¢ -
& -;’ 35,000 -
25,000} : : !
' 30,000 -
20,000} | ‘ 25,000 -
15,0001 § ? f 20,000
15,000
10,000
: 10,000 |
5,000 § 11 : 5,000 -
0 1k 1 I L B J 0 L
00/3 01/3 02/3 03/3 04/3 00/3 01/3 02/3 033
{Outlock)
i€ 7 EBITDA aOperating Cash Flow p Payments for Property and Equipment
{X)Acquisitions of transponders on N-STARa and N-STARD satellites were included.
1. These Financial results and data, which are unaudited, are based on Japanese GAAP,
2. EBITDA represents the total of nef income, interest, tax, depreciation and amortization, 18
3, The EBITDA margin is the ratio of EBITDA to revenues.




» Financial Indicators

Total Debt to Equity Ratio

Total Debt to EBITDA

Total Debt to Operating Cash Flow

" w8 Total Debt W Total Dbt . Total Debt
T=# Shareholders' equity W EBITDA 3 Operating Cash Flow
~+—Total Debt 1o Equity Ratio —a— Total Dabt / EBITDA ~a— Total Debt/ QCF
; {Mitlions of Yen) (Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen)
3
= 120,000 16
R s = 1 90,000 . 45 90,000 8.0
' (:% !
Lo ;
R 1.4 80,000
o womaa] 80,000 :
s 100,000 | o
i 12 70.000 70,000 |
! 80,000 | 50,000 60,000 40
. 1.0 "
50.000 50,000
80,000 | 08 20
40,000 40,000
06
40000 1 20,000 30,000 20
0.4
20,000 20,000 }
20,000 | 10
o2 10,000 10,000
: 0L 00 oLl 0 00
= s o3 03 033 o3 ow3 023 033 o3 o013 023 033
- ) . 19
* These Financial results and data, which are unaudited, are based an Japaness GAAP.

» JSAT's Business Development

After a tough period early in its history, JSAT has achieved consecutive incraases in
revenue aver the last eight fiscal periods and consecutive increases in operating incoms

over the ast six fiscal periods, 2000 2002
JSAT has emerged as Asia’s leading satsllite communications operator, making its Acourmsltod dsfict is G110 digid
(billlon ¥) debut on the Tokyo Stock Exchange {TSE) First Section in 2000. eBvinated, Stock is l2ed broadeasting
) . ontho TSE First Sertion, | | servioes commenea.
=55 rams fa changed
i 1989 L BISAT
50 ! Anguiro S0%-ownerehp
; erests in N-STARa oo
45 1985 -STARD swoivs (Ka M
" “iiapon Communicatons] omel Ku band).
40 {Sailis Qompary, I f"—r_ —_
{SCBAT), ond Satef 1998 ]
5] Ben e 1693 - 1998 ol e N s B Revenues
(W&mm Anaiog C5 | | Japan Sateliite Systems | | Digital CS broageasts |1 for SKY ParkecTV! !
10 {1t WSAT) s lomad {ud [ usngmesataes o} L L] —
T commmoncs. Though the merger of —
25 1989 3 JUSAT erd SAUAC. | NS O ROWI [ -
. ™ 45.1) 454
01 someis ez e
“ nced, ) i i __Operating
| comemonce. ! 25.1 @ te ka0 25 | { Income
10 {—-— 20. T R ]
174 . 43 i :
s e — e
79 ] T 4
o [ A [t | —\ Alter-ta
% 15 : Incomg
5 Ly 1
FY89 FY90 FY91 FY02 FY93 FY94 FY95 FY36 FY97 FY98 FY93 FYQ0 FYOl FY02 FYO3(projectin

1st Phase (Start-Up)

2nd Phase (Growth)

Mainly targeted large-volume telecommunications users
Stagnant market betore the advent of muttichanne! CS digital broadeasting

Growth propelled by the commencement of SKSY 20
PerfecTY! and the acquisition of interests in N-STARa
and N-STARD Achieved listing on the TSE First Section The new JSAT,

D i s A




» JSAT Group

100.00% 35.94%
< e e e '
?:éﬁg:‘ an(n-“n-
— i
Sears NTT Satellite
Japan CableCast Inc. _ Communications, Inc.
Digital Content distribution IP-based satellite service provider

servicas for CATV operators

20.00%

o B7.00% 7,

GnEr | e

) Pay Per View Japan, Inc.
Satellite Network, Inc. . o o
Pay-per-view program supplier

Satellite service provider

——— JSAT International Inc. }-—— Horizons Satellrite LLC l

Satellite communications provider
in the U.S.
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» Satellite Fleet

Horizons-1
e (127W)

A | JSAT:PanAmSat

co-ownad-satellite launched

in October 2003,

+9 satellites in 8 orbital slots with
1 backup satellite

+Successful launch track record

»Stable satellite operation in
the past

*Newly launched Horizons-1 with
PanAmSat to capture the US

market
'
£i JCSAT-4A
0 (124E)
N
Nz JCSAT-2A
A > (154E)
JCSAT-18
JCSAT-110 (150E)
(110E) N-STARa N-STARb
:gascﬁ;’; (1328y  (136E)

22
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dor

}

a
i

)

[®es

> Business Domain

|

Network-Related Services

Broadcast & Video
Distribution Services

. Domestic | Global | NTT Broadcasting | Video Distribution |
{ i
JCSAT-1B || Nawwseniens | | '
: -Data Distribution, -Video Distribution,
: 8'98”‘7‘?"%" and Internat Backbone | |nternet Backbone
: orporate Users ' PCM 1
JCSAT-2A | “Telacom Services -Capacity l Cs- J -Capacity
; using SRy Expansion f $  Expansion
‘ Platform by JCSAT-2A i SKY P TV' [ byJCSAT-2A
JCSAT-3 ; ’
i - Satefiite intranet
‘ servicas and B ! {
i integrated satellite & ! JC-HITS
T-4A | communication m
JCSA : serv:ces'by k J (planned)
N-STARa " Gner ©nrr

JCSAT-110

Horizons-1

« NTT group is
using transponder
capacity for their
telecom services.

' I
|

Joint Venture with E

el mAmSat \

Joint Venture with

€ PinAmSal.
23

» Satellite Coverage

Europe

North America

«Joint venture with PanAmSat
- Successful launch of Horizons-1 in Oct. 2003

*R&D for interactive sateliite networ 7‘%\“
system in cooperaﬂorﬁwh

SES Astra

flc Reglon

Expans-mnrei kath sEfvice via JCSAT-3 and JCSAT-2A
-Conclusion of a joint sales agreement witfy, rPanAmSat

24




> Advantages of Satellite

Large Coverage Area

- — The service area of each satellite covers a
i third of the earth’s surface.

Simultaneous Access

— Using satellite communications, the same
data is sent to multiple destinations at once.

Flexibility & Disaster Readiness

— Satellite can provide the backbone for an
emergency communications system,
when an earthquake or other disaster
strikes.

— Satellite communications stations can be
added, relocated or removed easily using
relatively small antennas.

25

» How to Hedge Particular Risks

with Satellite Business
What if satellite launch failed? What if satellite had troubles?
»Launch Insurance Covers »>Backup Satellite ‘JCSAT-R’
CAPEX for Satellite Keeps Services Going
A - Backup satellite 'JCSAT-R' is in standby
‘ - JSAT employs reliable taunch in case of unexpected failure
services with successful track - 'JCSAT-R’ locates between the satellites
record mainly utifized hfor broapca_;ting =
+ Launch insurance covers satellite services, which have significant T
N manutacture costs, launch costs number of subscribers -

and the cost of the Note: Each satlto basicaly /" d y
insurance itself. system, which enables {n e _ews |9 "¢
B LR
- H s flrst step in case Tt
/ Consecutive Services "o LERAVA N

. with Great Reliability

e
)

In the area of satellite control?

How to cover the | f fiite failure?

»Two Satellite Control Centers

e »In-orbit Insurance Covers
Maintain a Robust Backup Structure Book Value of Satellite
« Yokohama Satellite Control
Center (YSCC) carries out
24-hour monitoring of the
satellite fleet

+ Should the YSCC become
nonoperational, control of the
satellite automatically switches
to the backup facility, Gunma
Satellite Control Station

- JSAT takes out in-orbit insurance, which
covers the book value of a satellite should
if suffer operational failure

+ JSAT insures all its satellites in order to
avoid critical account loss

26




;{\‘ 6th Largest Satellite Operator of the World
Rank Satellite Operator Country 2002 Revenue (3) aaéerlg:tes
1 SES Gilobal Luxembourg 1.41 billion 41
2 Intelsat Ltd. U.S. 992.0 million 26
3 PanAmSat Corp. u.s. 812.3 millicin 23
i 4 Eutelsat S.A. France 690.8 million 23
.5 Loral Skynet u.s. 391.2 million 7
6 JSAT Corp. Japan 380.8 million 9
7 Telesat Canada Canada 207.4 million 5
8 New Skies Satellites Netherlands 200.5 million 8
9 Space Communications Corp. Japan 199.8 million 4
10 Arabsat Saudi Arabia 147.0 million 5
Source: Space News, June 23, 2003
Company's website
27

» JSAT’s Position in Asia-Pacific Region

w  No. 1 Satellite Operator in Asia-Pacific Region

.

-
1

qRa!er Satellite Operator Country 2002 Revenue ($) iia(t)erltl)i?te S
1 JSAT Corp. Japan 380.8 million 9
2 Space Communications Corp. Japan 199.8 million
'3 Asiasat Hong Kong 122.0 million 4
4 Shin Satellite Thailand 115.5 millicin 3
5 KT Corp. South Korea 104.0 million 3

Source: Space News, June 23, 2003
Company's website
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» JSAT’s Future Business Vision

. o L Suppoi for brontcasting: -
JSAT's Futurs Satellite + video image’ ICATV operattrg” conversion

Business Vision + Solutions provider - o digital formates .

Chan es occurring in the
xternal operating environment

(opportunities)

with advanced functions

Broadcasting operators sseking to accslerate
JSAT's ( their switch to digital formats
N JSAT's care competen Path [Shipmems of digftal tetevision sets shift into fult swing ] snvicpoment (hreste)
B T to leading to the rapid spread of digitat TV - - |
i ) X competition  §
= solutions provider Video equipment goes high-resolution ’
“Broadeasting/telecommunications the ;

convergence” slutians provider

Diversified broadcasting
platioms

Video communications firmly take root ]

talecommunications camiers will be abolished

\

(
Future [
&

Differentiation between Type 1 and Type it . L

TN

Centered on selling
transponder capacity

Focused on the Specialized in FSS

Current
domestic market {Fixed satellite service) 29

Eusin&eses

» 3rd Phase Strategies

] Bétween fiscal 2004 and fiscal 20086, JSAT will focus on i ,. ..mg changes and prepanng for
its future as a satellite solutions provcder and global corporate entity, thereby posmonmg itself o achieve
sharp growth in revenue and income in the years that follow.

Change / Preparation 2006 Expansion / Growth 2008

Contribution {0 our
_customers’ businesses

Principals Strategies for Future Growth

Present - - Future
Develop solutions business
(“satellite + video image”, -
. Centered on “Broadcasting/telecommunications Convergence”) f'ii:'l‘;‘:’s't‘:b'l’l‘;:'::”
.] selling transponder (accounting for over 30%
.| capacity {solutions- of net sales)
| related sates account | Support Expand Offer services | | —— .\
g 2 t sal ; broadcasters’ . i
tor 10% of net sales) {. o tro global for mobile ' | -Support for CATV
migratio N P operators'/broadcasters’
‘Pushing forward . digital formats business applications conversion to digital
with DTH sarvices : ! | technology
(SKY PerfecTV/) (JC-HITS breaks evan)
-Business largely
domestic *No. 1in Asia
{Overseas sales (Overseas sales account
account for 3% of net for over 15% of net sales)
sales)
-Primarily provides +A provider of
FSS (Fixed sateitite broadband mobile

service) services




» Medium-Term Management Plan

[Current fiscal year] [ Three years from present ] [ Five years from present ]
FY 2003 (Forecast) FY 20086 {Target) FY 2008 {Target)
Revenues :¥ 45.4 billion Revenues :¥ 54 billion Revenues :¥ 71 billion
EBITDA:¥ 29 billion EBITDA: ¥ 31 billion EBITDA: ¥ 40 billion
ROE:6.5% ROE: Over 6.5% ROE:Over 10%

* Thess figures are based on Japanase GAAP
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) » Business Policy based on
, Mid-term Management Plan

Continuoﬁs Growth both in Revenue and Profit
~on Mid-term basis .

T N

" Aggressive Sales Activities to expand Business Domain

.

S - e

High Dividend Yield to be sustained for Shareholders

P U— e e i o [

Solid Financial Performance
Debt Equity Ratic: 64 %, Rating for Long-term Debt is A*

ROE to exceed 10% at FY2008

L -

32

* Long-tem debt has been rated A by Rating and investmant tnformation, Inc.




» Development of Solutions-Based Business

® JSAT will develop a solutions-based business utilizing its core competencies,
aiming to increase the solutions-related sales accounting over 30% of net sales.

u Each Group company will form partnerships with appropriate vendors to provide
one-stop sales.

Service

JSAT Group and Partners

providers

Niche market
creation
/development

“Satellite + video image” solutions

“Broadcasting/telecommunications
convergence” solutions

Intracompany

usse, B2B, ate.

End-to-end services Maintenance/operation
Ioperation gutsourcing services

YSCC: Yokohama Sateilite Control Center &—-——————)
e — —

» Expanding JSAT’s Global Business

M To establish the No. 1 player with centripetal force and influence in Asia
(Target composition of total revenues for FY 2008: over 15%)

iaiad]

Build Alliances Inc.re?se Sales within
o Existing Demand Base
"} Alliances and joint sales with PanAmSat and SES Global + Sale of transponder capacity on Horizons-1
« Wil consider sale of transponder capacity and joint - Strengthen JSAT's international sales force
satellite launches in the Pacific Ocean, Indian Ocean and and bolster sales channels Flexible pricing
Allantic Ocean regions + Aggressive markating to Japanese companies for their
+ Will consider pocled ownership for new and US-based communications networks and

raplacement sateliites to cut costs US govemment-related business

Expanding JSAT's

Global Business

Develop

Regional Strategies Provide Solutions and

Value-Added Services|

[Strategic Areas] [New Areas]
*Asia/Oceania -Indian Ocean regio

) North America - Atlantic Ocean
- China region

«Packaged solutions, including satellite
and submarine cables
*End-to-end services
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» Current Status of Horizons Project

4 North America: Sucéessful Iéunch of Horizons-1

®Horizons-1 was successfully launched on Oct. 1, 2003 (JST)

EWThe first Asian satellite operator holding a satellite covering North
America

WJSAT and PanAmSat are jointly conducting active marketing activities
with a view to beginning services in FY2004

EWTargeting demands for video transmission in North America and

telecommunications links between Asia and the U.S.

A Sea Launch rocket with Horizons-1 on board just blasted off fram
the launch platform in the Pacific Ocean.

Basic Structure of the Horizons Project

[ o q‘i‘r 1 ; & PunAmSat. 4]

100% Investment

(USS50M)
JSAT International Inc. 50% Investment Transponder lease
(Sales & Marketing in North America) (USE50M)
50% Investment 1 ] Transponder lease
(US$50M}

Horizons Satellite LLC

(To be licensed by Japanese government as a Type 1 telecommunication carrier)

Joint Purchase of a Satellite, “Horizans-1”
Cperation of a Ku-band Satellite Communications Business using a Satellite to be Positioned at 127W

A Y

» Mobile BB Market

- T/ Satellites’ strength:
' Large Coverage, Simul A s, High Capacity

e BB Market for /
S \ ‘ Aircrafts /

More BB Demand: > New Demand “
Air / Marine Expacted /

BB Market for
Vessels

Strategic Alliance Partners

Overseas
Applications Strategic Satellite Operator

Devel 1 i
evelopmen Alliance Major Teb ¢ i J

Frosiding

Hew Servlses

>More 88 (Broad Band} demand is expected for air / marine travel

»We are co-developing applications which effectively utilize the
strengths of satellite communications




» Supporting Broadcasters’ Migration

to Digital Formats
BTo complement the broadcasung mdustry s move to digital formats, JSAT will provide “Satelllte
+ video image” solutions. This will contribute to the expansion of multichannet broadcasting.
) Present
2003

o
/‘r' ":7
C-HITS

>
Future -
Solution servieas for TV
20Mm owtiony
Commencement of terrestrial digital End of terrestrial analog TV )\)L__nm ST
TV services (Tokyo/O goya) services ragions and
| offshore islands, etc.
JO-HITS profest
~Solutions supporting CATY
2003 2010 --N operators’ conversion to
L i Target date for the completion digital technology
u Start of digitization for CATV services of CATV digitization
.. *Support for CATV
- operators’ mova to
[+ multichannel services
2002 -
Commencement of | SKY PerfecTv!2 ) s.h o .
. high-r N
CS110 sarvices
2000
Commencement of digital BS services
1996
Commencement of l SKY PerfecTV/ { Shiftto -
C$ digital services high-r
Subscribers exceed 3.5 miflion
» JC-HITS: Current Status
JC-HITS T ) '
provides digitized contents for the muiti-channel services to CATV subscribers.
»offers the new pay service scheme for CATV operators
«offers one-stop solution service compatible with dlgmzed equipments,
[\ +has been expanding its sales activities.
z {The CATV operators shown below have decided to mtroduce JC~HITS Service.)
3
£ p@%\
B OO dbs
P D A0
N = -

e
; \A \\/

{

Starcat Cable Networks Co.,Ltd.

(Approx. 60,000)
Konkoh, Tamashima, Kasaoka, tbara

{Approx. 2,000}

PRETER
k

\ s =
iy o
CATY Operators schadulad lo

dopt JC-HITS (No. of Subscribers)

Takyo Digital Network (TON)
{12 CATV Operators /

Approx. 200,000}

Heartnetwork Co.,LTD
{Approx. 14,000)

Tokai Digital Network Center (TDNC)
(20 CATV Operators /
Approx. 250,000)

2TV Corporation

(Approx. 50,000}
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What's

JC-HITS ? ~CATV operators enjoy value-added services with minimal investment.

Market
&

(ST OTRR . c TS targets 15 million households of CATV.

» Overview of JC-HITS Service

~ Satellite-based digital content distribution service for CATV operators

»Among 48 million households, approximately 23 millions receive CATV broadcasts.

~CATV operators need digitization, harmonized with terrestrial broadcasting services
digitization trend, @with less investment expasure, (to offer more channels.

CAV Communliy L= =<2 |
Approw: 18 mit, ~

’
|

CATV Multi-channel CATV {for sight or
hearing.impaired)
4.65 mil. households 8.0 mil,

39

Advantages
for
CATV
Operators

Advantages
for

JSAT
Group

»Minimal investment and Operating Costs for Digitization
Use the Transmodulation System Distribute programs in C-CAS*! format to
head-ends

»Clear Bengfits for Viewers
Provide the first pay-per-view programs for CATV operators’ revenue increase

>Flexibility in System Construction
Complied three C-CAS formats with the Japan Cable Laboratories standards

> Introduction of Variable-fee plan for Revenue Expansion

JSAT expects variable-fee plan linked the number of STBs*? and revenue
from PPV service.

*11CAS (Conditional Access System) : CAS restricts viewer access to pay-per-view broadcasting services on cable TV, and CS and BS digital broadcasting. The system
ensures thal viswers have access only to channels stipufated by the individual subscription contracts, and also monitors program viewing information. C-CAS is the general
term for CAS standards used by cable TV operators, and is compatible with three standardized formats.

*2 STB (Set-Top Box) : Set-top boxes refer to digital broadcast reception terminals installed in viewers” homes, and are needed to view fee-based broadcasting services such

as cable TV, and CS and BS digitai broadcasting
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» JC-HITS Service Flow

Program supply agreement
H as before
Program suppliers { )
%g,b” .
Transmission Transmission oy
managemert fees management fees /:ees
Broadeasting
Digks. Servi
trmmic;“;m w L ; Pr::il;f:n
@, corter usage fees ( ) arbtion [ -
”79", win g o | € A(I L(e)¢ A)s T | Progem donbuion [ - — .
J @ereessaneg 1 b TR R Subscribers
[@esasasactnnissreses PUPRRR——
Transponcer foes (100% ownership by JSAT) Conce foos
PPV contents fess Broadcasting
tdcgumm e (revanue sharing) Servics fees
bt PPV content PRV cortent fows
up link h:‘lii"ﬁn and provision {reverwe sharing)
x Operation and
rmlmnu of such
faciittes PEV cortent providers
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» Current Status of JC-HITS

ﬂg\.)\
OC O @
D 2

Y
" 2

SC-HITS

v" System construction is in smooth progress
( Distribution will be commenced from
the end of February, 2004)

adopt JC-HITS

v" Approx. 50 CATV operators scheduled to

120 CATV operators

v' Sales activities underway with another

v The program line-up with 64 channels
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Target number of CATV
stations: 100 (fiscal 2005)

Target number of subscribers
to the service:

1 million (fiscal 2007)

Fiscal 2007

Single-year break-even target:

Achieved preliminary intent of introducing
the services more than 60 CATV stations

\. J
r N
¢ Secured attractive 60 channels content

base J
e N

¢ Passed the experiment use by the
Japan Cable Laboratories

e Support CATV operators to develop
value-added business

43

» Building a Stronger Relationship with NTT Group

Provision of Transponder Capacity for NTT Group

ownership, and JCSAT-2A.

Business Activities

N-STAR &, N-STAR b, JCSAT-2A

»>Acquisition of

transponder capacity
on a long-term basis

interests in each of two

N-STAR satellites o
e\

> Provision of .

* JSAT provides satellite links to the NTT Group via N-STARa and N-STARDb, in which JSAT acquired

RBProviding satellite-based Intranet services via NTT Satellite Communications inc.

mBuilding closer ties between JSAT’s services and the NTT Group’s solutions-
based marketing activities

RExpanding mobile broadband services

BLaunching broadband services combining satellite and terrestrial lines
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» Alliance with NTT Group:
New‘Agreement with NTT DoCoMor

Ownership in N-STAR satellites

Until July 31, 2003 As from August 1, 2003

Trensponder

| Ku.Ka.C 70%: JSAT ‘

30%:NTT DoCoMo

Applications

Ku,Ka . C. 100%: JSAT

[ Transponder| [ Applications ]
[ Ku.Ka | [Back-up circuits, disaster readiness, TV relay links|
Communications with remote istands,
:j disaster readiness

| Satellute mobile communications service
NTT DoCoMo L C.8 (WideStar® )

'“”"LD * JSAT provides satelfite links 10 the NTT Group via N-STARa and N-STARD, in which JSAT acquired
ownership, and JCSAT-2A. 45

» JCSAT-9 Lease to NTT DoCoMo

]
|

//A/Lea’se agreement for partial
~ transponder capacityon |
. JesAT:e L

.(Design lite period) ‘

1
e -A”J
ST |

XsAr

JCSAT-9 Orbital position [k ﬂ
{Successor to N-STARa) T e e e
Satellite FSS mission: Ku band C-band
specifications MSS mnssuon C band S band

g s, e s

Design life 12 years ;

e N

FSS dedicated satelhte com. services, etc $

Services MSS moblle satellite com. services }

Manufacturer Lockheed Mamn Commermal Space Systems \

Launch schedule Year 20'057“




> Introducing New VSAT Service “SAQ”

SAO offers emergency backup circuits for enterprise users
* SAO: ' Shared but Always On}

. Promotion by introducing a fixed fee plan links to the number of terminals

§l

?

5|

>Low Price : Approx. ¥500,000 / terminal e

»Fixed Fee : Approx. ¥30,000/ terminal / /
month

»Interface : TCP/IP, X.25, SDLC, etc.

S . B
3 Targeted Market
-Backup circuits for financial sectors’ online data
«Backup circuits for energy sectors’ monitoring and controling system
+Emergency communications system for autonomys or corporations
in evacuation areas
+Emergency communications system for the corperations which have
number
of branchs spread all over Japan

i

s
T
s

0

5
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> R&D for Total Solutions

Joint development for Luneberg lens antenna “Lune-Q’

»JSAT developed a hemispherical antenna with the
Luneberg lens. (Jointly developed with Sumitomo
Electric and Sumitomo Corp.)

»New Antenna is able to receive data simultaneously
from multiple geostationary broadcasting and
communication satellites in orbital slots from 110 to
154 degrees east.

1328 128

136E 124

&) X &
P N-STARD N ST'ARz JCS.AT 3

JCSAT-4A
s JCSAT-18 ’

» 21
a ™,
JCSAT-110 ‘
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» CS110 Broadcasting Services

.\rlériat;lﬁe‘”Fee bPIan : Fee Mbde! fbr 1 Tranépandef (48 slots)
(Miliions of Yen7yr.)

1.800

1,600

1,400 .

1,200 - o mm e m e m e 4 "1 Only Step-up minimum fees
arg chargad until the end of

1,000 |+~ - == - FY2003

800 | — - =~ — = — *2 Fea linkad 10 total No. of
600 f- = — — — — = = : Subscribers will be capped
¥ : i v | | with § million subscribers.
400 T T N TN N
200 | 1 ! i i Step-up Minimum Fee ! ! ! ;
o H : N L Lo !
4000 4,500 5,000 5500 8.000

o 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,500
(Number of Subscribers on JCSAT-110 7 thousand)

Spread Model of CS 110 Broadcasting Services

Variety of Special Channels
Acquire new Subscribers

%

E P SKY PerfecTi!
KA HEMECLAL Y

\> More value Added
-Shift to Digital Service Expansion of Market Services ex. PPV
+Penatration of subscription [ \ible STB
infrastracture by STB by Compatible 5 49
built-in-type TV set

» CS110 Licensed Broadcasters

] No. of Channels
. Plattorm | Satelite | Licensed Broadcaster TV TRADIO| DATA Contents Sharehoiders
% Holywood Bearms 4 Hollywood movias Itochu Corp., Tehokushinsha, SONY, News Corp.
: Active Sports Broadcasting 7 Sporis programs [ Sky Sports, Space Vision Network
Muttichannel Ertertainment 5 Music, Cartoons, Sports, Promation [Sky Perfect Communications, JSAT
Satellite Service 5 Teleplays. Shopping, etc. Fuji TV, Sankei Simbun, Sumitomo Corp.
8Ky | JSAT {CS Oreten 7 ONN. BEC, ete. (Hitechi, TV Asahi, Toppan
Perfec CTBS 6 3 |Teleplays. Snopping, Cartoons [TBS, Mitsui Corp.. Recruit
v CS Kyustu_ 1 1 |iformation on Kyushu and Asia_ liwasaki Corp., Kagoshima Transportation
2 CS Movies [ Japanese movies Eisei-Gekijo, Toel, Imagica, JSAT
Tokal No. of Chatvels 41 [¢] [
Hankyu Corp. 1 1 |Takarazuka Revus Nippon Life Insurance, UFJ, Misui Suritomo Bark
CS Now 1 Overseas programs PCCW Japen
InteracTV 7 1 INews, Cartoons, Shopping Jupiter Satellite. Nikksi, TV Tokyo
CS WOWOW 6 Pay Per View programs. Shopping_JWOWOW. Fuditsy
[Japan MediArk Co, Lid 3 |Data progams Jiji Press, Kyodo News, Dentsu
SCC |Japan8S 2 _|Data programs Bic Camera, Bic P Kan
Plat Moga Port 4 _|Data programs Mainéchi Daily News. Kadokeawa Shcten
One CS Japan 3 1 |News. Soorts. Education ~ Nippon TV, Yoniuri Shimbun, Teikyo Univ.
Space Teria 1 20 Radio programs Mitsubishi Carp., FM Tokyo
£P Sroadasting 2 1 _[Caching typs broadcasting service __ jMatsusrita. Toshiba, Hitachi
[Total Mo, of Channels 24 ] 20 1 13
* No. of Channels could be changed.
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> Satellite Fleet Plan

b - Following the launch of Horizons-1 (Cctober 1, 2003),
E JSAT operates a fleet of nine satellites positioned in
eight orbital stots <
(largest in Asia, includes one backup satellite) /
d

CSAT-4AJCSAT-3
L (124E)  (128E)

Horizons-
(127W)

8 000y, -

P

o

Present | . '
| -Extremely reliable operational record

- N - R 9?“ JCSAT-24
— Continue efforts to maintain and “‘E\: (1548)
increase reliability CSAT-110 iy
{1108} SAT-R  N-STARz N-S5TARB

(Backup)  (132E)  (136E)

N\

Procurement

New capacity

New functions

*New coverage JCSAT-9

areas *Mobile applications (Successor 1o N-STARa)

- Additional : Planned launch in late 2005
frequencies

Most advanced

s *S-band transponders for
Sateflite ement
Future ateflte procuremen Use by NTT DoCoMo

Joint satellite procurement with }{ -C-band transponders for
other operators expanded

- Reduced investment requirements Aslan coverage
*Higher utilization — assure prof‘rlabi\ityJ

7

» Appendix
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> High Profitability (1)

» EBITDA Margin Comparison (FY2002)

I
= 80%
= | 62.9%
e 60% 1 :
DT zr o,
i 0% 34.9% 37.6%
20% 4 158% yi79  11.1%

m 19.0% ﬂ m
6.6%
0% - L”.,.,.l_,.-l_,_. il

Nippon Tokyo - Fuji Assahi JSAT NTT KDDI Japan NTT DoCoMo
Television Broadcasting Television National : Telecom-H
Network Systam Broadeasting

Source: Company data, FactSet Research Systems, Inc.
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» High Profltablllty (2)

ngh Profltablhty Leading to Ample Cash Flow

60.0% ]
0% - JSAT
50.0% {FY2002)
g 7 7. JSAT
§_ N (FY2001)
‘i 40.0%
g ONTT DeCoMo
2 30.0%
z o Japan Teiecom-H
g O NTT.
§ 20.0% SRODT
i 10,09 < Fuil Televsion
' o & Nippon Television
) T8S
0.0% 4LV Asahi Network
. (+] N U Ll
0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0% 40.0%
Operating Income / Revenues
Source: Company filings (FY2002) 54




» High Dividend Yield

> Dividend Yield Comparison ¥(FY2002)

2.0%
1.5%
1.0%

0.98%
0.79% 0.66% 0.50%
.50%

1 B S |

0.41% 319

! 2
0.5% .l 0.36% .] 0.18%
0.0% +— I - lem
Nippan Tokyo  Fuji Television Asahi NTT KODI Japan  NTT DoCoMo
Telavision Broadcasting National Telecom-H
Natwork Systern Broadcasting
Source: Blocmberg
% Used average share price as of July 2003
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> Dividend per 1 Round Lot Comparison

» Annual Dividend Comparison (FY2002)

¥5,000 -

¥5,000 4

¥4,000

¥3,000 2,095
¥2,000 1,200 1,000 1.750 700

L1,200

¥1,000 1 . 500

0 B BN BN N -
Nippon  Tokyo Fuji Asahi KD Japan  NTT DoCoMo

Television Broadcasting Television  National Telscom-H
Network System Broadeasting

Source: Company filings (FY2002)
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» Ten Major Shareholders

As of September 30, 2003
{ P ) Percentage of

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Voting shares held
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 65,593 17.30%
(Pension trust account for ITOCHU Corporation)

NTT Communications Corporation . 62,900 16.59%
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. 48,279 12.73%
(Pension trust account for Sumitomo Corporation)

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. 41,113 10.84%
(Pension trust account for Mitsui & Co., Ltd.)

UFJ Trust Bank Ltd. (Trust account A) 26,132 6.89%
Nippon Television Network Corporation 22,501 5.93%
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account) 9,666 2.54%
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. 7,836 2.06%
(Trust account)

NTT DoCoMo, Inc. 4,749 1.25%
Nippon Telegraph and Telephone West Corporation 3912 1.03%

* JSAT does not hold shares in any of the above companies.

* The above excludas 3,070.5 treasury shares held by JSAT.

* The parcentags of voting shares held reprasents percantage figures relative to the tctal numbsr of voting shares of 379,115
sharas. This figure is determined by subtracting 3.070.5 JSAT-held treasury shares, 3 odd-lot sharas and 966 shares
ragistered under the Japan Securities Depository Center, [nc. (JASDEC) from the total number of shares issued of 383,154.5

sharas. .
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If you have any questions, please contact:
Corporate Communications &
Investor Relations Department

TEL +81-3-5219-7778
FAX +81-3-5219-7878
E-Mail: investors @jsat.net

NOTE: This material contains forward-looking statements based on JSAT's own projections and estimatas. The
markets whare JSAT is active are extremely volatile, subject to rapid shifts in tachnology, customer demands,
prices, changes in economic conditions, the potential of sateflite failures and many other variables. Dua 1o the
risks and uncertainties involved, actual results may differ from the content of these statements. Therefore, these

statemants should not ba intarpreted as reprasentations that such objectives will ba fulfillad.

Thank you very much for your understanding and supporting JSAT.
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